
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS 
 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 Meeting: Thursday, 29th July, 2021 
     at 2.00 pm (Banqueting Hall) 

 
 

A G E N D A 
PART ONE 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.   
 
 

 

2.   Urgent Items 
 
To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature.  
 
 

 

3.   Delegations 
 
To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting. 
 
 

 

4.   Admission of Public and Press 
 
To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda. 
 
 

 

5.   Declarations of Interest 
 
To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting). 
 
Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.   
 
 

 



 

6.   Confirmation of Minutes 
 
To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 18th March, 2021. 
 
 

5 - 18 

7.   Public Participation 
 
Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make 
representations or present a deputation or petition at this meeting 
should apply to do so by no later than 5pm two working days before 
the meeting. Information on how to make the application can be 
obtained by viewing the Council’s website www.barrowbc.gov.uk or 
by contacting the Democratic Services Team at 
(srushton@barrowbc.gov.uk) or by telephone on (01229 876321). 
  
(1) Questions and Representations 

To receive any questions or representations which have been 
received from members of the public 

  
(2) Deputations and Petitions 

To receive any deputations or petitions which have been 
received from members of the public. 

 
 

 

8.   Terms of Reference 
 
To note the revised Terms of Reference for the Audit and 
Governance Committee. 
 
 

19 - 24 

FOR DECISION  
 

 

(D) 9.   Work Plan 2021-2022   
 
To note the Work Plan for 2021-2022. 
 

25 - 32 

(D) 10.   Annual Audit Letter 2019-2020   
 
To receive the Annual Audit Letter for 2019-2020. 
 

33 - 52 

(D) 11.   Housing Benefit Assurance Process 2019-2020   
 
To receive the Housing Benefit Assurance Process Report. 
 

53 - 78 

(D) 12.   Draft Annual Governance Statement   
 
To consider the draft Annual Governance Statement. 
 

79 - 102 

(D) 13.   Internal Audit Annual Report   
 
To note the Internal Audit Annual Report. 
 

103 - 122 

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/


 

(D) 14.   Assurance Arrangements 2020-2021   
 
To endorse the response. 
 

123 - 134 

(D) 15.   Annual Review of Internal Audit   
 
To endorse the Annual Review. 
 

135 - 138 

(D) 16.   Complaints and Compliments 2020-2021   
 
To note the complaints and compliments for 2020-2021. 
 

139 - 150 

(D) 17.   Internal Audit Final Report   
 
To note the Internal Audit Final Reports. 
 

151 - 156 

(D) 18.   External Audit Fees   
 
To receive the External Audit Fees for 2020-2021.  
 

157 - 164 

(D) 19.   Closedown Update 2020-2021   
 
To note the Closedown Update for 2020-2021. 
 

165 - 166 

(D) 20.   Risk Management   
 
To consider the Risk Management Report. 
 

167 - 174 

(D) 21.   Internal Audit Progress Report   
 
To note the Internal Audit Progress Report. 
 

175 - 194 

NOTE  (D) – Delegated 
  (R) – For Referral to Council 
 
Membership of Committee 
Councillors 
 
Councillors Burns (Chairman) 

Callister 
Shirley 
Assouad (Vice-Chair) 
Hall 
Nott 
 

 
For queries regarding this agenda, please contact: 
 Sharron Rushton 

Democratic Services Officer 
01229 876321 
srushton@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 



 

Published: Wednesday, 21st July 2021 
 



BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 Meeting: Thursday, 18th March, 2021 
 at 2.00 pm. (Virtual Meeting) 
 
PRESENT:- Councillors Burns (Chair), Assouad (Vice-Chair), Callister, Pemberton 
and M. A. Thomson. 
 
Officers Present:- Susan Roberts (Director of Resources), Keith Jackson (Head of 
Internal Audit), Debbie Storr (Head of Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer), 
John Penfold (Corporate Support Manager), Sharron Rushton (Democratic Services 
Officer) and Sandra Kemsley (Democratic Services Officer). 
 
Also present was Gareth Kelly and Richard Anderson from Grant Thornton. 
 
51 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members 
 
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors Ronson and Shirley 
 
Councillor Pemberton attended as a substitute for Councillor Ronson. 
 
52 – Minutes 
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 3rd March, 2021 were taken as read and 
confirmed. 
 
53 – Public Participation 
 
RESOLVED:- To note that no questions, representations, deputations or petitions had 
been received in respect of the meeting. 
 
54 – Statement of Accounts 2019-2020 
 
The Director of Resources reported that the Statement of Accounts summarised the 
transactions for the financial year 2019-2020 and presented the Council’s financial 
position at 31st March, 2020.  The Statement of Accounts was intended to provide 
readers with clear information about the Council’s finances and use of resources over 
the year. 
 
The Statement of Accounts was attached as an appendix to the report. A further report 
on the agenda requested Members approval of the Annual Governance Statement and 
Audit Finding Report as a decision could only be made once these had been 
considered. 
 
The first draft Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement were 
authorised for issue and published online on 27th August 2020; the documents were 
also provided to the External Auditors. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



Contents of the Statement of Accounts 
 
The Statement of Accounts contained the following sections:- 
 

 Narrative Report – summary of financial and non-financial information. 

 Statement of Responsibilities of the Council and the Director of Resources. 

 Movement in Reserves Statement – summary of the movement during the year 
for usable and unusable reserves and the statutory adjustments required 
arriving at the council tax requirement (dwelling rent setting for the Housing 
Revenue Account). 

 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – summary of services’ 
accounting costs for the year. 

 Balance Sheet – the value of the Council’s assets and liabilities at the year end, 
the net assets are matched by the reserves held at the year end. 

 Cash Flow Statement – changes in the Council’s cash and cash equivalents for 
the year split between operating, investing and financing activities. 

 Notes to support the main accounting statements. 

 The Housing Revenue Account. 

 The Collection Fund (Council Tax and Business Rates). 
 
Narrative Report 
 
Performance 
 

 The authority delivered services to people who live in, work in and visit the 

Borough.  The authority had an overarching Council Plan which set the 

focus for the priorities and direction for the use of the available resources. 

 

 In order to effectively implement corporate priorities and meet legal 

obligations, the authority must maintain a financially stable position, be 

able to demonstrate value for money, good governance, transparency and 

must establish values and behaviours.  The authority had identified the 

following cross-cutting objectives that were being implemented: 

 
o financial resilience and financial stability; 

o strong procurement and effective contract management; 

o organisational development; 

o customer focus; and 

o consistent and professional project management. 

 

 The Council’s values were set out below and behaviours had been 

identified in terms of what colleagues would see, hear and feel when those 

values were being displayed: 

 
o community focus – provide excellent service for all customers and 

colleagues; 

o honesty and integrity – do the right thing; we are open and confident to 

challenge and be challenged; 

o our team – all work together to achieve our shared vision and goals; 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



o aim high – encourage creativity and embrace change; and 

o proud – celebrate who we are and our achievements. 

 

 The authority’s vision was for our Borough to be a great place to live, work 

and visit. 

 

 The Council Plan Priorities were: 

 
o People - Enabling residents to live happy, healthy productive lives. 

o Place - Creating a vibrant, safe & welcoming place where people want 

to live. 

o Prosperity - Supporting our economy to thrive and benefit all our 

residents. 

 

 During 2019-2020 the Council was able to utilise all resources (financial 

and non-financial) to deliver the services it provided.  The non-financial 

performance of service delivery was set out on Page 5 of the Statement of 

Accounts with commentary provided where there was a significant 

variance.  This non-financial performance together with the delivery of the 

routine services within the approved budget meant that the Council had 

delivered the outcomes and value planned when the budget was set in line 

with the Council Plan priorities. 

 
Finances 
 

 The General Fund services were funded by Council Tax, Business Rates 

and government grants.  The outturn was balanced with a net contribution 

from reserves of £537k for one-off items of expenditure. 

 The Housing Revenue Account was balanced with a net contribution to 

reserves of £527k which would be used to meet future demands, 

particularly housing maintenance. 

 The authority’s share of the Collection Fund for 2019-2020 was a deficit of 

£38k for Council Tax and a deficit of £55k for Business Rates; these were 

distributed in 2020-2021and 2021-2022 along with the preceptors 

proportions. 

 The authority’s net worth had increased from £114.9m to £117.6m from 

changes in asset values, pension liabilities, cash and borrowings. 

 Usable reserves had increased by £0.89m; the reserves held specifically 

for capital purposes increased during 2019-2020. 

 Capital investment of £5.626m was delivered through the capital 

programme for 2019-2020, this was fully funded with no new borrowing. 

 The Council managed its cash, deposits and debt internally, with external 

support and advice.  The authorised limit for borrowing during 2019-2020 

was £55m and this was not breached.  At 31 March 2020 the Council had 

£36.5m of fixed rate loans from the Public Works Loan Board. 

 
 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



General Fund Outturn 
 

 The following table identified the net of under and over spends by division; 

some items do not recur such as employee costs where posts had been 

subsequently recruited or deleted, but all variances were reviewed: 

 
 

Division 
Employee 

Costs 
Supplies 

& Services 
External 
Income 

Other 
Items 

Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Resources (129) (14) (59) (14) (216) 

Community Services 2 (5) 149 (56) 90 

Regeneration & Built 
Environment 

(162) 56 152 (38) 8 

Central Services 54 (109) 1 (1) (55) 

Corporate Amounts - - - 27 27 

Earmarked Reserves - - - 146 146 

Total (235) (72) 243 64 0 

 
 
 
Financial Reserves during 2019-2020 
 

 The General Fund earmarked reserves reduced by £537k to £7.3m; the 

core fund balance remained constant at £2.3m. 

 

 The Housing Revenue Account financial reserves increased by £527k to 

£2.7m; the core fund balance remained constant at £1m. 

 

 The Major Repairs Reserve for planned maintenance increased by £332k 

to £2.8m; this reserve funds the Capital Programme. 

 

 The Usable Capital Receipts reserve increased by £81k to £2.7m; this 

reserve funds the Capital Programme. 

 

 The Capital Grant Unapplied reserve increased by £489k to £3.1m; this 

reserve funds the Capital Programme. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



 
 
Financial Reserves at 31 March 
 

 
 
Key Opportunities and Financial Resilience 
 

 During the austerity of local government finances of the last decade and in 

order to achieve a balanced budget, the Council achieved cumulative core 

budget changes of £8.9m.  The budget changes were deemed to be 

sustained now; the changes, or savings, were achieved by the 31 March 

2019 and the subsequent budgets had balanced without requiring budget 

support from the financial reserves. 

 The Medium Term Financial Plan 2021-2025 estimated that balanced 

budgets were achievable for the General Fund and Housing Revenue 

Account based on current information and known impacts. 

 Delivery of the Council Plan continued to be a priority with the experiences 

during COVID-19 enhancing and focussing the achievement of objectives 

in partnership across the Borough. 

 Initiated an organisational development programme with the Local 

Government Association to ensure the effective use of staffing resources. 

 Participation in the Government consultation on the fairer funding review 

and business rate retention review. 

 The Council was part of the Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership and was 

linked with projects included in the Strategic Economic Plan which set out 

how Local Growth Funding would be spent to boost the local economy in 

the County.  The economic impacts of the Strategic Economic Plan were 

beneficial to the longer term finances of the Council. 

 The Council chose to react positively to the financial challenges by taking 

the opportunity to do things differently.  The broad strategy was to 

concentrate on three issues; generating income, transforming services to 

make them more efficient and cost effective, and supporting economic 

growth and development.   

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



 The authority continued working with South Lakeland District Council and 

Lancaster City Council to progress the shared vision of economic growth 

for the Morecambe Bay region.   

 The development of Marina Village continued to be a priority and external 

funding opportunities were being pursued. 

 The Council had secured a number of major funding opportunities 

including, Town Deal, Heritage Action Zone, Heritage Lottery Fund and 

European Structural and Investment Fund. 

 The Council had provided information regarding the financial impacts of 

COVID-19 to the government in order to obtain emergency funding. 

 
RESOLVED:- To note the 2019-2020 Statement of Accounts. 
 
55 – Annual Governance Statement 
 
The Corporate Support Manager reported that the Council had responsibility for 
ensuring that Council business was conducted within the law and proper standards, 
and that public money was safeguarded and properly accounted for.  Part of this 
governance process was the preparation and publication of an Annual Governance 
Statement which was a self-assessment of how effective the Council considered its 
governance arrangements to be. 
 
The following members of staff were involved in reviewing the Annual Governance 
Statement:- 
 
Executive Director: Head of Paid Services; 
Director of Resources: S151 Officer; 
Director of People and Place; 
Assistant Director - Housing; 
Head of Legal and Governance - Monitoring Officer;  
Head of Internal Audit; and 
Corporate Support Manager. 
 
The Council had assessed itself against the principles of good governance that were 
defined in the Local Code of Corporate Governance. 
 
The Annual Governance Statement was attached as an appendix to the Corporate 
Support Manager’s report.  The Statement was currently in draft form prior to approval 
by this Committee. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Callister and seconded by Councillor Assouad, and  
 
RESOLVED:- To unanimously agree:- 
 
1. To approve the Annual Governance Statement; 
 
2. That the Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee and the Chief Executive 

sign the Annual Governance Statement; and 
 
3. That the Annual Governance Statement be published on the Council’s website. 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



 
56 – Audit Findings Report 
 
Gareth Kelly and Richard Anderson from Grant Thornton attended the meeting to 
present the Audit Findings report to Members.  The report was intended to highlight 
any significant items arising from the audit process for the benefit of the Audit 
Committee. 
 
The Appointed Auditor was required to issue the report at the conclusion of the audit, 
noting any adjustments made to the draft accounts as published.  
 
The audit was substantially completed and there were no matters of which they were 
aware that would require modification of the audit opinion outlined in the report, or 
material changes to the financial statements, subject to the following outstanding 
matters: 
 

 Completion of work on valuation of land, buildings and dwellings 

 Final engagement manager and engagement lead quality review of audit 
work 

 Receipt of management representation letter; and 

 Review of the final set of financial statements 
 
It was anticipated that the audit report opinion would be unqualified and unmodified.  
An additional emphasis of matter paragraph highlighting land, building and dwellings 
valuation material uncertainties in respect of the Council’s own assets and the 
Council’s share of the Cumbria Local Government Scheme’s direct property 
investments and investments in unquoted property funds had been included within the 
report.  This did not affect the opinion that the statements gave a true and fair view of 
the Council’s financial position and its income and expenditure for the year. 
 
The Appointed Auditor had completed the risk based review of the Council’s Value for 
Money arrangements and concluded that the Council had proper arrangements to 
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, except for its 
arrangements for ensuring policies and procedures in relation to procurement and 
contract management were followed.  It was anticipated that that the Auditor would 
issue a qualified ‘except for’ value for money conclusion. 
 
The Appointed Auditor reported that they had not exercised any of their additional 
statutory powers or duties and did not intend to do so.  Serious consideration had been 
given to the exercise of a statutory recommendation under Section 24 of the Local 
Audit and Accountability Act 2014 but it had been determined that, in view of some 
improvements related to procurement and contract management arrangements 
towards the end of the 2019-20 financial year, it was not appropriate to issue a Section 
24 at this time,  however, progress would be monitored and should weaknesses 
persist, the auditors would review their use of wider statutory powers. 
 
The concept of materiality was fundamental to the preparation of the financial 
statements and the audit process and applied not only to the monetary misstatements 
but also to disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice 
and applicable law.  Materiality levels were reported in the audit plan. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



Details of significant audit risks had been highlighted within the report. Significant 
findings had also been highlighted within the report which were new issues and risks 
identified during the course of the audit that were not previously communicated in the 
audit plan and included a summary of any significant control deficiencies identified 
during the year.   
 
The Appointed Auditors Team had undertaken their audit in a professional and 
constructive manner and the Director of Resources took to the opportunity to thank the 
Audit Team. 
 
RESOLVED:- To receive the Audit Findings report. 
 
57 – Approvals and Letters of Representation 
 
The Director of Resources submitted a report containing the Council’s draft Letter of 
Representation; the finalised version was presented at the meeting.  The report 
requested approval for the finalised letter to be signed in addition to signing and 
publishing the Statement of Accounts 2019-20120 and Annual Governance Statement 
2019-2020. 
 
Statement of Accounts 
 

After considering the Statement of Accounts, Annual Governance Statement and the 
Audit Findings Report for 2019/20, Members were recommended to approve the 
audited Statement of Accounts for 2019/20 and to authorise the Chairman of this 
Committee to sign on behalf of the Council. 
 
Annual Governance Statement 
 
Members were recommended to approve the Annual Governance Statement for 
2019/20 and to authorise the Chairman of this Committee to sign on behalf of the 
Council. 
 
Publication 
 
The Annual Governance Statement would be combined with the Statement of 
Accounts and this would be published on the Council’s website once the audit 
certificate was provided. 
 
Letter of Representation 
 
The purpose of this letter was to provide assurance to the Appointed Auditors on 
relevant and significant matters relating to the financial year.  The Letter of 
Representation was issued to disclose the material facts affecting the 2019/20 
transactions of the Council; the drafted letter was attached an appendix to the report.  
The Director of Resources updated Members on the finalised version.   
 
Members were asked to consider and approve the finalised Letter of Representation 
and authorise the Director of Resources and the Chairman of this Committee to sign 
on behalf of the Council. 

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



Signing 
 
Electronic signatures would be used for the authorisation of these Statements 
accompanied by an authentication email to the Appointed Auditors, from the Chair of 
this Committee, Director of Resources (Section 151 Officer) and Chief Executive as 
applicable. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Callister and seconded by Councillor Assouad, and 
 
RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed:- 
 

1.  To approve the audited accounts and authorise the Chairman of this Committee 
to sign the Statement of Accounts for 2019-2020 on behalf of the Council; 

 

2.  To approve the Annual Governance Statement for 2019-2020 and authorise the 
Chairman of this Committee to sign on behalf of the Council; 

 

3.  To approve the finalised Letter of Representation and authorise the Director of 
Resources and the Chairman of this Committee to sign on behalf of the Council; 
and 

 

4. To publish the Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement on the 
Council’s website. 

 
58 – Work Plan 2021-2022 
 
The Director of Resources reported that the work plan set out the business of the Audit 
and Governance Committee to provide a forward plan and to demonstrate that the 
terms of reference were covered. 
 
The Work Plan for 2021-2022 was presented for information and those items carried 
over from the 2020-2021 Work Plan were identified. 
 
The Work Plan for 2021-2022 included a number of items added to the first meeting, 
carried over from the 2020-2021 Work Plan: 
 

 Annual Audit Letter – follows the completion of the audit 

 Certification of Grants – DWP grant claim deadline extended 

 External Audit Annual Plan 

 Annual Report of the Chair 
 
The reviews of the effectiveness of the Internal Audit function and of the Audit and 
Governance Committee would be carried out once during 2021-2022. 
 
The work plan was attached as an appendix to the report. 
 
RESOLVED:- To note the Work Plan for 2021-2022. 
 
  

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



 
59 – Internal Audit Annual Plan 2021-2022 
 
The Head of Internal Audit reported that the proposed Internal Audit Annual Plan for 
2021-2022 had been produced based in the risks associated with the Council’s 
operations.   
 
The purpose of Internal Audit was to provide independent assurance of the 
effectiveness of the Council’s internal controls, governance and risk management 
arrangements. 
 
The individual audit reports provided recommendations for Management to act upon 
and consider in order to achieve improvements where potential weakness or risk was 
identified. 
 
Internal Audit added value to the Council and helped to achieve the Council’s 
objectives by designing an annual audit plan through a systematic and risk-based 
approach. 
 
A significant number of days had been committed to fulfil the statutory obligations 
around the Department of Works and Pensions housing benefit subsidy claim. There 
were specific skills and knowledge within the Department to undertake this work. 
 
The COVID-19 support package from Government included business support grants 
with specific criteria and eligibility; this area of Council activity was likely to require a 
degree of post audit assurance work in order to provide the necessary assurance.   
 
When the original lockdown was introduced the Department had commenced a 
recruitment process to add the required resource, this process was not concluded.  
Furthermore during lockdown a member of the Department found alternative 
employment within the Council; the Department was currently carrying two full-time 
vacancies.  These factors were likely to have a bearing on the delivery of the proposed 
plan, which would therefore require a degree of flexibility. 
 
The Internal Audit Plan for 2021-2022 had been appended to the report. 
 
RESOLVED:- To unanimously agree the Internal Audit Plan for 2021-2022. 
 
60 – Financial Regulations and Contract Standing Orders 
 
The Director of Resources reported that as part of her annual review of the Constitution 
the Monitoring Officer had proposed some minor changes which had been considered 
by the Executive Committee on 10 March 2021 and would be submitted to Council on 
23 March, 2021 for adoption. 
 
The terms of reference of the Audit and Governance Committee included “to maintain 
an overview of the Council’s Constitution in respect of contract standing order, financial 
regulations”. 
 
 

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



The Financial Regulations and Contract Procedure Rules had been considered 
alongside the constitution review and some suggested changes were shown in the 
appendix to ensure that they were up to date. These regulations and rules would be 
further reviewed during the coming year. 
 
RESOLVED:- To note the revisions to the financial regulations and contract standing 
orders, which were being recommended to Council as part of the constitutional review 
changes. 
 
61 – Code of Corporate Governance 
 
The Corporate Support Manager reported that the Council produced a Code of 
Corporate Governance which was reviewed on an annual basis.  Guidance for 
preparing the Code was provided by the Chartered Institute for Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA).  
 
CIPFA revised the framework for good governance in the public sector based on the 
International Framework, Good Governance in the Public Sector. 
 
The framework was designed as a reference document for those who developed 
governance codes for the public sector when updating and reviewing their own codes. 
The framework provided a shared understanding of what constituted good governance 
in the public sector.  
 
Although the core principles had not changed there had been some changes which 
were highlighted in the appendix. 
 
The Code was circulated to Management Team in March, 2021. 
 
RESOLVED:- To endorse the Code of Corporate Governance. 
 
62 – Going Concern 
 
The Director of Resources reported that the Council was required to assess and 
determine that it was appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going 
concern basis.  The review should take account of all available information about the 
future, which was at least, but not limited to the next twelve months from the end of 
the reporting period. 
 
The accounts of the Council for the period 1st April, 2020 to 31st March, 2021 would 
be prepared on a going concern basis.  This basis assumed that the Council would be 
able to realise its assets and liabilities in the normal course of business and that it 
would continue in business for the foreseeable future. 
 
Management Team considered the significant factors and determined that the going 
concern concept did apply to the Council. 
 
It was asserted that the going concern concept still applied. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Callister and seconded by Councillor Assouad, and 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



 
RESOLVED:- To unanimously agree with the going concern assessment for the 
preparation of the 2020-2021 accounts.   
 
63 – Accounting Policies 
 
The Director of Resources reported that she was responsible for the preparation of the 
authority’s Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the 
CIPFA/LAASAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom (the Code). 
 
In preparing the Statement of Accounts, the Director of Resources was responsible for 
selecting suitable accounting policies, applying those consistently and complying with 
the code.  
 
The accounting policies had been reviewed to ensure that they remained relevant, 
current and reflected best practice. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Callister and seconded by Councillor Assouad, and 
 
RESOLVED:- To unanimously approve the accounting policies for the preparation of 
the Accounts for 2020-2021. 
 

REFERRED ITEMS 
 

THE FOLLOWING MATTERS ARE REFERRED TO COUNCIL FOR DECISION 

 
64 – Anti-Fraud Policies 2021 
 
The Director of Resources reported that as part of the Policy Framework, the Council 
had the following Anti-Fraud policies:- 
 

 Anti-Fraud, Theft, Bribery and Corruption Strategy and Response Plan; and 

 Whistleblowing Policy 
 
These policies had been reviewed and updated to ensure that they remain relevant, 
current and reflect best practice. 
 
The Council had a zero tolerance policy towards fraud, bribery and corruption. 
 
The Anti-Fraud Policies emphasised that the fight against fraud was endorsed and 
supported at the most senior level of the Council and were clear that all employees 
had a responsibility for fraud prevention and detection. 
 
The Anti-Fraud, Theft, Bribery and Corruption Strategy and Response Plan set out the 
Council’s commitment to the prevention and detection of fraud and corruption.  It 
outlined the responsibilities of staff, Members and management and set out the 
procedures to be followed where suspicion of financial or other irregularity was raised.  
The Fraud Response Plan had been added to the Policy to highlight the procedure 

Page 16

Agenda Item 6



that the Council would follow once a concern had been raised.  Generally, besides 
names and dates being updated, the policy remained relevant and fit for purpose.  The 
only addition being paragraph 3.2.8 to explain the change in the Government secure 
email arrangements. 
 
The Whistleblowing Policy applied to all staff, Members and those contractors working 
for the Council and on our premises.  The Policy set out the Council’s expectation that 
serious concerns were raised.  The Fraud Response Plan within the main Policy also 
applied to these concerns.  Generally besides names and dates being updated, the 
policy remained relevant and fit for purpose. 
 
The Anti-Fraud, Theft, Bribery and Corruption Strategy and Response Plan was 
published on the Council’s website, and the Whistleblowing Policy was published on 
the Intranet. 
 
Once approved, all staff would be informed and reminded of the Anti-Fraud Policies 
and their importance. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Callister and seconded by Councillor Assouad, and 
 
RESOLVED:- To unanimously recommend the Council approve the revised Anti-Fraud 
Policies. 
 
The meeting closed at 3.22 pm. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee  

29 July 2021 

Terms of Reference 
 

   

Report from:   Director of Resources 

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    None 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  The Audit and Governance Committee terms of reference are set out in the 

Council’s Constitution. 

 

1.2 The terms of reference provide the framework of the business covered by this 

committee and are presented for information. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee note the 

terms of reference. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The terms of reference (Appendix 1) are set out in the Council’s Constitution 

and are reported here to provide Members with the framework of the 

Committee’s business. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Consultation is not relevant to the recommendation. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternative options as the report is presented for noting.  

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 

Committee is charged with that role. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report.  

 

Legal  

 7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report is for 
information. 

 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

The Committee does not fulfil 

the terms of reference 

assigned by Full Council. 

The Council cannot 

demonstrate good 

governance. 

Audit and Governance 

Committee work plan. 

 

Contact Officers  

S M Roberts directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Audit and Governance Committee 

Terms of Reference 

 

Page 20

Agenda Item 8



 

Part 3(1) Version 9 (June 2020) Page 8 
 

 

Audit and Governance Committee 

Membership Terms of Reference Delegation of Functions 

6 members of 
the authority  
 

Audit Activity 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 To consider the head of internal audit’s 

annual report and opinion, and a 
summary of internal audit activity (actual 
and planned) and the level of assurance 
it can give over the Council’s corporate 
governance arrangements. 

 
 To consider summaries of specific 

internal audit reports. 
 
 To consider the annual internal audit 

plan. 
 
 To consider reports dealing with the 

management and performance of the 
internal audit provider. 

 
 To consider reports from internal audit 

on agreed recommendations not 
implemented within reasonable 
timescale. 

 
 To consider the external auditor’s 

annual letter and relevant reports. 
 
 To consider specific reports as agreed 

with the external auditor. 
 
 To comment on the scope and depth of 

external audit work and to ensure it 
gives value for money. 

 
 To consider the appointment of the 

external auditor where appropriate. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(1) Version 9 (June 2020) Page 9 
 

 
 Regulatory/Standards Framework 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Delegated to Monitoring 
Officer, in consultation with 
the Independent Person, by 
full Council on 15 May, 2012 
 
 
 
Delegation to Monitoring 
Officer as set out in the 
Constitution. 

 
 To maintain an overview of the Council’s 

Constitution in respect of contract 
standing order, financial regulations. 

 
 To promote and maintain high standards 

of conduct for elected and co-opted 
members in accordance with the 
relevant provisions of the Localism Act. 

 
 To determine whether a member of the 

Council or a member of a town or parish 
council within the Borough has failed to 
comply with the relevant Code of 
Conduct. Where it finds that a failure to 
comply with the code of conduct has 
occurred to determine what action, if 
any, to take. 

 
 To determine any request for a 

dispensation under s.33 of the Localism 
Act 2011. 

 
 To review any issue referred to it by the 

Chief Executive, Director of Resources, 
Monitoring Officer or any Council body. 

 
 To monitor the effective development 

and operation of risk management and 
corporate governance in the Council. 

 
 To monitor Council policies on the anti-

fraud and anti-corruption strategy and 
the Council’s complaints process. 

 
 To approve the production of the 

authority’s Annual Governance 
Statement and to recommend its 
adoption. 

 
 To consider the Council’s arrangement 

for corporate governance and agreeing 
necessary actions to ensure compliance 
with best practice. 

 
 To consider the Council’s compliance 

with its own and other published 
standards and controls. 

 

Page 22

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(1) Version 9 (June 2020) Page 10 
 

 
 

Accounts 
 

 
 To review and approve the annual 

statement of accounts.  Specifically, to 
consider whether appropriate 
accounting policies have been followed 
and whether there are concerns arising 
from the financial statements or from 
the audit that need to be brought to the 
attention of the Council. 

 
 To consider the external auditor’s 

report to those charged with 
governance on issues arising from the 
audit of the accounts. 

 

The quorum for the Audit and Governance Committee is 3. 

Page 23

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee  

29 July 2021 

Audit and Governance Committee Work Plan 
 

   

Report from:   Director of Resources 

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    None 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  The Work Plan sets out the business of the Audit and Governance Committee to 

provide a forward plan and to demonstrate that the terms of reference are 

covered. 

 

1.2 The Work Plan for 2021-2022 is presented for information accompanied by a 

commentary of variations. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee note the 

Work Plan for 2021-2022. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The Work Plan (Appendix 1) is presented at each Audit and Governance 

Committee meeting to provide a forward plan of business. 

 

3.2 The Work Plan is intended to demonstrate that the terms of reference are 

covered. 

 

3.3 The Annual Plan from Grant Thornton is not available for this meeting and the 

indicator has been moved to the next meeting of this committee.  It is expected 

that those charged with governance accept the Annual Plan in order for the audit 

to commence.  An update on these arrangements will be provided at the 

meeting. 

 

3.4 The complaints and compliments report is presented at this meeting rather than 

the September meeting as originally scheduled. 

 

3.5 There is no restricted assurance monitoring to report to this meeting. 

Page 25

Agenda Item 9



 

3.6 An Annual Report from the Chair was introduced to the Work Plan for 

presentation at Council.  Unfortunately it has not been possible to prepare that 

for 2020/21 and this task will commence with a review of 2021/22. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Consultation is not relevant to the recommendation. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternative options as the report is presented for noting.  

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 

Committee is charged with that role. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report.  

 

Legal  

 7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report is for 
information. 

 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

The Committee does not fulfil 

the terms of reference 

assigned by Full Council. 

The Council cannot 

demonstrate good 

governance. 

Audit and Governance 

Committee work plan. 

 

Contact Officers  

S M Roberts directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Audit and Governance Committee - Work Plan 2021-2022 

 

Page 26

Agenda Item 9



Audit and Governance Committee Work Plan 2021-2022

29-Jul 30-Sep 25-Nov 17-Mar

1.

To consider the head of Internal Audit’s annual 
report and opinion, and a summary of Internal 
Audit activity (actual and planned) and the level 
of assurance it can give over the Council’s 
corporate governance arrangements.

Head of 
Internal Audit Annual report 

2. To consider summaries of specific Internal 
Audit reports.

Head of 
Internal Audit Final reports    

3. To consider the annual Internal Audit plan. Head of 
Internal Audit Annual plan 

4.
To consider reports dealing with the 
management and performance of the Internal 
Audit provider.

Director of 
Resources Annual review 

5.
To consider reports from Internal Audit on 
agreed recommendations not implemented 
within reasonable timescale.

Head of 
Internal Audit Progress report    

Annual audit letter  
Certification of grants  

7.  To consider specific reports as agreed with the 
external auditor.

Appointed 
Auditor

Progress report and 
sector update    

8.
To comment on the scope and depth of 
external audit work and to ensure it gives value 
for money.

Appointed 
Auditor Annual plan  

9.  To consider the appointment of the external 
auditor where appropriate.

Director of 
Resources

MeetingTerms of Reference Reporting 
Officer Report

 To consider the external auditor’s annual letter 
and relevant reports.

Appointed 
Auditor6.

Audit Activity

Appointed auditor report – cyclical

Denotes items carried over from the Work Plan 2020-2021.

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Audit and Governance Committee Work Plan 2021-2022

29-Jul 30-Sep 25-Nov 17-Mar
MeetingTerms of Reference Reporting 

Officer Report

Denotes items carried over from the Work Plan 2020-2021.

10.
To maintain an overview of the Council’s 
Constitution in respect of contract standing 
order, financial regulations.

Director of 
Resources Annual review 

11.

 To promote and maintain high standards of 
conduct for elected and co-opted members in 
accordance with the relevant provisions of the 
Localism Act.

Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

Standards arrangements 

12.

 To determine whether a member of the 
Council or a member of a town or parish 
council within the Borough has failed to comply 
with the relevant Code of Conduct. Where it 
finds that a failure to comply with the code of 
conduct has occurred to determine what action, 
if any, to take.

Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

13. To determine any request for a dispensation 
under s.33 of the Localism Act 2011.

Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

14.
 To review any issue referred to it by the Chief 
Executive, Director of Resources, Monitoring 
Officer or any Council body.

Various

15.
To monitor the effective development and 
operation of risk management and corporate 
governance in the Council. 

Corporate 
Support 
Manager

Risk management    

Regulatory/Standards Framework

Report as required unless otherwise determined under 
delegation

Various as required

Report as required

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Audit and Governance Committee Work Plan 2021-2022

29-Jul 30-Sep 25-Nov 17-Mar
MeetingTerms of Reference Reporting 

Officer Report

Denotes items carried over from the Work Plan 2020-2021.

Director of 
Resources Annual review (antifraud) 

Complaints and 
compliments report 

Local Government 
Ombudsman letter 

Draft Annual Governance 
Statement 

Final Annual Governance 
Statement (included with 
Statement of Accounts)



Code of corporate 
governance 

Restricted assurance 
monitoring    

Best practice review 

Guidance on code of 
conduct and social media 

17.
To approve the production of the authority’s 
Annual Governance Statement and to 
recommend its adoption.

Corporate 
Support 
Manager

18.

To consider the Council’s arrangement for 
corporate governance and agreeing necessary 
actions to ensure compliance with best 
practice.

Corporate 
Support 
Manager

19.
To consider the Council’s compliance with its 
own and other published standards and 
controls.

Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

16.
To monitor Council policies on the antifraud 
and anti-corruption strategy and the Council’s 
complaints process. Head of Legal 

and 
Governance

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Audit and Governance Committee Work Plan 2021-2022

29-Jul 30-Sep 25-Nov 17-Mar
MeetingTerms of Reference Reporting 

Officer Report

Denotes items carried over from the Work Plan 2020-2021.

Going concern 

Accounting policies 

Assurance arrangements 

Statement of Accounts 
and Annual Governance 
Statement



Letter of representation 

21.
To consider the external auditor’s report to 
those charged with governance on issues 
arising from the audit of the accounts.

Appointed 
Auditor Audit findings report 

22. To note the Audit and Governance Committee 
terms of reference.

Director of 
Resources Terms of reference 

23. To note the Audit and Governance Committee 
work plan.

Director of 
Resources Work plan    

24. To note the External Audit fees. Director of 
Resources Audit fees 

20.

To review and approve the annual Statement 
of Accounts. Specifically, to consider whether 
appropriate accounting policies have been 
followed and whether there are concerns 
arising from the financial statements or from 
the audit that need to be brought to the 
attention of the Council.

Director of 
Resources

Others

Accounts

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Audit and Governance Committee Work Plan 2021-2022

29-Jul 30-Sep 25-Nov 17-Mar
MeetingTerms of Reference Reporting 

Officer Report

Denotes items carried over from the Work Plan 2020-2021.

25. To consider the effectiveness of the Audit and 
Governance Committee.

Director of 
Resources Annual review 

26. Review of Borough and Parish councillor 
registers of interests

Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

Annual report 

27. Review of employee gifts and hospitality
Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

Annual report 

28.  Annual report of the Chair of the Audit and 
Governance Committee Various Annual report  

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee  

29 July 2021 

Annual Audit Letter 
 

   

Report from:   Director of Resources 

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    None 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  The Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2020 has been produced 

by Grant Thornton. 

 

1.2 The Council received an unqualified opinion on the Council's financial statements 

on 18 March 2021. 

 

1.3      In respect of value for money the Council received a qualified ‘except for’ 

conclusion. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee receive the 

Annual Audit Letter for 2019-2020. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 Grant Thornton have produced the Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 

March 2020 (Appendix 1). 

 

3.2 The Council received an unqualified opinion on the Council's financial statements 

on 18 March 2021 and the audited documents were placed on the Council’s 

website. 

 

3.3      In respect of value for money the Council received a qualified ‘except for’ 

conclusion. 

 

3.4 The opinion stated that the appointed auditors are satisfied that, in all significant 

respects, except for the matter identified in respect of procurement and contract 

management, the Council put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, 

Page 33

Agenda Item 10



efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ending 31 March 

2020. 

 

3.5 Actions arising from the audit of 2019-2020 will be reported upon in a future 

report. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Consultation is not relevant to the recommendation. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternative options as the report is presented for noting.  

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 

Committee is charged with that role. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report.  

 

Legal  

 7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report is for 
information. 

 
Contact Officers  

S M Roberts directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Annual Audit Letter – Year Ended 31 March 2020 

 

Page 34

Agenda Item 10



Final

The Annual Audit Letter

for Barrow-in-Furness Borough 

Council

Year ended 31 March 2020

May 2021

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Date

Final
Commercial in confidence

2

Contents

Section Page

1. Executive Summary 3

2. Audit of the Financial Statements 5

3. Value for Money conclusion 11

Appendices

A     Reports issued and fees

Your key Grant Thornton 

team members are:

Gareth Kelly

Engagement Lead

T: 0141 223 0891

E: gareth.kelly@uk.gt.com

Richard Anderson

Senior Manager

T: 0141 223 0753

E: richard.j.Anderson@uk.gt.com

Hebe Dyson

Engagement In-Charge

T: 0141 223 0738

E: Hebe.R.Dyson@uk.gt.com

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Date

Final
Commercial in confidence

3

Executive Summary
Purpose

Our Annual Audit Letter (Letter) summarises the key findings arising from the 

work that we have carried out at Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council ( the 

Council) for the year ended 31 March 2020.  

This Letter is intended to provide a commentary on the results of our work to 

the Council and external stakeholders, and to highlight issues that we wish to 

draw to the attention of the public. In preparing this Letter, we have followed 

the National Audit Office (NAO)'s Code of Audit Practice and Auditor 

Guidance Note (AGN) 07 – 'Auditor Reporting'. We reported the detailed 

findings from our audit work to the Council’s Audit Committee as those 

charged with governance in our Audit Findings Report on 18 March 2021.

Respective responsibilities

We have carried out our audit in accordance with the NAO's Code of Audit Practice, 

which reflects the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the 

Act). Our key responsibilities are to:

• give an opinion on the Council’s financial statements (section two)

• assess the Council's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources (the value for money conclusion) (section 

three).

In our audit of the Council’s financial statements, we comply with International 

Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs) and other guidance issued by the NAO.

Materiality We determined materiality for the audit of the Council’s financial statements to be £896,000, which is 1.95% of the Council’s 

gross cost of services expenditure. 

Financial Statements opinion We gave an unqualified opinion on the Council's financial statements on 18 March 2021. 

We included an emphasis of matter paragraph in our report in respect of the uncertainty over valuations of the Council's land

and buildings and the property assets of its pension fund given the Coronavirus pandemic. This does not affect our opinion that 

the statements give a true and fair view of the Council's financial position and its income and expenditure for the year.

Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) We completed work on the Council’s consolidation return following guidance issued by the NAO.

Use of statutory powers We did not identify any matters which required us to exercise our additional statutory powers. As this is the second year that we 

have issued an except for VFM conclusion opinion, we have given serious consideration to the exercise of a statutory 

recommendation under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. We have determined that, in view of some 

improvements to related procurement and contract management arrangements towards the end of the 2019-20 financial year, it 

is not appropriate to issue a section 24 at this time. However, we are continuing to monitor progress in this area and, if 

weaknesses persist, will review use of our wider statutory powers.

Our work

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Date

Final
Commercial in confidence

4

Executive Summary

Value for Money arrangements We were satisfied that the Council put in place proper arrangements to ensure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources except for its arrangements for ensuring policies and procedures in relation to procurement and contract management

are followed. This does follow on from a similar qualification to our VFM conclusion in 2018/19. We therefore qualified our value 

for money conclusion in our audit report to the Council on 18 March 2021.

Certificate We certified that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council in accordance 

with the requirements of the Code of Audit Practice on 18 March 2021.

Working with the Council

The outbreak of the Covid-19 coronavirus pandemic has had a significant impact on the normal operations of the Council with additional challenges of reopening

services under new government guidelines. Council staff have had to adapt to working from home and accessing key systems remotely. We updated our audit risk

assessment to consider the impact of the pandemic and included an additional financial statement level risk in respect of Covid-19 and highlighted the impact on our

Value for Money conclusion approach.

Restrictions for non-essential travel has meant both Council and audit teams have had to adapt to new remote access working arrangements. This has included the

use of video calling and screensharing for the verification of completeness and accuracy of information produced by the entity, and information sharing through our

cloud-based software.

The accounts were provided to us on 27 August 2020. The draft accounts were produced to a high compliance standard and were supported by good working

papers. However, there have been delays in responses to audit queries throughout the audit process, which has led to a number of changes to the proposed

timetable for completion of the audit. We acknowledge that these are exceptional times and the finance team has understandably had to prioritise the Council’s

response to the pandemic.

We would like to record our appreciation for the assistance and co-operation provided to us during our audit by the Council's staff .

Grant Thornton UK LLP

April 2021

P
age 38

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Date

Final
Commercial in confidence

5

Audit of the Financial Statements

Our audit approach

Materiality

In our audit of the Council's financial statements, we use the concept of 

materiality to determine the nature, timing and extent of our work, and in 

evaluating the results of our work. We define materiality as the size of the 

misstatement in the financial statements that would lead a reasonably 

knowledgeable person to change or influence their economic decisions. 

We determined materiality for the audit of the Council’s financial statements 

to be £896,000, which is 1.95% of the Council’s gross cost of services 

expenditure. We used this benchmark as, in our view, users of the Council's 

financial statements are most interested in where the Council has spent its 

revenue in the year. 

We also set a lower level of specific materiality for senior officer 

remuneration if £10,000, based on what would be material to the reader of 

the accounts for this sensitive area.

We set a lower threshold of £45,000, above which we reported errors to the 

Audit Committee in our Audit Findings Report.

The scope of our audit

Our audit involves obtaining sufficient evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 

the financial statements to give reasonable assurance that they are free from material 

misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes assessing whether:

• the accounting policies are appropriate, have been consistently applied and 

adequately disclosed; 

• the significant accounting estimates made by management are reasonable; and

• the overall presentation of the financial statements gives a true and fair view. 

We also read the remainder of the Statement of Accounts to check it is consistent with 

our understanding of the Council and with the financial statements included in the 

Statement of Accounts on which we gave our opinion.

We carry out our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK) and the NAO Code of Audit 

Practice. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the Council’s business 

and is risk based. 

We identified key risks and set out overleaf the work we performed in response to 

these risks and the results of this work.

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Date

Final
Commercial in confidence

6

Audit of the Financial Statements

Significant Audit Risks
These are the significant risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work. 

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions

Covid-19 

The global outbreak of the Covid-19 virus pandemic has led to 

unprecedented uncertainty for all organisations, requiring urgent 

business continuity arrangements to be implemented. We expect 

current circumstances will have an impact on the production and 

audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 

2020, including and not limited to;

- Remote working arrangements and redeployment of staff to 

critical front line duties may impact on the quality and timing of 

the production of the financial statements, and the evidence we 

can obtain through physical observation;

- volatility of financial and property markets will increase the 

uncertainty of assumptions applied by management to asset 

valuation and receivable recovery estimates, and the reliability 

of evidence we can obtain to corroborate management 

estimates;

- financial uncertainty will require management to reconsider 

financial forecasts supporting their going concern assessment 

and whether material uncertainties for a period of at least 12 

months from the anticipated date of approval of the audited 

financial statements have arisen; and 

- disclosures within the financial statements will require 

significant revision to reflect the unprecedented situation and 

its impact on the preparation of the financial statements as at 

31 March 2020 in accordance with IAS1, particularly in relation 

to material uncertainties.

We therefore identified the global outbreak of the Covid-19 virus 

as a significant risk, which was one of the most significant 

assessed risks of material misstatement.

We worked with management to understand the 

impact the Covid-19 pandemic had on the 

organisation’s ability to prepare the financial 

statements and update financial forecasts and 

assessed the implications for our materiality 

calculations.  

We also:

• liaised with other audit suppliers, regulators and 

government departments to co-ordinate practical 

cross-sector responses to issues as and when 

they arose;

• evaluated the adequacy of the disclosures in the 

financial statements that arose in light of the 

Covid-19 pandemic;

• evaluated whether sufficient audit evidence could 

be obtained using alternative approaches whilst 

working remotely;

• evaluated whether sufficient audit evidence could 

be obtained to corroborate significant 

management estimates such as assets and 

pension fund net liability valuations;

• evaluated management’s assumptions that 

underpin the revised financial forecasts and the 

impact on management’s going concern 

assessment; and

• discussed with management the implications for 

our audit report opinion.

Appropriate arrangements have been put in place to 

manage the Covid-19 situation and suitable disclosures 

have been made in the financial statements. This 

includes the use of alternative arrangements in the 

decision-making process as permitted by the Council 

Constitution. We were able to obtain sufficient audit 

evidence by utilising screensharing for the verification of 

completeness and accuracy of information produced by 

the Council, and share information through our cloud 

based software.

Due to the potential impact that Covid-19 has on the 

value of your land, buildings and dwellings at 31 March 

2020, your valuer has disclosed a material valuation 

uncertainty within their valuers report. Following audit, 

you have disclosed this material uncertainty within Note 4 

of the financial statements. Note 4 has also been updated 

to reflect the impact of Covid-19 on the valuation of the 

Council’s share of Cumbria Local Government Pension 

Scheme’s direct property investments and investments in 

unquoted property funds. The note states that fair value 

measurement of these investments at 31 March 2020 is 

subject to a material uncertainty.

We will reflect your disclosures within an “emphasis of 

matter” paragraph in our audit report opinion. This is not 

a modification or qualification of the opinion and is 

consistent with other audited bodies where the valuer has 

highlighted the same material valuation uncertainty.

There were no other findings in respect of this significant 

risk. 

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Date

Final
Commercial in confidence

7

Audit of the Financial Statements
Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions

Management override of controls

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable 

presumed risk that the risk of management over-ride 

of controls is present in all entities. The Council faces 

external scrutiny of its spending and this could 

potentially place management under undue pressure 

in terms of how they report performance.

We therefore identified management override of 

control, in particular journals, management estimates 

and transactions outside the course of business as a 

significant risk, which was one of the most significant 

assessed risks of material misstatement.

• evaluated the design effectiveness of management controls over 

journals;

• analysed the journals listing and determined the criteria for selecting 

high risk unusual journals; 

• tested unusual journals recorded during the year and after the draft 

accounts stage for appropriateness and corroboration;

• gained an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical 

judgements applied made by management and consider their 

reasonableness with regard to corroborative evidence; and

• evaluated the rationale for any changes in accounting policies, 

estimates or significant unusual transactions

Our audit work has not identified any issues in 

respect of this significant risk.

Valuation of net pension liability

The Council’s pension fund net liability,

as reflected in its balance sheet as the net defined 

benefit liability, represents a significant estimate in 

the financial statements. 

The pension fund net liability is considered a 

significant estimate due to the size of the numbers 

involved and the sensitivity of the estimate to 

changes in key assumptions.

We therefore identified valuation of the Council’s 

pension fund net liability as a significant risk, which 

was one of the most significant assessed risks of 

material misstatement.

• updated our understanding of the processes and controls put in place 

by management to ensure that the Council’s pension fund net liability is 

not materially misstated and evaluated the design of the associated 

controls;

• evaluated the instructions issued by management to their actuary for 

this estimate and the scope of the actuary’s work;

• assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary 

who carried out the Council’s pension fund valuation; 

• assessed the accuracy and completeness of the information provided 

by the Council to the actuary to estimate the liability;

• tested the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and 

disclosures in the notes to the core financial statements with the 

actuarial report from the actuary;

• undertaken procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial 

assumptions made by reviewing the report of the consulting actuary (as 

auditor’s expert) and performed any additional procedures suggested 

within the report; and

• obtained assurances from the auditor of Cumbria Local Government 

Pension Scheme as to the controls surrounding the validity and 

accuracy of membership data; contributions data and benefits data 

sent to the actuary by the pension fund and the fund assets valuation in 

the pension fund financial statements.

Our audit work has not identified any significant 

issues in relation to the risk identified.

Similarly to the valuation of land and buildings, 

there is also an impact of Covid-19 on the 

valuation of the LGPS pension fund property 

assets. Cumbria’s Local Government Pension 

Scheme’s accounts include a material uncertainty 

around the valuation of pension fund’s property 

assets and the auditor of Cumbria Pension Fund 

intends to include an emphasis of matter in their 

auditor’s report in respect of the effects of Covid-

19 on the valuation of its direct and indirect 

property holdings. The Council’s financial 

statements disclosures have been updated within 

Note 4 to reflect this and our audit report opinion 

will also contain an “emphasis of matter” 

paragraph in this respect.

Our audit work has not identified any other issues 

in respect of this significant risk.

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Date

Final
Commercial in confidence

8

Audit of the Financial Statements
Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions

The revenue cycle includes fraudulent transactions

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk

that revenue may be misstated due to the improper

recognition of revenue.

Our prior year Value for Money work and the work of

Internal Audit, has identified weaknesses in the Council’s

procurement and contract management arrangements.

For Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council we have

concluded that the greatest risk of material misstatement

relates to income from contracts.

We have therefore identified the occurrence and

accuracy of income from contracts as a significant risk,

which was one of the most significant assessed risks of

material misstatement.

We have rebutted this presumed risk for the other

revenue streams of the Council because:

• Other income streams are primarily derived from

grants or formula based income from central

government and tax payers

• There is little incentive to manipulate revenue

recognition

• Opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are

very limited

• The culture and ethical framework of local authorities,

including Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council, mean

that all forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable.

For contract income we have:

• evaluated the Council’s accounting policy for

recognition of contract income for

appropriateness;

• gained an understanding of the Council's

system for accounting for contract income and

evaluated the design of the associated controls;

and

• agreed on a sample basis amounts recognised

as income from contracts to supporting

evidence.

As outlined in our audit  plan, we rebutted this presumed risk for all 

non-contract revenue streams of the Council.

Our work understanding  the Council’s system for accounting for 

contract income highlighted a clear process that should be followed 

when the Council enters a new contract. Our walkthrough test 

identified a number of new contracts where this process was not 

followed. This was often due to the impacts of COVID-19.  We 

highlighted that management has still not addressed our prior year 

recommendation around ensuring that the purchasing and contract 

management standing orders are followed in all procurement 

decisions. Whilst we are satisfied that this does not create a risk of 

material misstatement of contract income in the financial statements, 

management should continue the work which is underway to 

strengthen arrangements and overall compliance in this area. 

Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of this 

significant risk.

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Date

Final
Commercial in confidence

9

Audit of the Financial Statements
Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions

Valuation of land, buildings and 

dwellings

The Council revalues its land, buildings and 

dwellings on a rolling basis.  This valuation 

represents a significant estimate by 

management in the financial statements due 

to the size of the numbers involved and the 

sensitivity of this estimate to changes in key 

assumptions. Additionally, management will 

need to ensure the carrying value of 

buildings and dwellings not revalued in year 

in the Council financial statements is not 

materially different from the current value or 

the fair value (for surplus assets) at the 

financial statements date.

We therefore identified valuation of land, 

buildings and dwellings, particularly 

revaluations and impairments, as a 

significant risk, which was one of the most 

significant assessed risks of material 

misstatement.

As part of our audit work we have:

• evaluated management's processes and assumptions for 

the calculation of the estimate, the instructions issued to 

valuation experts and the scope of their work;

• evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of 

the valuation expert;

• written to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the 

valuation was carried out;

• challenged the information and assumptions used by the 

valuer to assess completeness and consistency with our 

understanding, the Council’s valuer’s report and the 

assumptions that underpin the valuation;

• tested revaluations made during the year to see if they had 

been input correctly into the Council's asset register; and

• evaluated the assumptions made by management for those 

assets not revalued during the year and how management 

has satisfied themselves that these are not materially 

different to current value at year end.

The Council’s valuer prepared their valuations in accordance with the 

RICS Valuation – Global Standards using the information that was 

available to them at the valuation date in deriving their estimates. 

Due to the potential impact that Covid-19 has on the value of your 

land and buildings at 31 March 2020, your valuer has disclosed a 

material valuation uncertainty within their valuers report (in 

accordance with VPS 3 and VPGA 10 of the RICS Valuation – Global 

Standards). Following audit, you have disclosed this material 

uncertainty within Note 4 of the financial statements. We will reflect 

your disclosure within an “emphasis of matter” paragraph in our audit 

report opinion. This is not a modification or qualification of the opinion 

and is consistent with other audited bodies where the valuer has 

highlighted the same material valuation uncertainty.  

The Council has been slow to provide evidence to support key 

assumptions and source data underpinning the valuation of its land, 

buildings and dwellings. This has made it difficult for management to 

support the assumptions and source data used by its valuer, and in 

turn has added delays to the audit process. 

Our audit work has not identified any other issues in respect of 

valuation of land, buildings and dwellings.

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Date

Final
Commercial in confidence

10

Audit of the Financial Statements
Audit opinion
We gave an unqualified opinion on the Council's financial statements on 18 

March 2021.

Preparation of the financial statements

The Council presented us with draft financial statements in August 2020 in

accordance with the agreed timescale, and provided a good set of working

papers to support them. The draft accounts were produced to a high

compliance standard and were supported by good working papers. However,

there have been delays in responses to audit queries throughout the audit

process, which has led to a number of changes to the proposed timetable for

completion of the audit. We acknowledge that these are exceptional times

and the finance team has understandably had to prioritise the Council’s

response to the pandemic.

Issues arising from the audit of the financial statements

We reported the key issues from our audit to the Council’s Audit Committee 

on 18 March 2021. 

Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report

We are also required to review the Council’s Annual Governance Statement 

and Narrative Report. It published them on its website alongside the draft 

Statement of Accounts in August 2020.

Both documents were prepared in line with the CIPFA Code and relevant 

supporting guidance. We confirmed that both documents were consistent 

with  the financial statements prepared by the Council and with our 

knowledge of the Council. 

A number of changes were made to the Annual Governance Statement following 

audit. An action plan, with planned completion dates for significant governance and 

control weaknesses identified in 2019/20. An update on progress of actions taken in 

response to significant governance and control weaknesses identified in the 

previous year. A clear conclusion on the level of assurance provided by the 

governance arrangements. 

A number of changes were made to the Narrative Report following audit. The section 

on the medium term financial plan was updated with the figures presented to the 

Executive Committee on 11 November 2020. The section on the impact of Covid 19 

was expanded to provide more detail on government funding and the impact on 

services and the setting of the 2020/21 budget. Cross-referencing was added to the 

quoted outturn report figures to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis in the financial 

statements. 

Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) 

We carried out work on the Council’s Data Collection Tool in line with instructions 

provided by the NAO. We issued an assurance statement which confirmed the 

Council was below the audit threshold.

Certificate of closure of the audit

We certified that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of Barrow-in-

Furness Borough Council accordance with the requirements of the Code of Audit 

Practice on 18 March 2021.

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Date

Final
Commercial in confidence

11

Value for Money conclusion

Background
We carried out our review in accordance with the NAO Code of Audit 

Practice, following the guidance issued by the NAO in April 2020 which 

specified the criterion for auditors to evaluate:

In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions 

and deploys resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for 

taxpayers and local people. 

Key findings
Our first step in carrying out our work was to perform a risk assessment and 

identify the risks where we concentrated our work.

The risks we identified and the work we performed are set out overleaf. As 

part of our Audit Findings report agreed with the Council in March 2021, we 

agreed recommendations to address our findings:

• Carry out a detailed sensitivity analysis around the key uncertainties and

assumptions in the MTFP to assist agile financial management to secure

the Council’s medium term financial sustainability in the light of the

uncertain context for Local Government.

• Provide evidence to support all source data and key assumption used in

the annual valuation of land, buildings and dwellings.

• Address segregation of duties conflicts between the Oracle system

administration and finance roles.

Overall Value for Money conclusion

We are satisfied that, in all significant respects, except for the matter we identified in 

respect of procurement and contract management, the Council put in place proper 

arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 

for the year ending 31 March 2020.

We therefore propose to give a qualified 'except for' conclusion.

On the basis of our work, having regard to the specified criterion issued by the 

Comptroller & Auditor General in April 2020, except for the effects of the matter 

described in the basis for qualified conclusion section of our report, we are satisfied 

that, in all significant respects, the Authority put in place proper arrangements for 

securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year 

ended 31 March 2020.

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Date

Final
Commercial in confidence

12

Value for Money conclusion – Value for Money Risks
Risks identified in our audit plan Findings Conclusion

Financial sustainability

The Council’s Medium Term 

Financial Plan for 2020-2024 

identifies deficits for 2021-2022 

(£0.118 m), 2022-2023 (£0.263 m) 

and 2023-2024 (£0.429 m). The 

Council’s General Fund balance at 

the 31/3/21 is projected to be £2.3 m, 

above the minimum balance of £1.9 

m. Other general fund earmarked 

reserves are projected to fall from 

£7.784 m as at 31/3/19 to £5.090m 

as at 31/3/2024. The Council’s 

funding position beyond 2020-21 is 

unknown and projections beyond this 

are based on the 2020-21 

settlement.

Given the uncertainties around the 

future funding settlement, projected 

deficits and future run rate on 

reserves, the medium term 

financial plan and financial 

sustainability of the Council 

represents a significant risk to our 

VFM conclusion. In response to the 

risk we will; review progress on 

delivery of the medium term 

financial plan, review arrangements 

for developing the medium term 

financial plan and challenge key 

assumption in the plan.

The Council has good financial reporting and monitoring arrangements in 

place. Its medium-term financial planning, budgeting and identification of 

saving plans are agreed at a corporate level, by senior officers and 

members. Additional pressures and progress against savings 

requirements are reported throughout the year and actions agreed to 

close the budget gap as required.

The budget for 2019-2020 incorporated the cumulative £8.9 million of 

recurrent savings that had been achieved between 2011 and 2020. For 

2019-2020 the General Fund revenue account was balanced with a 

contribution from reserves of £0.537 million compared to a planned use 

of reserves of £0.683 million. The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) was 

also balanced with a net contribution to reserves of £0.527 million.

Both the General Fund balance and HRA reserve continue to be close to 

minimum levels, at £2.3 million and £1 million respectively. Other 

General Fund reserves were £7.347 million at 31 March 2020, a fall from 

£7.884 million at 31 March 2019, £8.67  million at 31 March 2018 and 

£9.025 million at 31 March 2017. The 2021/22 budget projects that Other 

General Fund reserves will increase to £10.560 million by 31 March 

2021, which includes £3.763 million business rates relief. Other General 

Fund reserves are then projected to fall to £6.767 million at 31 March 

2022. 

The projections within the current Medium Term Financial Plan identify a 

balanced budget position through to 2024/25. The Council anticipates 

contributing £0.194 million to volatility reserves in 2021/22, £0.264 

million in 2022/23 and £0.097 million. This contribution has been 

reduced to cover the impacts of COVID-19 and the element of the 

national pay award above previous estimates. However, considerable 

uncertainty in the medium term remains. On-going contract challenges 

mean assumptions around the waste and leisure contracts may need to 

be revised. The future impact of COVID-19 on services and income is 

unclear and there continues to be funding and macroeconomic 

uncertainty. In view of this, the Council should continue to identify 

opportunities to supplement its reserves and strengthen its financial 

sustainability in the medium term.

Auditor view

Overall, the Council has effective financial planning and financial 

management arrangements in place. The Council has a good 

record on delivering savings and delivered its planned recurrent 

savings in 2019/20. 

We continue to note an overall downward trajectory on the 

Council’s General Fund reserves. The Council faces some 

significant challenges in the short and medium term. Achieving 

future planned savings will be even more challenging in context of 

Covid-19 impact and there is uncertainty around future 

arrangements for the delivery of waste and leisure services. The 

Council should continue to put robust budget monitoring 

arrangements in place to manage these risks and ensure planned 

savings are delivered. 

We recommend that management carry out a detailed sensitivity 

analysis around the key uncertainties and assumptions included in 

its MTFP, to aid the agility now needed to manage the Council’s 

financial sustainability.

(Continued overleaf)

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Date

Final
Commercial in confidence

13

Value for Money conclusion – Value for Money Risks
Risks identified in our audit plan Conclusion

Financial sustainability Management response

The MTFP for 2021-2025 has been revised and will be presented to the Executive Committee on 23 March 2021, for Council 

approval. The MTFP projection balances during the medium term but relies upon the additional Business Rates currently being 

retained above the baseline continuing. The baseline is set nationally and any Business Rates reset will impact the level of resources 

that the Council retains in future years. The return of income losses from COVID-19 experienced in 2020-2021 has been considered

for each key income stream and prudently included; not all of these losses are returned by 2025. Estimates for cost pressures have 

been incorporated into expenditure projections but it is recognised that service income requires a more comprehensive review and

therefore there is little assumed from additional income in the MTFP. The exception for service income is the return of the recycling 

tonnage and the associated recycling credits that are received in return; 2019-2020 saw a steep decline in tonnage and a publicity 

campaign is launching in March 2021 to recover the previous levels, and exceed those. The Council Tax base is assumed to 

increase over the medium term, but not to the level that New Homes Bonus will be awarded, and a £5 increase on Band D is 

assumed each year. It is recognised that there are a number of major financial considerations for the Council coming up, some soon 

and others over the medium term. It has not been possible to “provide” specifically for all of those in the current MTFP as nothing has 

been quantified, however, given the balanced position any increase in expenditure must be funded from financial reserves if i t is one-

off, funded from additional recurring and sustainable income, re-directed or re-purposed expenditure budgets, or core funded if the 

Fairer Funding Review increases the Council’s resources (baseline settlement). There are two key elements that drive the MTFP:

• internally restructuring to align services to the Council Priorities, transformation of service delivery, process design and 

streamlining will create stronger resource management; 

• externally working with partners to achieve our priorities, Local Government Reorganisation, and delivering major projects will 

provide longer term benefits for the Borough and maximise/increase the Council’s core resources.

The MTFP will be kept current and the 2020-2021 outturn will provide further evidence around COVID and other prudent 

assumptions.

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Date

Final
Commercial in confidence

14

Value for Money conclusion – Value for Money Risks
Risks identified in our audit plan Findings Conclusion

Procurement and contract

management arrangements

The 2018/19 Annual Governance 

Statement, the work of internal audit 

and our own 2018/19 Audit Finding 

Report identified the need for the 

Council to strengthen its procurement 

and contract management 

arrangements. In the prior year, we 

were unable to conclude that the 

Council had adequate arrangements in 

place in this area and  issued an ‘except 

for’ VFM conclusion opinion. Our review 

of the work of internal audit and 

discussions with management and 

those charged with governance in 

2019/20 suggest that weaknesses in the 

Council’s arrangements in this area 

remain.  

In view of this, the adequacy of the 

Council’s procurement and contract 

management arrangements, continues 

to represent a significant risk to our 

VFM conclusion. We will review the 

Council’s procurement and contract 

management arrangements to 

determine whether they ensure the 

Council can demonstrate procurement 

processes and contracts ensure overall 

value for money. The audit team will 

convene an internal national quality 

panel to determine whether sufficient 

progress has been made to remove the 

‘except for’ VFM Conclusion. 

.

In the prior year, we were unable to conclude that the Council had 

adequate arrangements in place in this area and issued an ‘except for’ VFM 

conclusion opinion. Our review of the work of Internal Audit and discussions 

with officers, management and those charged with governance in 2019/20 

suggest that weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements in this area remain. 

The 2019/20 Head of Internal Audit opinion provided only restricted 

assurance in relation to procurement arrangements. It also identified 4 

specific contracts where only restricted assurance could be provided, where 

the level of compliance identified places the system objectives at risk. 

There were two smaller contracts where the Head of Internal Audit was 

able to provide no assurance, although the value of these were immaterial. 

We do note that, there were 8 contracts where either substantial or 

unqualified assurance was provided.

Internal Audit's work on procurement arrangements identified a number of 

issues, which included contracts being allowed to ‘roll over’ rather than 

extensions being formally authorised, failure to complete the Council’s pre-

contract checklist in a timely manner, failure to conduct purchases over 

£100,000 in accordance with the Council’s contract standing orders and 

inadequate timely market testing of certain contracts to inform effective 

decision making.

During 2019/20, Internal Audit completed their review of the award of the 

Council's waste contract. The contract was awarded to an external 

contractor from 1 April 2017. The value of the contract is circa £1.86 million 

per annum. Internal Audit has identified a number of weaknesses in the 

procurement of the existing waste contract. For example, there was a two-

year delay in completing the Council's 'pre-contract' checklist, which should 

have been completed prior to award of the contract. There were a number 

of other issues raised.

Internal Audit has identified weaknesses on other contracts, the largest of 

which was the Maritime Streets Landscaping Project. The pre-contract 

checklist was not completed on a timely basis, insufficient evidence was 

retained to support the tender decision and no post project review was 

carried out.

(Continued overleaf)

Auditor view

These matters identify weaknesses in the Council’s 

arrangements for ensuring policies and procedures in 

relation to procurement and contract management are 

followed. The Council is failing to demonstrate and apply 

the principles and values of sound governance in its 

procurement arrangements. This is leading to ineffective 

procurement of supplies and services to support the 

delivery of strategic priorities. This failure to adhere to 

Council purchasing and contract standing orders means it 

is difficult for the Council to demonstrate that it has 

achieved value for money in all procurement decisions. 

Furthermore, these weakness increase the risk of fraud in 

procurement and increase the potential for legal challenge 

from unsuccessful potential suppliers. 

We are not satisfied that our prior year recommendation 

that the Council ensure that the purchasing and contract 

management standing orders are followed in all 

procurement decisions has been addressed. For the 

second year we are unable to conclude that the Council 

has adequate arrangements in place in this area. We will 

therefore issue an ‘except for’ opinion. As this is the 

second year that we have issued an except for conclusion, 

we have given serious consideration to the exercise of a 

statutory recommendation under section 24, schedule 7 of 

the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. We have 

determined that, in view of the strengthening of 

arrangements towards the end of the 2019-20 financial 

year, it is not appropriate to issue a section 24 at this time. 

However, we are continuing to monitor progress in this 

area and, if weaknesses persist, will review the use of our 

wider statutory powers.

(Continued overleaf)

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Date

Final
Commercial in confidence

15

Value for Money conclusion – Value for Money Risks
Risks 

identified in 

our audit plan

Findings Conclusion

Procurement

and contract

management

arrangements

The contracts and procurements referenced above are historic, with audit work concluding 

during 2019-2020. Once the concerns were highlighted to the Audit and Governance 

Committee, the project managers were instructed to attend and provide assurances to 

Members. Subsequent contract audits have received normal levels of assurance including 

the significant leisure outsourcing and several housing maintenance contracts. A change in 

the process that was implemented with the Leisure outsourcing and Revenues & Benefits 

insourcing was the requirement to ensure external support was in place. Works contracts 

already had external support for the “works” elements, but the Council added in legal 

advice, sector/market specific support and any other expertise depending on the contract. 

Some of the legal aspects of contracting have been incorporated into the Head of Legal 

and Governance position and contract management into the Director of People and Place. 

The need for this strengthening of corporate management was identified in 2019-2020 in 

order to ensure that the concerns with procurement, leasing and contract management did 

not recur. The strengthening of arrangements in this area has largely taken place during 

the 2020/21 year. The Director of People and Place was appointed in March 2020 to 

provide oversight of the Council’s ‘front facing services’, including the existing waste 

contract. A project management officer and new project management framework has also 

been established, which will oversee all significant projects, contracts and decisions made 

by the Council.

The Council has a Purchasing Officer in place, which allows a more specialised resource to 

guide and advise managers. The procurement audit identified a number of contracts that 

had not been market-tested for a number of years and these have all been addressed. The 

Purchasing Officer, supported by the Head of Legal and Governance, has taken ownership 

of the contract register to ensure that contracts are market-tested with a reasonable 

frequency. The Purchasing Officer is involved in all procurements that go onto the Chest 

system.

At the mid-point of 2019 the Associate Director for Regeneration left and the Council began 

working with Cumbria County Council project specialists for these areas of expenditure. 

The procurement exercises included some works, but mainly services and these were 

procured through the County’s arrangements. This has led to an adoption of a version of 

the County procedures, which is being rolled out in March 2021. Officers are now required 

to complete a project management template and decision template for all significant 

projects and contracts. It is positive that, the Council is putting arrangements in place to 

address historic failings in this area. However, these arrangements are still not embedded 

and were not in place throughout 2019/20.

Management response

The Council intends to recruit to the Contracts and Procurement 

Manager position created in February 2019 and together with the 

Purchasing Officer establish a gateway to contracting and 

procurement.  The Purchasing Procedure and Contract Standing 

Orders are fit for purpose but it is recognised that continual training 

and awareness of the requirements is needed; greater expertise is 

also required and will continue to be supplemented by external 

support as and when deemed necessary.  The Council uses a 

Contract Management Checklist to guide major procurement 

exercises and ensure full compliance with the relevant 

requirements, this is another area where support for managers will 

be increased.  The Management Team have established a 

Programme Board which will meet monthly and all major projects, 

significant projects and the Capital Programme are within its remit. 

Project Sponsors will attend to propose, bid, report, monitor and 

close projects and schemes.  Following on from the work on major 

projects with Cumbria County Council, an approach to project 

management has been introduced which fits with the incorporation 

of the Programme Board and will provide a single route for projects 

and proposals. The delegation to the Programme Board will be 

considered once it is fully operational (April 2021).  Contract 

management is currently under review with support from various 

external parties and the proposed restructure of the establishment 

will have regard to the skillset required for strong contract 

management and focus attention on driving maximum benefits from 

contracts for the Council and for the community. The events of 

2020-21 have deferred the planned improvements around 

contracting and procurement and the COVID emergency powers 

have been used as necessary to maintain service delivery and 

COVID support; this relates to some short-term urgent supplies and 

services. The restructure will bring programme and project 

resources together to resource external and internal projects to 

establish and maintain consistency within their core function. This 

will support occasional project management by service managers.

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Date

Final
Commercial in confidence

16

A. Reports issued and fees

We confirm below our final reports issued and fees 

charged for the audit and provision of non-audit 

services.

Fees

Planned

£

Actual 

fees 

£

2018/19 

fees

£

Statutory audit £49,362 73,662 47,362

Fee variations are subject to PSAA approval.

Reports issued

Report Date issued

Audit Plan July 2020

Audit Findings Report March 2021

Annual Audit Letter April 2021

Audit fee variation

As outlined in our audit plan, the 2019-20 scale fee 

published by PSAA of £39,362 assumes that the scope 

of the audit does not significantly change. There are a 

number of areas where the scope of the audit has 

changed, which has led to additional work. These are 

set out in the following table.

Area Reason

Fee 

proposed £

IT System 

Complexity

The Council has a complex IT system which means we must 

engage our specialist IT Audit Team to complete our IT General 

Controls work. The scale fee assumes this work is delivered by the 

local audit team. The work of our IT specialist identified some 

control weaknesses which were followed up by the local audit team 

and necessitated the extension of our journals sample and extra 

audit procedures.

Additionally, due to the complexity of the IT system, we had to 

engage specialist support to extract a complete download of the 

transaction listing from the general ledger. Again the scale fee 

assumes this work is delivered by the local audit team. 

7,250

Covid-19  

Significant 

Risk

Fundamental to our audit response to COVID 19 was working with 

you to understand the arrangements the Authority has in place to 

address relevant risks in respect of Covid-19 in its accounts 

preparation. We also reviewed the appropriateness of your 

disclosures, including those in respect of any estimation 

uncertainties around for example PPE and Pensions asset 

valuations.

3,500

Covid-19-

remote 

working

This reflects the additional time it has taken us to deliver the 

2019/2020 audit, in view of remote working arrangements and 

additional time it has taken to obtain sufficient, appropriate audit 

evidence remotely. 

7,400

Audit Delays There have been significant delays in the return of sample evidence 

in relation to our testing of income, expenditure, debtors, creditors, 

cut off and journals. There have also been long delays in the 

provision of evidence to support the valuation of the Council's Land, 

Building and Dwellings. A richer skill mix than planned has been 

required to work with the Council and its valuer to obtain the 

required evidence and complete the testing.

6,150

Total 24,300

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Date

Final
Commercial in confidence

17

A. Reports issued and fees continued

Fees for non-audit services

Service

Proposed

Fees £

Audit related services 

Certification of Housing capital receipts grant

5,000

Certification of Housing Benefit Claim 41,100

Total non-audit fees (excluding VAT) 46,100

Non- audit services

• For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant 

Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council. The table 

above summarises all non-audit services which were identified.

• We have considered whether non-audit services might be perceived 

as a threat to our independence as the Council’s auditor and have 

ensured that appropriate safeguards are put in place. 

The above non-audit services are consistent with the Council’s policy on 

the allotment of non-audit work to your auditor.

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Date

Final
Commercial in confidence

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member 

firms, as the context requires.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a 

separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one 

another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee  

29 July 2021 

Housing Benefit Assurance Process 
 

   

Report from:   Director of Resources 

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    None 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  The Housing Benefit Assurance Process (HBAP) for the DWP housing benefit 

subsidy claim for the year ended 31 March 2020 is complete. 

 

1.2 The process resulted in an amended subsidy claim, a qualification letter and 

Reporting Accountant’s report.  The HBAP is undertaken by Grant Thornton on 

the Council’s behalf. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee receive the 

Housing Benefit Assurance Process report. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 Grant Thornton have produced the Reporting Accountants’ report (Appendix 1) 

concerning the Housing Benefit Assurance Process for the year ended 31 March 

2020. 

 

3.2 The process produced an amended claim and a qualification letter. 

 

3.3 The work undertaken to audit the subsidy claim is a series of housing benefit 

claims sampled from each headline type of claim and each area where there 

have been any previous errors or the initial sample produces an error. 

 

3.4 The initial sample work and any additional sample work is performed by Internal 

Audit to provide independence and separation from the Benefits Service.  This 

approach is only possible because of the expertise within the Internal Audit team. 

 

3.5 Any errors identified by Internal Audit are provided to the Benefits Team to 

review and where necessary, to change. 

Page 53

Agenda Item 11



 

3.6 Grant Thornton review the sampling carried out by Internal Audit and identify any 

further additional work required.  The results of the re-performance lead to either 

amendments to the subsidy claim or an extrapolation of the errors where it is not 

possible to isolate the particular issue. 

 

3.7 The HBAP is reported to the DWP for review and for decision. 

 

3.8 When considering the HBAP the DWP requested assurances from the Council 

that improvements would be introduced to reduce errors. 

 

3.9 The following assurances have been agreed with the Revenues and Benefits 

Service Manager: 

 

1. Our Quality Officers now undertake sample checks on overpayments in 

addition to the normal quality checking of determinations; 

2. Targeted checks are in place where quality checks identify particular officers 

that require certain training or mentoring; 

3. Mentoring/shadowing for staff returning from long periods of absence is in 

place; 

4. Continuous checking of high value overpayments by the Internal Audit 

Department with any errors reviewed by the Benefits Team; 

5. We have experienced recruitment difficulties, long serving Officers have left 

through natural retirement and the experience we lose has had an impact; to 

mitigate this we have introduced 2 Benefit Specialist roles to provide training 

and mentoring for the Benefits Team and to support work on complex claims; 

6. We were unable to deliver the intended training for 2020 due to COVID-19 

and I confirm that we are planning to deliver training in 2021 – this is external 

training to support the internal training and mentoring that we will be able to 

support once we have recruited the 2 Benefit Specialists. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Consultation is not relevant to the recommendation. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternative options as the report is presented for noting.  

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 

Committee is charged with that role. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

Page 54

Agenda Item 11



7.1.1 The settlement of the subsidy claim is provided for in the Council’s earmarked 

reserves.  The resources to deliver the assurances are within the core budget.  

There are no procurement implications arising from this report.  

 

Legal  

7.1.2 The Council must retain a Reporting Accountant for the purposes of auditing the 

DWP housing benefit subsidy claim; Grant Thornton is engaged in that role for 

the Council. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report is for 
information. 

 

Contact Officers  

S M Roberts directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Housing Benefit (Subsidy) Assurance Process 2020 

 

Page 55

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 
110 Queen Street 
Glasgow 
G13 BXT 
 

T +44 (0)141 223 0891 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

   

 
   

   

Chartered Accountants. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. 
Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton 

UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton 
International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. 
GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or om issions. 

Please see grantthornton.co.uk for further details.  

grantthornton.co.uk 

Commercial in confidence 

Our ref: GT/NORTH/GK/BBC/19/20 
Your ref:  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dear Sir/ Madam 

Housing Benefit (Subsidy) Assurance Process 2020              

Module 6 DWP Reporting Framework Instruction (Applicable to England only)  

Reporting accountants’ report for the Housing Benefit Subsidy claim form MPF720A, year ended 

31 March 2020 

This report is produced in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter with the Barrow in 

Furness Borough Council dated 25 July 2018 and the standardised engagement terms in Appendix 2 of 

HBAP Module 1 2019/20 issued by the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) for the purpose of 

reporting to the Section 151 Officer of Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council (the ‘Local Authority’) and the 

DWP.  

 

Our report is prepared solely for the confidential use of the Local Authority and the DWP and solely for 

the purpose of facilitating the claim for Housing Benefit Subsidy on form MPF720A dated 27 April 2020.  

This report should not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole (save as otherwise permitted by the 

Standardised Engagement Terms) or in part, without our prior written consent. Without assuming or 

accepting any responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any party other than the local authority 

and DWP, we acknowledge that the local authority and/or DWP may be required to disclose this report 

to parties demonstrating a statutory right to see it. 

This report is designed to meet the agreed requirements of Local Authority and the DWP as described in 

the DWP HBAP reporting framework instruction 2019/20. 

This report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied by any other party for any 

purpose or in any context. Any party other than the Local Authority and the DWP which obtains access 

to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on this report (or any part of it) will do so entirely at its own 

risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we accept no responsibility or liability in respect of our work 

or this report to any other party and shall not be liable for any loss, damage or expense of whatsoever 

nature which is caused by the reliance of anyone other than the addressees on our work or this report.  

 
 
 

Housing Benefit Unit 
Housing Delivery Division 
DWP Business Finance & Housing Delivery Directorate 
Room B120D 
Warbreck House 
Blackpool 
Lancashire 
FY2 0UZ 
 
 
And: Section 151 Officer of Barrow in Furness Borough Council 

7 May 2021 

 

Page 57

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 2 

Commercial in confidence 

Respective responsibilities of the Local Authority and the reporting accountant  
 
We conducted our engagement in accordance with HBAP Modules 1 and 6 2019/20 issued by the DWP, 

which highlight the terms under which DWP has agreed to engage with reporting accountants.  
As Section 151 Officer of the Local Authority, you have responsibilities under the Income-related 

Benefits (Subsidy to Authorities) Order 1998. You are also responsible for ensuring that the Local 

Authority maintains accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy, at any time, the 

financial position of the Local Authority. It is also the Section 151 Officer’s responsibility to extract 

relevant financial information from the Local Authority’s accounting records, obtain relevant information 

held by any officer of the Local Authority and complete the attached form MPF720A in accordance with 

the relevant framework set out by DWP. 

 

Our approach  

For the purpose of the HBAP engagement we have been provided with a signed copy of form MPF720A 

2019/20 dated 27 April 2020 by the Section 151 Officer. The Section 151 Officer remains solely 

responsible for the completion of the MPF720A and is the signatory on the local authority’s certificate on 

claim form MPF720A.  

Our engagement was carried out in accordance with the DWP reporting framework instruction which has 

been prepared in accordance with the International Standard on Related (ISRS) 4400, Engagement to 

perform agreed-upon-procedures regarding financial information. The purpose of the engagement is to 

perform the specific test requirements determined by the DWP on the defined sample basis as set out in 

HBAP Modules of the HBAP reporting framework instruction on the Local Authority’s form MPF720A 

dated 27 April 2020 and to report the results of those procedures to the Local Authority and the DWP.  

The results of these are reported on in appendices A, B, C and D. 
 
Inherent limitations  
 

The procedures specified in DWP’s HBAP Reporting framework instruction does not constitute an 

examination made in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, the objective of which 

would be the expression of assurance on the contents of the local authority’s claim for Housing Benefit 

subsidy on form MPF720A. Accordingly, we do not express such assurance. Had we performed 

additional procedures or had we performed an audit or review of the local authority’s claim for Housing 

Benefit subsidy on form MPF720A in accordance with generally accepted auditing or review standards, 

other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. This report relates 

only to the Local Authority’s form MPF720A and does not extend to any financial statements of the Local 

Authority, taken as a whole.  

This engagement will not be treated as having any effect on our separate duties and responsibilities as 

the external auditor of the Local Authority’s financial statements. Our audit work on the financial 

statements of the Local Authority is carried out in accordance with our statutory obligations and is 

subject to separate terms and conditions. Our audit report on the Local Authority’s financial statements 

is made solely to the Local Authority’s members, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit 

and Accountability Act 2014. Our audit work was undertaken so that we might state to the Local 

Authority’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no 

other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to 

anyone other than the Local Authority and the Local Authority’s members, as a body, for our audit work, 

for our audit reports, or for the opinions we have formed in respect of that audit.  

 

  

Page 58

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 3 

Commercial in confidence 

Summary of HBAP report 

Summary of Initial Testing 

In accordance with HBAP modules an initial sample of cases was completed for all general expenditure 

Cells. We have re-performed a sample of the Local Authority’s testing and confirm the tests we have 

carried out concur with the Local Authority’s results: 

Cell 011  Non HRA Rent Rebates 

One case which had been incorrectly recorded as a backdated case and two cases where the claimants 

had been underpaid due to errors in the rent figure used to calculate the benefit paid. Due to the rent 

errors, the remaining cases within cell 011 were reviewed and no further issues were identified.  See 

appendix B for further details. 

 

Cell 055  HRA Rent Rebates 

Cell 055 HRA Rent Rebates - errors in income assessment 

One case was found where an incorrect income assessment led to the overpayment of benefit. As it was 

not possible to correctly establish the total error for amendment for the above errors, additional testing of 

40 cases was completed from the sub-population of Cell 055.  

Cell 094  Rent Allowances 

Cell 094 – misclassification of expenditure between cells 096 and 098 

Our testing of Cell 094 identified one case (value £5,484) where £10 was incorrectly recorded in cell 096 

rather than cell 098. As cell 096 has a 60% subsidy rate, compared to cell 098 which has 100%, we 

concluded that such misclassifications of expenditure could only result in an underclaim of subsidy. No 

additional work has therefore taken place and no amendment made for this error. 

Cell 094 Rent Allowances - errors in income assessment 

Three claims where errors in the income assessment resulted in an overpayment of benefit paid or a 

misclassification of expenditure. As this error results in an overpayment of benefit, additional testing of 

40 cases was completed from the sub-population of non-passported cases in Cell 094.  

Cell 094 Rent Allowances - incorrect rent figure 

One case where an underpayment was incorrectly created for the period due to an incorrect amendment 

to rent. As it was not possible to correctly establish the total error for amendment for the above error, 

additional testing of 40 cases was completed from the full population of Cell 094. 

Results of the above testing can be found in Appendix A and B. 

Completion of Modules 

Completion of Module 2 

We have completed the uprating checklist which has been cross referred to screenshots from the 
Housing Benefit system, which confirmed the parameters in use in 2019/20 were correct and no issues 
were identified. 

Completion of Module 5  

We have completed the questionnaire for the appropriate software supplier and no issues were 

identified.  

Summary of testing arising from Cumulative Assurance Knowledge and Experience  

In line with the requirements of HBAP Modules we have undertaken CAKE testing based upon the 

preceding Qualification Letter. The Authority has completed testing of the sub populations for: 

• Non-HRA Rent Rebates – errors in backdated awards cell – see Appendix C 

Page 59

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 4 

Commercial in confidence 

• HRA Rent Rebates - errors in income assessment (non-passported cases) (errors identified 

and extrapolated - see Appendix A). 

• HRA Rent Rebates - incorrect classification of eligible overpayments (errors identified and 

extrapolated - see Appendix A and claim form amended for errors identified in sub-population 

of overpayments over £1,200- see Appendix C). 

• HRA Rent Rebates - incorrect classification of prior year eligible overpayments (errors identified 

and extrapolated - see Appendix A and claim form amended for errors identified in sub-

population of overpayments over £1,200- see Appendix C). 

• Rent Allowances - errors in income assessments (non-passported cases) (errors identified and 

extrapolated - see Appendix A). 

• Rent Allowances - incorrect classification of eligible overpayments (errors identified and 

extrapolated - see Appendix A and claim form amended for errors identified in sub-population 

of overpayments over £1,200- see Appendix C). 

• Rent Allowances - incorrect classification of prior year eligible overpayments (errors identified 

and extrapolated - see Appendix A and claim form amended for errors identified in sub-

population of overpayments over £1,200- see Appendix C). 

We have re-performed a sample of the Authority’s testing and confirm the tests we have carried out 

concur with the Authority’s results.  These results are outlined in the appropriate appendix. 

Summary paragraph/ending of letter 

For the form MPF720A dated 27 April 2020 for the year ended 31 March 2020 we have completed the 

specific test requirements detailed in the DWP reporting framework instruction HBAP and have identified 

the following results set out in Appendix A, B, C and D. 

Firm of accountants:  

Grant Thornton UK LLP 

Office:  

110 Queen Street  
Glasgow  
G13 BXT 
 

Contact details: 

Gareth Kelly 

0141 223 0891 

Gareth.kelly@uk.gt.com 

 

Signature / stamp..……  

Date………………………07 May 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 60

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 5 

Commercial in confidence 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A Exceptions/errors found 

Cell 055 Errors in income assessment (non-passported cases) 
Cell 055 Rent Rebates (Tenant of HRA Properties) 
Cell Total: £5,396,662 
Cell Total: £584,516 - sub population 
Cell Population: 1714 cases 
Cell Population: 205 cases – sub population 

 

Our prior year qualification letter identified that the Local Authority had incorrectly calculated earned 

income resulting in an overpayment of benefit.  During our initial testing, 3 cases (value £7,231 where 

the assessment was based on earned income were tested and 1 error was identified. this error resulted 

in an overpayment of housing benefit to a total of £6 in 2019/20 due to miscalculating the claimants 

earned income.  

Given the nature of the population and the errors found in the previous claim, an additional sample of 40 

cases where an assessment in the subsidy period was based upon earned income was tested. This 

additional testing identified 1 case (value £3,312.48) with errors which resulted in the overpayment of 

housing benefit of £16 in 2019/20 due to miscalculating the claimants earned income. Our testing also 

identified 1 case (value £2,530) with an error which resulted in misclassification of expenditure between 

cells 61, 65 and 67.  

During our additional testing we identified 9 cases (value £34,175) where an error in the assessment of 

earned income resulted in no error in the amount of housing benefit awarded. In one further case our 

additional testing identified 1 case (value £2,530) where errors in the assessment of earned income 

resulted in an underpayment of housing benefit to a total of £6 in 2019/20 due to miscalculating the 

claimants earned income. As there is no eligibility to subsidy for benefit which has not been paid, the 

underpayment (or nil impact) identified does not affect and has not, therefore, been classified as errors 

for subsidy extrapolation purposes. 

  

Page 61

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 
 

 

 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 6 

Commercial in confidence 

 

 

  

 

Sample: Movement / brief 

note of error: 

Original Cell 

total - sub-

population: 

Sample error: Sample value: Percentage error 

rate: 

Cell adjustment: 

    [SP] [SE] [SV] [SE/SV] [SE/SV times SP] 

Initial sample – 3 

cases 

1 error in income 

assessment 

584,516 5 7,231   

Additional sample 

- 40 cases 

2 errors in income 

assessment 

584,516 15 120,771   

Combined Sample 

– 43 cases 

3 errors in income 

assessment 

584,516 20 128,002 0.02 93 

Adjustment Combined Sample. 

Cell 61 overstated 

   0.02 (93) 
 

Total 

Corresponding 

adjustment  

Total 

understatement of 

Cell 65  

      100 

Total 

Corresponding 

adjustment 

Total overstatement 

of cell 67 

    (7) 

P
age 62

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
Grant Thornton UK LLP. 7 

Cell 67 Incorrect classification of eligible overpayments 

Cell 67 Overpaid (HRA) Rent Rebates (Current Year) eligible overpayments 

Cell Total: £35,629 

Cell Total: £ 36,757 

Cell Population: 253 cases 

Cell Population: 245 cases - sub population 

Headline Cell: £5,396,662 

 

It was identified in the 2018/19 claim and reported in the qualification letter for that year that Cell 67 

included overpayments that should properly have been classified as Cell 65 LA error and administrative 

delay overpayments and Cell 66 technical overpayments. Testing within the initial discovery sample for 

2019/20 included 3 cases (value £286) within Cell 67 eligible overpayments and in all cases the 

overpayments were classified appropriately. Additional 40+ testing was undertaken of Cell 67 

overpayments in response to the prior year issues mentioned above. 

Additional Testing 

Testing of an additional random sample of 40 cases identified 4 cases (total value £886) where the dates 

had been incorrectly applied and part of the overpayment should have been classified in Cell 65 (LA error 

and administrative delay overpayments) not Cell 67. Consequently, Cell 67 is overstated, and Cell 65 is 

correspondingly understated, and there is no effect on Cell 055. Values ranged in value from £11 to £678.  

Testing also identified 2 cases (total value £11) where the overpayment was inappropriately raised and 

should have been classed as expenditure attracting full rate subsidy in cell 061. Consequently, Cell 67 is 

overstated and Cell 61 is correspondingly understated and there is no effect on Cell 055. Values were £9 

and £2. 

The Authority has continued to monitor HRA Rent Rebate high value overpayments as reported in our 

previous qualification letter. The procedures in place require an independent review of all cases where the 

amount in the overpayment Cell exceeds £1,200. We have confirmed that the necessary independent 

reviews were undertaken prior to submission of this year's claim form. The outcome of these reviews is 

reflected in the certified claim form, as amended. We have re-performed a sample of the reviews 

completed and agreed with the Authority’s findings.   

 

 

Page 63

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 
 

 
 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 8 

Commercial in confidence 

 

Sample: Movement / brief 
note of error: 

Original Cell total - 
sub-population: 

Sample 
error: 

Sample 
value: 

Percentage error 
rate: 

Cell adjustment: 

    [SP] [SE] [SV] [SE/SV] [SE/SV times SP] 

Initial sample - 3 cases No errors found  36,757 0 286   

Additional sample - 40 
cases 

4 classification errors 36,757 897 5,806   

Combined Sample - 44 
cases 

4 classification errors 36,757 897 6,091 14.72% 5,411 

Adjustment: Cell 061 
Combined Sample. 
Cell 61 understated 

   0.18% 65 

Adjustment: Cell 065 
Combined Sample. 
Cell 65 understated 

   14.55% 5,346 

Corresponding 
adjustment: Cell 067 

Combined Sample. 
Cell 67 overstated 

   14.72% 5,411 

P
age 64

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 1



 
 

 
 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 9 

Commercial in confidence 

Cell 72 Incorrect classification of prior years eligible overpayments 

Cell 72 Overpaid (HRA) Rent Rebates (Prior Years) Eligible overpayments 

Cell Total: £28,849 

Cell Total: £19,590 - sub population 

Cell Population: 114 cases 

Cell Population: 103 cases - sub population 

Headline Cell: £5,396,662 

 

It was identified in the 2018/19 claim and reported in the qualification letter for that year that Cell 72 

included overpayments that should properly have been classified as Cell 70 Prior Years LA Error and 

administrative delay overpayments. Testing within the initial sample for 2019/20 included 1 case within 

Cell 72 eligible overpayments (value £1) that was correctly included in Cell 72. 

Additional 40+ testing was undertaken of Cell 72 overpayments in response to the prior year issues 

mentioned above. 

Additional Testing 

Testing of an additional random sample of 40 cases identified 9 cases (value £2,061) where the 

overpayment was caused by errors caused by the inaccurate recording of information by the local 

authority. Subsequently part of the overpayment should have been classified in Cell 070 (Prior Years LA 

error and administrative delay overpayments) not Cell 72. Consequently, Cell 072 is overstated, and Cell 

070 is correspondingly understated. There is no impact on Cell 055.  

The Authority has continued to monitor high value HRA Rent Rebate overpayments as reported in our 

previous qualification letter. The procedures in place require an independent review of all cases where 

the amount in the overpayment Cell exceeds £1,200. We have confirmed that the necessary 

independent reviews were undertaken prior to submission of this year's claim form. The outcome of 

these reviews is reflected in the certified claim form, as amended. We have re-performed a sample of 

the reviews completed and agreed with the Authority’s findings. 

Page 65

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 
 

 
 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 10 

Commercial in confidence 

Sample: 
Movement / brief note 
of error: 

Original Cell 
total - sub-
population: 

Sample 
error: 

Sample 
value: 

Percentage 
error rate: 

Cell 
adjustment: 

    [SP] [SE] [SV] [SE/SV] 
[SE/SV times 

SP] 

Initial sample - 1 cases 0 classification errors 19,590 0 1   

Additional sample - 40 
cases 

9 classification errors 19,590 2,061 6,924   

Combined Sample - 42 
cases 

9 classification errors 19,590 2,061 6,925 29.76% 5,829 

Adjustment: Cell 70 understated 19,590 2,061 6,925 29.76% (5,829) 

Total Corresponding 
adjustment 

Total overstatement of 
Cell 72 

19,590 2,061 6,925 29.76% 5,829 

P
age 66

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 1



 
 

 
 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 11 

Commercial in confidence 

Cell 094 Errors in rent figure used 
Cell 094 Rent Allowances  
Cell Total: £10,484,310 
Cell Population: 2677 cases 

 

It was identified in the 2018/19 claim and reported in the qualification letter for that year that Cell 94 

included 1 case where an incorrect rent figure was used in the award of benefit. Additional 40+ testing 

was undertaken from Cell 94, to ensure correct rent figures had been used in the award of benefit. 

Testing within the initial sample for 2019/20 identified one error in relation to rent figures used and we 

completed additional 40+ testing of rent figures used for cell 094 payments in response to the issue 

mentioned above. 

Additional Testing 

Testing of an additional random sample of 40 cases identified 1 case (value £4,653) where an incorrect 

rent figure was used. The use of the incorrect rent resulted in an underpayment of benefit of £45 in 

2019/20. As there is no eligibility to subsidy for benefit which has not been paid, the underpayment (or 

nil impact) identified has not been classified as errors for subsidy extrapolation purposes. 

  

Page 67

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 12 

Commercial in confidence 

Cell 094 Errors in income assessment (non- passported cases) 
Cell 094 Rent Allowances 
Cell Total: £10,484,310 
Cell Total: £1,297,486 - sub population 
Cell Population: 2677 cases 
Cell Population: 384 cases - sub population 

 

Our prior year qualification letter identified that the Local Authority had incorrectly calculated earned 

income resulting in an overpayment of benefit.  During our initial testing, 4 cases (value £12,163) where 

the assessment was based on earned income were tested. We identified 1 case (value £1,646) which 

resulted in the misclassification of expenditure between cells 103, 113 and 114. In a further case (value 

£3,441) an error in the income calculations resulted in an underpayment of £15 which has not been 

classified as an error for subsidy extrapolation purposes as there is no eligibility to subsidy for benefit 

which has not been paid, though it did include a £1 misclassification between cell 103 and cell 113. 

Given the nature of the population and the errors found in the previous claim, an additional sample of 40 

cases where an assessment in the subsidy period was based upon earned income was tested.  

Additional Testing 

This additional testing identified: 

11 cases (value £39,259) with errors which resulted in an overpayment of housing benefit to a total of 

£3,091 in 2019/20 due to miscalculating the claimants earned income.  The errors ranged from £37 to 

£931. 

Our further testing identified 3 cases (value £6,895) with errors which resulted in an underpayment of 

housing benefit to a total of £108 in 2019/20 due to miscalculating the claimants earned income. The 

errors ranged from £1 to £105.  As there is no eligibility to subsidy for benefit which has not been paid, 

the underpayment identified does not affect and has not, therefore, been classified as errors for subsidy 

extrapolation purposes. 

 
 
 
 

Page 68

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 
 

 
 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 13 

Commercial in confidence 

Sample: Movement / brief 
note of error: 

Original Cell 
total - sub-
population: 

Sample 
error: 

Sample 
value: 

Percentage 
error rate: 

Cell adjustment: 

  [SP] [SE] [SV] [SE/SV] [SE/SV times SP] 

Initial sample – 4 
cases 

Two errors in income 
assessment 

1,297,486 0 12,163   

Additional sample - 
40 cases 

15 errors in income 
assessment 

1,297,486 3,091 133,474   

Combined Sample - 
46 cases 

9 errors in income 
assessment 

1,297,486 3,091 145,637 2.12 (26,536) 

Adjustment 
Combined Sample. 
Cell 102 overstated 

   0.56 7,278 

Adjustment 
Combined Sample. 
Cell 103 overstated 

   1.44 18,735 

Adjustment 
Combined Sample. 
Cell 114 overstated 

   0.04 523 

Total 
Corresponding 

adjustment 

Total understatement 
of Cell 113 

   2.16 (26,536) 

Additional error – 
adjustment to cell 

121 

Total understatement 
of Cell 121 

   0.01 (169) 

Additional error – 
adjustment to cell 

121 

Total understatement 
of Cell 121 

   0.28 (3,593) 

P
age 69

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 1



 
 

 
 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 14 

Commercial in confidence 

Cell 114 Incorrect classification of eligible overpayments 
Cell 114 Overpaid Rent Allowances (Current Year) 
Cell Total: £118,033  
Cell Total: £76,137- sub population 

Cell Population: 504 cases 

Cell Population: 481 cases - sub population 

Headline Cell: £11,834,443 

 

It was identified in our prior year qualification letter that Cell 114 included overpayments that should 

have been classified as Cell 113 LA error and administrative delay overpayments. Testing within the 

initial sample for 2019/20 included 7 cases within Cell 114 eligible overpayment and in 2 cases (value 

£2,710) the overpayments were classified incorrectly. Additional 40+ testing was undertaken of Cell 114 

overpayments in response to the issues identified in 2018/19. 

Additional Testing 

Testing of an additional random sample of 40 cases identified 2 cases (total value £319) where there 

was a delay in processing changes in income and part of the overpayment should have been classified 

in Cell 113 (LA error and administrative delay overpayments) not Cell 114. Consequently, Cell 114 is 

overstated and Cell 113 is correspondingly understated, there is no effect on Cell 094. The value of 

these errors was £4 and the errors in both cases was £2. Our additional testing identified a further case 

(total value £313) where an adjustment was incorrectly made to Cell 114 in relation to a system created 

underpayment. Cell 114 was understated and Cell 103 overstated by £872. 

The Authority has continued to monitor high value Rent Allowance overpayments as reported in our 

previous qualification letter. The procedures in place require an independent review of all cases where 

the amount in the overpayment Cell exceeds £1,200. We have confirmed that the necessary 

independent reviews were undertaken prior to submission of this year's claim form. The outcome of 

these reviews is reflected in the certified claim form, as amended. We have re-performed a sample of 

the reviews completed and agreed with the authority’s findings. 

Page 70

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 
 

 
 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 15 

Commercial in confidence 

Sample: Movement / brief note of error: Original Cell total - 
sub-population: 

 
£ 

Sample error: 
 

£ 

Sample value: 
 

£ 

Percentage 
error rate: 

 
% 

Cell 
adjustment: 

 
£ 

    
[SP] [SE] [SV] [SE/SV] 

[SE/SV times 
SP] 

Initial sample - 7 cases 2 classification errors 76,137 61 1,371     

Additional sample - 40 cases 1 ineligible overpayment adjustment error 76,137 (872) 6,418     

Additional sample - 40 cases 2 classification errors 76,137 4 6,418     

Combined Sample - 47 
cases 

Combined Sample: Cell 114 understated  76,137 807 7,789 10.35 (7,742) 

Adjustment Combined Sample. Cell 113 understated     0.85 (631) 

Adjustment Combined Sample: Cell 102 understated    0.001 (1) 

Adjustment Combined Sample. Cell 103 overstated    11.21 8,373 

Total Corresponding 
adjustment 

Total understatement of Cell 114    10.35 (7,742) 

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 1



 
 

 
 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 16 

Commercial in confidence 

Cell 121 Incorrect classification of prior years eligible overpayments 
Cell 121 Overpaid Rent Allowances (Prior Year) Eligible overpayments 
Cell Total: £173,581 
Cell Total: £41,047 - sub population 

Cell Population: 231 cases 

Cell Population: 212 cases - sub population 

Headline Cell: £11,834,443 

 

It was identified in the 2018/19 claim and reported in the qualification letter for that year that Cell 121 

included overpayments that should properly have been classified as Cell 120 LA error and administrative 

delay overpayments. Testing within the initial sample for 2019/20 included 5 cases within Cell 121 

eligible overpayment and no errors were identified in these cases within cell 121. In response to prior 

year issues, additional 40+ testing was undertaken on Cell 121 overpayments in response to the issues 

identified in 2018/19. 

Additional Testing 

Testing of an additional random sample of 40 cases identified 2 cases (total value £83) where the dates 

have been incorrectly applied and part of the overpayment should have been classified in Cell 120 (LA 

error and administrative delay overpayments) not Cell 121. Consequently, Cell 121 is overstated and 

Cell 120 is correspondingly understated, there is no effect on Cell 094. The value of these errors was 

£31 and the errors ranged from £4 to £26.  

The Authority has continued to monitor high value Rent Allowance overpayments as reported in our 

previous qualification letter. The procedures in place require an independent review of all cases where 

the amount in the overpayment Cell exceeds £1,200. We have confirmed that the necessary 

independent reviews were undertaken prior to submission of this year's claim form. The outcome of 

these reviews is reflected in the certified claim form, as amended. We have re-performed a sample of 

the reviews completed.

Page 72

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 
 

 
 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 17 

Sample: Movement / brief note of error: 
Original Cell 
total - sub-
population: 

Sample 
error: 

Sample 
value: 

Percentage 
error rate: 

Cell  
adjustment: 

    [SP] [SE] [SV] [SE/SV] [SE/SV times SP] 

Initial sample - 0 cases No classification errors 41,047 0 1,578   

Additional sample - 40 
cases 

2 classification errors 41,047 31 7,564   

Combined Sample - 40 
cases 

Combined Sample: Cell 121 
overstated  

41,047 31 9,143 0.33 137 

Adjustment Cell 120 understated      (137) 

Total Corresponding 
adjustment 

Total overstatement of Cell 121     137 

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 1



 
 

 
 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 18 

Appendix B Observations 

Our testing of Cell 11 identified two underpayments due to rent figures being incorrectly recorded on the 

Council’s housing benefit system. As there is no eligibility to subsidy for benefit which has not been paid, 

the underpayments (or nil impact) have not been classified as errors for subsidy extrapolation purposes. 

Due to the nature of our findings we reviewed the remaining three cases and no further issues were 

identified.  

Our testing of Cell 094 identified one case (value £5,484) where £10 was incorrectly recorded in cell 096 

rather than cell 098. As cell 096 has a 60% subsidy rate, compared to cell 098 which has 100%, we 

concluded that such misclassifications of expenditure could only result in an underclaim of subsidy. No 

additional work has therefore taken place and no amendment made for this error. 

 

 

There are no other observations to report. 

  

Page 74

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 19 

Appendix C: Amendments to the claim form MPF720A 

Cell 038 Backdated Expenditure 
Cell Total: £118 now £nil  
Cell Population: 1 case 

Headline Cell: £5,168 

 

The testing identified one case, relating to a homeless claimant, where some expenditure had been 

incorrectly recorded as a backdated award. An amendment was made to remove this expenditure from 

the cell.   

 

Cell 67 Incorrect classification of eligible overpayments 

Cell 67 Overpaid (HRA) Rent Rebates (Current Year) eligible overpayments 

Cell Total: £35,629 

Cell Total: £ 8,178 sub population value 

Cell Population: 253 cases 

Cell Population: 5 cases - sub population 

Headline Cell: £5,396,662 

 

In response to the issues reported in our previous qualification letters, the Authority has continued to 

monitor high value overpayments. The procedures in place require an independent review of all cases 

where the amount in the overpayment Cell 067 exceeds £1,200. We have re-performed a sample of the 

reviews completed and have agreed with the findings.  

Our reviews identified a further 2 cases (total value £3,743) where overpayment has been caused by 

information at the council not correctly actioning information received and should have been classified in 

Cell 65 (LA error and administrative delay overpayments) not Cell 067. The error was £3,591. 

Consequently, Cell 067 was overstated by £3,591 and Cell 065 was understated by £3,591. These 

errors were corrected in the amendments made to Form MPF720A dated 7 May 2021. 

 

Cell 72 Incorrect classification of prior years eligible overpayments 

Cell 72 Overpaid (HRA) Rent Rebates (Prior Years) Eligible overpayments 

Cell Total: £28,849 

Cell Total: £19,590 - sub population 

Cell Population: 114 cases 

Cell Population: 10 cases - sub population 

Headline Cell: £5,396,662 

 

In response to the issues reported in our previous qualification letters, the Authority has continued to 

monitor high value overpayments. The procedures in place require an independent review of all cases 

where the amount in the overpayment Cell 072 exceeds £1,200. We have re-performed a sample of the 

reviews completed and have agreed with the findings.  

Our reviews identified a further 4 cases (total value £7,052) where overpayment has been caused by 

information at the council not correctly actioning information received and should have been classified in 

Cell 72 (Prior Years LA error and administrative delay overpayments) not Cell 070. The error was 

£5,015.  Consequently, Cell 072 was overstated by £5,015 and Cell 070 was understated by £5,015. 

These errors were corrected in the amendments made to Form MPF720A dated 7 May 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 75

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 20 

Cell 114 Incorrect classification of eligible overpayments 

Cell 114 Overpaid Rent Allowances (Current Year) eligible overpayments 

Cell Total: £118,033 

Cell Total: £52,781 sub population value 

Cell Population: 504 cases 

Cell Population: 26 cases - sub population 

Headline Cell: £10,484,310 

 

In response to the issues reported in our previous qualification letters, the Authority has continued to 

monitor high value overpayments. The procedures in place require an independent review of all cases 

where the amount in the overpayment Cell 114 exceeds £1,200. We have re-performed a sample of the 

reviews completed and have agreed with the findings.  

Our reviews identified a further 3 cases (total value £8,898) where overpayment has been caused by 

information at the council not correctly actioning information received and should have been classified in 

Cell 65 (LA error and administrative delay overpayments) not Cell 067. The error was £1,203. 

Consequently, Cell 067 was overstated by £1,203 and Cell 065 was understated by £1,203. These 

errors were corrected in the amendments made to Form MPF720A dated 7 May 2021. 

 
 
Cell 121 Expenditure misclassification – incorrect classification of prior year  
eligible overpayments 
Cell 121 Overpaid Rent Allowances (Prior Year) Eligible overpayments 
Cell Total: £173,581 
Cell Total: £ 139,468 - sub population 

Cell Population: 212 cases 

Cell Population: 28 cases - sub population 

Headline Cell: £10,484,310 

 

In response to the issues reported in our previous qualification letters, the Authority has continued to 

monitor high value overpayments. The procedures in place require an independent review of all cases 

where the amount in the overpayment Cell exceeds £1,200. We have re-performed a sample of the 

reviews completed and have agreed with the findings.  

Our reviews identified a further 1 case (total value £1,716) where the dates have been incorrectly 

applied and part of the overpayment should have been classified in Cell 120 (Prior Years LA error and 

administrative delay overpayments) not Cell 121. The error was £498.  Consequently, Cell 121 was 

overstated by £498, and Cell 120 was understated by £498. The error was corrected in the amendments 

made to Form MPF720A dated 7 May 2021. 

  

Page 76

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 21 

Appendix D Additional issues 

No additional issues to report.  

 

Page 77

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit Committee and Governance 

29th July 2021 

Draft Governance Statement 
 

   

Report from:   Corporate Support Manager 

Report Author:  Corporate Support Manager 

Wards:    All wards may be impacted 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  The Council has responsibility for ensuring that Council business is conducted 

with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and 

properly accounted for. Part of this governance process is the preparation and 

publication of an Annual Governance Statement which is a self assessment of 

how effective we consider our governance arrangements to be. It is a draft 

document to allow Members to provide feedback, the Final version being 

presented in September. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

Members are invited to consider the draft governance statement and provide 

feedback 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 A Management Team consisting of the following Officers were involved in 

reviewing this draft Annual Governance Statement  

 Chief Executive - Head of Paid Services 

 Director of Resources - S151 Officer 

 Director of People and Place 

 Assistant Director - Housing  

 Head of Legal and Governance - Monitoring Officer 

 Head of Internal Audit  
 
 The Council has assessed itself against the principles of good governance that 

are defined in the Local Code of Corporate Governance. 
 
 

Page 79

Agenda Item 12



4.0 Consultation  

 Not applicable 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 Not applicable 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 Good governance underpins the Council Plan priorities and supports its 

objectives. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1     There will not be financial implications arising from the governance statement 

 

Legal  

7.2     There will not be legal implications relating to the governance statement 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.3     There are no equality or diversity implications related to this report. 

 

Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

   

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

N/A   

 

Contact Officers  

Corporate Support Manager jpenfold@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete section 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Draft Governance Statement  

2   

 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

1 

2 

Add links where possible 

 

Page 80

Agenda Item 12

mailto:jpenfold@barrowbc.gov.uk


 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Version Control:  

Document Name: Annual Governance Statement 2021 

Version: Version 1 

Author: Corporate Support Manager 

Approved by: Audit and Governance Committee 

Date Approved:  

Review Date: June 2022 

Page 81

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



 

Page 1 

Annual Governance Statement – 2020-2021 

Scope and Responsibility 
 
Barrow Borough Council is responsible for delivering a wide range of statutory 

and discretionary services to the public and organisations in the area of the 

Borough.  The Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is 

conducted in accordance with law and proper standards, and that public 

money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, 

efficiently and effectively.  The Council also has a duty under the Local 

Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous 

improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to 

a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council has put in place proper 

arrangements for the governance of its affairs and facilitating the effective 

exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the management of 

risk. 

Governance 

Governance comprises the arrangements put in place to ensure that the 

intended outcomes for stakeholders are defined and achieved. 

The Council’s Governance Framework 

Effective governance in the public sector encourages improved decision 

making and efficient use of resources. Effective governance is characterised 

by robust scrutiny, which provides important pressures for improving public 

sector performance and tackling corruption. Effective governance can improve 

management and lead to better service delivery, and, ultimately, better 

outcomes. 

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes for the 

direction and control of the Council and its activities through which it accounts 

to, engages with and leads the community. It enables the Council to monitor 

the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those 

objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services. 

The system of internal control is a significant part of the governance 

framework and is designed to manage risk to a reasonable and proportionate 

level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and 

objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute 

assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-

going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement 

of Barrow Borough Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the 

Page 82

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



 

Page 2 

likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, 

and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.  

The Principles of Good Governance and the Governance Framework is 

aligned to the CIPFA/SOLACE framework Delivering Good Governance in 

Local Government which sets out seven core principles of good governance, 

these are:  

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating a strong commitment to ethical 
values, and respecting the rule of law. 

 The Council’s constitution defines the roles and responsibilities of the 
Council’s decision making, regulatory, Audit and Governance and 
Overview and Scrutiny committees. It also defines the roles of the 
statutory officers and includes the delegations that officers hold. 

 Members and officers have an induction which set includes the 
behaviours that are expected. 

 The Council’s values and behaviours was rolled out to all staff and 
Members during 2020-21. 

 A fraud hotline is in place to allow confidential reporting so that 
anonymous complaints can be investigated. 

B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement. 

 There is a process for consultation in place and a number of 
consultations were carried out in 2020/21. 

 The Council has engaged a Social Media and Public Relations provider 
to positively project the Barrow Borough Council brand and attain a 
stronger reach to customers. This will be developed through a revised 
Communications Strategy 

 The Council is developing its website to provide a key means of 
communication in an open and transparent way. 

 We provide clear recommendations to the decision making committees, 
this is by supported reasoning and evidence. We assess the financial, 
legal, health, social, economic environmental and implications as well 
risks relating to those decisions and provide Members with the outputs 
from those assessments. 
 

C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and 
environmental benefits. 

 The Council published its plan for 2020- 2024 and has identified three 
priority areas. 

 We are developing service plans to ensure we deliver the priorities 
agreed in the Council Plan 

 The Council was successful in applying for Town Deal funding for 
regeneration. 

Page 83

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



 

Page 3 

 The Council has developed ambitious plans to regenerate part of 
Barrow town centre and submitted to the Government’s Levelling Up 
Fund. 

D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of 
intended outcomes. 

 The Medium Term Financial Strategy is reviewed annually 

 The council is developing service plans to ensure we deliver the 
priorities agreed in the Council Plan  

 The Council supports and encourages staff to undertake professional 
training. 

 The Council has an effective Member training programme in place 

 Staff have regular briefings with senior management. 

 

E. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong 
public financial management. 

 The Council has a risk policy which reviewed regularly by Management 
Team and is approved by the Executive Committee. 

 The Council has corporate and operational risk registers which are 
reviewed regularly by Management team and the Audit and 
Governance Committee. 

 

F. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver 
effective accountability. 
 

 The Audit and Governance Committee has defined roles which are set 
out in the Council’s Constitution. 

 External auditors routinely attend Audit and Governance Committee 
meetings. 

 The Head of Internal Audit has access to the Chair of the Audit and 
Governance Committee. 

 Members are asked to declare any interests at the beginning of every 
committee meeting. 

 

Review of Effectiveness 

Barrow Borough Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a 

review of the effectiveness of its governance framework including the system 

of internal control. The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the 

senior managers within the Council who have responsibility for the 

development and maintenance of the governance environment, the Head of 

Page 84

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



 

Page 4 

Internal Audit’s annual report, and also by comments made by the appointed 

auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates. 

A Management Team consisting of the following Officers were involved in 

reviewing this draft Annual Governance Statement  

 Chief Executive - Head of Paid Services 

 Director of Resources - S151 Officer 

 Director of People and Place 

 Assistant Director - Housing  

 Head of Legal and Governance - Monitoring Officer 

 Head of Internal Audit  
 

The Council has assessed itself against the principles of good governance 

that are defined in the Local Code of Corporate Governance.  

In order to demonstrate that the existing governance and control 

arrangements are fit for purpose and are complied with, Corporate Support 

undertake reviews of individual departments. 

To support the self assessment we reviewed the source documents 
recommended in the CIPFA guidance schedule and identified additional 
evidence to demonstrate compliance with the supporting principals of good 
governance.   
 
In 2020 the Council invited the Local Government Association to undertake a 
Corporate Peer review and has developed plans to deliver the 
recommendations from the review.  
 
 
The Constitution 
 
The Borough of Barrow-in-Furness has updated and agreed a Constitution 
which sets out how the Council operates, how decisions are made and the 
procedures, which are followed to ensure that these are efficient, transparent 
and accountable to local people. 

Some of these processes are required by the law, while others are a matter 
for the Council to choose and set out the basic rules governing the Council's 
business. 

The Constitution is regularly reviewed to ensure it is fit for purpose. The 
review in 2020 considered delegation and procedural arrangements and also 
had regard to the recommendations of the Local Government Association 
Governance Review. Changes have also been made to address the 
implications brought about by the Coronavirus Pandemic, e.g. virtual 
meetings, when decision making was further reviewed and a Virtual Meetings 
Rules and Protocol was adopted.   

Page 85

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1

https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/the-council/barrow-council/council-constitution/


 

Page 5 

The Monitoring Officer undertakes an annual review, and this was last 
reported to Council in March 2021. The Constitution sets out the Council’s 
ethical standards for Elected Members and Officers. 

We have reviewed and adopted formal codes of conduct defining standards of 
personal behaviour for Members and Officers. The Monitoring Officer monitors 
compliance with the Member’s code of conduct. The Members code was 
reviewed in September 2020 taking account of best practice 
recommendations arising from the Committee on Standards in Public Life 
following their report on Local Government Ethical Standards which was 
published in January 2019. Revised Standards Arrangements were also 
adopted in March 2021. 
 
The Chief Executive (Head of Paid Services) has overall responsibility for 
ensuring compliance with the officer’s code of conduct.  
 
We have put in place effective systems to protect the rights of staff. We 
ensure that policies for whistle-blowing are accessible to staff and those 
contracting with the Council, and arrangements for the support of whistle-
blowers, are in place. 

The Constitution includes the Council’s Contract Standing Orders, Financial 
Regulations, committee structure, delegation powers and how the Council 
operates. 

The Section 151 Officer is responsible to the Council for ensuring that 

appropriate advice is given on all financial matters, for keeping proper 

financial records and accounts, and for maintaining an effective system of 

internal control. 

The Council takes a longer term view and publishes plans so the public are 

aware of our intended outcomes. This information can be found published in 

documents including the Council’s Priorities and the Council Plan.  

The Council has prepared and published a plan which sets out the Council’s 

priorities and a Medium Term Financial Plan which is a financial 

representation of the Council’s Vision and supports the priorities.   

The Council will enable the Chief Financial Officer to bring influence to bear 
on all material decisions and provide advice on the levels of reserves and 
balances to be retained. The Chief Financial Officer has responsibility for 
ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and 
procedures, and that expenditure is lawful. 
 
Decision making process 
 
The Council Plan 
 
The Council Plan is a strategic document under which the Council’s other 
policy framework documents sit. It communicates the Council’s Vision which 

Page 86

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1

file://///bbc-filestore/jpenfold/Downloads/4265%20BBC%20Council%20Plan%202020%20(30).pdf


 

Page 6 

specifies intended outcomes for the period from 2020 - 2024. The plan details 
how the Council will achieve the priorities. The Council plan will be supported 
by service plans which reflect the Council’s priorities. 
 
Unless delegated to Officers, Council decisions are made by a Committee 
acting under delegated powers or by Full Council. All meetings are open to 
the public unless exempt information is being discussed and we attempt to 
publish all committee agenda items under “Part 1” unless there is the need to 
preserve confidentiality where it is proper and appropriate to do so. 
 
The Council will develop and retain a management structure that provides 
leadership and creates the opportunity for staff to work effectively and 
efficiently to achieve the Council objectives. We will provide training and 
support to enable staff to develop their skills so they can achieve their full 
potential. We will develop skills on a continuing basis to improve performance, 
including the ability to scrutinise and challenge and to recognise when 
external expert advice is needed. We will ensure that the statutory officers 
have the skills, resources and support necessary to perform effectively in their 
roles and that these roles are properly understood throughout the Council. 
 
Members are provided with financial and performance reports on a regular 
basis which demonstrates how the Council achieves value for money. 
 
Agendas, reports and minutes for all Council meetings are published on the 
Council’s website. Committee Reports and Minutes 
 
Customer engagement 
 
We strive to engage with stakeholders on an individual and collective basis to 
demonstrate that we deliver services and outcomes which meet the needs 
and expectations of the public. These arrangements will recognise that 
different sections of the community have different priorities and establish 
robust processes for dealing with these competing demands. 
 
Barrow Borough Council welcomes and encourages attendance and 
contributions by the public at its meetings. Public participation guidelines were 
agreed by Council in June 2020 as part of the Council’s commitment to 
community governance and openness. 
 
The Council has recently developed an ambitious customer service strategy 
which defines how we will engage with customers and other stakeholders and 
involve them in improving our services.  
 
Partnership working 

The Council participates in formal and informal partnerships to allow for 

resources to be used more efficiently and outcomes to be achieved more 

effectively. The Council is actively involved in partnership boards that deliver 

key improvements to the Borough. 

Page 87

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/about-the-council/barrow-council/council-minutes-agendas/


 

Page 7 

We contribute to and support initiatives that benefit the residents and 
businesses in the Borough.  We ensure that partnerships are based on trust, a 
shared commitment to change and a culture that promotes and accepts 
challenge among partners. 
 
When supporting stakeholder relationships we are clear about the Terms of 
Reference and clearly define our role. Our arrangements will recognise that 
different sections of the community have different priorities and establish 
robust processes for dealing with these competing demands. 
 
Managing risk 

The Council recognises that risk management is an integral part of all 
activities and must be considered in all aspects of decision making. We have 
risk management arrangements in place including mitigating actions to 
support the achievement of the Council’s intended outcomes. We work with 
our contractors to understand our shared risks. We ensure that risk 
management is embedded into the culture of the Council, with Members and 
managers at all levels recognising that risk management is part of their job.  
 
Managing performance 

The Council’s performance management arrangements outline the approach 
taken to recovery planning and service performance for this year. The 
Executive Committee and the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will receive a 
monitoring report showing progress against priority actions and level of 
service delivery every six months. 
 
The Council produces a number of strategies and policies to ensure we 
comply with our responsibilities in terms of Use of Resources and Value for 
Money; these are published on the Council’s website. Corporate Documents 
 
Managing data 
 
The Council undertook a review of data management in preparation for the 
implementation of the General Data Protection Regulation which has 
delivered improvements to internal controls to facilitate compliance with the 
regulation. 
 
The Council has made significant investment in the IT infrastructure to 
minimise the loss of data through cyber attacks. 
 
Governance arrangements and internal control 
 
Audit and Governance Committee 
 
We maintain the Audit and Governance Committee to raise awareness and 
take the lead in ensuring high standards of conduct are embedded within the 
Council’s culture. The governance function of the Audit and Governance 
Committee includes: 

Page 88

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/about-the-council/corporate-documents/


 

Page 8 

 

 Consider reports and opinion of the internal audit function. 

 Consider specific reports from internal audit and ensure agreed 
recommendations are implemented in a reasonable time frame. 

 Consider reports and opinion of the appointed auditor. 

 Monitor the risk management process. 

 Monitor the Councils policies on the anti-fraud and anti-corruption 
strategy which are detailed in the Code of Governance. 

 
Additional corporate assurance arrangements for 2020/21 include: 

 
A review of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee was undertaken 
early in 2020 following which the name of the Committee was changed to 
Audit and Governance Committee to reflect the incorporation of the standards 
and governance arrangements and the terms of reference amended to reflect 
these and the delegations to the Monitoring Officer.  
 
The Council publishes an Annual Governance Statement, signed by the Chief 
Executive and the Chair of the Audit Committee to confirm that they are 
satisfied that we have effective governance arrangements in place. 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
The Council operates with a single Overview and Scrutiny Committee which 
can challenge a decision by the Executive Committee prior to it being 
implemented. It has a remit, which allows them to assist the Council and the 
Executive in the development of its budget and policy framework. 
Members of the Scrutiny Committee are offered formal training by an external 
provider. 
 
Internal Audit 
 
The internal audit function develops an annual audit plan which is risk based 
and it is agreed by the Director of Resources and the Audit and Governance 
Committee. The audit plan provides a structured approach to reviewing 
internal control arrangements.  
 
Based on the Plan, Internal Audit provides specific reports and 
recommendations. It also provides an Annual Report on the internal control 
arrangements which includes an audit opinion in support of the Council’s 
Annual Governance Statement as required under the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015. The opinion is derived from work carried out by Internal 
Audit during the year as part of the agreed Internal Audit Plan.   
 

 

 
 
 

Page 89

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



 

Page 9 

Head of Internal Audit Annual Opinion Statement 
 
This opinion statement is provided in support of the Council’s Annual 
Governance Statement as required under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2015.  
The opinion is derived from work carried out by Internal Audit during the year 
as part of the agreed Internal Audit Plan. The Plan for 2019/20 was developed 
to primarily provide management with independent assurance on the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control environment. 
The PSIAS state that the internal control environment comprises three key 
areas: internal control, governance and risk management processes. My 
opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control environment is based on an 
assessment of each of these key areas. 
As referred to above, there is a requirement for the “system of Internal 
Control” to include an assessment of sources of assurance, beyond just that 
of Internal Audit itself. As the Council is required to produce an Annual 
Governance Statement, sources of assurance are reflected and reviewed 
within this process, which Internal Audit are a part of; therefore the control 
environment is reviewed more fully in this way. 
 
2020/21 Year Opinion 
 
This report cannot provide reasonable assurance that the organisation’s 
framework of governance, risk management and control predominantly 
operated satisfactorily during 2020/21 due to the restrictions and limitations of 
the coronavirus pandemic. 
Conversely, I do not have evidence to confirm significant deviation from the 
control arrangements occurred. 
My detailed opinion is that, for the minimal systems reviewed, the Council has 
reasonable systems of control in place, although there are significant 
weaknesses which put some of the system objectives at risk. 
There are, however, areas where only Restricted Assurance can be provided, 
which relate to the following final reports: 
 
Covid Risk Assessment – Post Assurance Review (Draft); 
IT Procedures Review. 
 
Weaknesses found as a result of our work, together with our 
recommendations for improvement, have been included in our reports to 
senior management and Members. Additionally, any weaknesses identified 
through the Annual Governance Statement process are recorded separately 
and reflect the assurance provided from all sources both internal and external. 
 
Co-operation 

 
The successful achievement of the audit plan is dependent on the contribution 
of the 
Internal Audit resource and the Council’s staff as audit clients. I would like to 
record my appreciation f or the involvement and commitment of staff, and for 
their critical appraisal of our recommendations during the year. I would also 

Page 90

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



 

Page 10 

like to acknowledge the support shown by the Audit Committee in the delivery 
of our Plan. 
Head of internal Audit’s opinion statement for 2019/20 identified a number of 
weaknesses in internal control. The Council has produced an action plan to 
address these issues raised in the table below  

Maritime Streets Landscaping Design. 

The Council accepts the Contract Management Checklist did not deliver the 
desired outcome for this project. Remedial action will not resolve this position 
but will improve future contract management.  The Council has sort an 
alternative method for tendering and awarding contracts. 

Action   Responsible officer Completion Date 

The Contract Management 
Checklist will be replaced by 
a Project management 
approach to ensuring the all 
documentation is place at 
each stage of future contract 
processes. The Council has 
engaged external support 
from another Local Authority 
and the private sector to 
deliver training and provide 
guidance to ensure this is 
delivered effectively 

Management Team Training sessions by an 
external provider were 
rolled out to 
Management Group. 
The Council is 
continuing to develop its 
project management 
approach.  

The project Management 
approach will involve robust 
cost analysis prior to the start 
of the contract. There will be 
regular update meetings with 
the project team to address 
significant deviation from the 
initial costs.  

Project Team On-going throughout the 
project 

 

Procurement 

Payments without contract, there is an historic Grounds Maintenance contract 
from 2001 which has been rolled over. The Council accepts that the contract 
should have been renewed.  

Action  Responsible officer Completion Date 

A new contract is being 
prepared for seasonal 
baskets but this was not 
completed by the December 
31st implementation date 

Grounds 
Maintenance 
Contract Manager 

October 2021 

Page 91

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



 

Page 11 

because the resource was 
diverted to other activities. 
This has been extended for 
another season to allow 
planting for the 
spring/summer baskets and 
summer barrier baskets until 
the end of Sept. This was 
approved by the Executive 
Committee in November 
2020. 

Grounds Maintenance -this 

was extended and now 

includes playgrounds. The 

extension was signed in 2019 

until 31st May 2024.  

Grounds 
Maintenance 
Contract Manager 

Complete 

The Public Conveniences 
and Stairwell cleansing was 
retendered in 2020 and 
awarded for two years. 

Director of People 
and Place 

Complete 

The catering contract has 
been subject to a number of 
reviews, partly because the 
impact of Covid on the 
hospitality industry. A new 
catering contract has now 
been completed. 

Director of People 
and Place 

Complete 

Establish a service driven 
contract monitoring group to 
ensure contracts including 
formally extending contracts 
and retendering managed in 
line with the Council’s 
Contract Standing orders. 

Assistant Directors  This was established 

but will be subsumed 

into a wider initiative to 

improve the contract 

process. The Head of 

Legal and Governance 

will have some oversight 

of this process.  

 
Cavendish Park changing rooms. 

The Council accepts that there were a number of Contract related issues 
associated with this project. The project was completed in 2017/18 so 
remedial action will not resolve this position.  The Council will improve future 
contract management and has sort an alternative method for tendering and 
awarding contracts. 

Page 92

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



 

Page 12 

Action  Responsible officer Completion Date 

The Contract Management 
Checklist will be replaced by 
a Project management 
approach to ensuring the all 
documentation is place at 
each stage of future contract 
processes. The Council has 
engaged external support 
from another Local Authority 
and the private sector to 
deliver training and provide 
guidance to ensure this is 
delivered effectively 

Management Team Project management 
approach is continuing 
to be developed. The 
contract checklist will 
remain in place.   

The project Management 
approach will involve robust 
cost analysis prior to the start 
of the contract. There will be 
regular update meetings with 
the project team to address 
significant deviation from the 
initial costs.  

Project Team On-going throughout the 
project 

 
Refuse Collection, Recycling and Street Cleaning 2017-2024. 

The Council accepts that there were a number of Contract related issues. 
Remedial action will not resolve this position but will improve future contract 
management.  The Council will improve future contract management and has 
sort an alternative method for tendering and awarding contracts. 

Action  Responsible officer Completion Date 

The Contract Management 
Checklist will be replaced by 
a Project management 
approach to ensuring the all 
documentation is place at 
each stage of future contract 
processes. The Council has 
engaged external support 
from another Local Authority 
and the private sector to 
deliver training and provide 
guidance to ensure this is 
delivered effectively 

Management Team Project management 
approach is continuing 
to be developed. The 
contract checklist will 
remain in place.   

Page 93

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



 

Page 13 

The project Management 
approach will involve robust 
cost analysis prior to the start 
of the contract. There will be 
regular update meetings with 
the project team to address 
significant deviation from the 
initial costs.  

Project Team On-going throughout the 
project 

 
Maritime Streets Landscaping Works. 

The Council accepts that there were a number of Contract related issues. 
Remedial action will not resolve this position but will improve future contract 
management.  The Council will improve future contract management and has 
sort an alternative method for tendering and awarding contracts. 

Action  Responsible officer Completion Date 

The Contract Management 
Checklist will be replaced by 
a Project management 
approach to ensuring the all 
documentation is place at 
each stage of future contract 
processes. The Council has 
engaged external support 
from another Local Authority 
and the private sector to 
deliver training and provide 
guidance to ensure this is 
delivered effectively 

Management Team Project management 
approach is continuing 
to be developed. The 
contract checklist will 
remain in place.   

The project Management 
approach will involve robust 
cost analysis prior to the start 
of the contract. There will be 
regular update meetings with 
the project team to address 
significant deviation from the 
initial costs.  

Project Team On-going throughout the 
project 

 
The No Assurance reports relate to existing leases.  
 

Action  Responsible officer Completion Date 

The lease arrangements for 
Phoenix Business Centre are 
under consideration 

Estates Manager The Council is currently 
trying to resolve 
outstanding issues 

Page 94

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



 

Page 14 

The lease on the Lawson 
Street property is currently 
being renewed on a full rental 
basis rather than shared 
income. It is deemed that the 
new lease does not require 
an auditing clause. 

Estates Manager Complete 

 
Head of internal Audit’s opinion statement for 2018/19 identified a number of 
weakness in internal control. The Council produced an action plan to address 
the issues raised in 2018/19 and progress against these actions is in the table 
below  

Action  Responsible officer Update 

Improve the administration 
and management of stalls 
and leasing in Barrow 
Market. 

Market Supervisor Most recommendations 
have been implemented 
and this is substantially 
complete. 

Updates on the 
recommendations 
relating to the important 
issues are detailed 
below: 

Overtime levels are 
managed and monitored 
by Finance. 

Traders are regularly 
reminded and insurance 
certificates are checked 
where possible. 

Tenancy agreements 
are signed. 

Arrears: Arrears over 
£500 are challenged  

Cash: Storage 
arrangements have 
been improved.  

H&S: The Market 
Supervisor is 
responsible and is 
supported by the 
Council’s H&S adviser. 

The minor issues have 

Page 95

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



 

Page 15 

been resolved including: 

 Website being is 
updated regularly. 

Arrangements in place 
for petty cash. 

Procedures and trader 
pack are updated as 
required.  

Fire alarms and lighting 
are tested routinely. 

Arrangements for casual 
stall holders and 
guidelines in place for 
trading space. 

Review recruitment policy 
and ensure interviews are 
held in compliance with the 
policy. Review current 
grading structure. 

HR Manager / 
Management Team 

Updates on the 
recommendations 
relating to the major 
issues are detailed 
below: 

The review of the 

recruitment policy is 

complete and new 

arrangements are in 

place. The policy is 

being updated for 

publication. 

New arrangements are 

in place for high level 

posts. 

Arrangements are in 

place for assessing 

 qualifications and 

grades and; 

shortlisting consistently. 

Training as been 

provided to support this. 

Updates on the 
recommendations 
relating to the important 

Page 96

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



 

Page 16 

issues are detailed 
below: 

Appropriate 

arrangements are in 

place to ensure: 

Post approval pre 

recruitment, 

number of officers for 

selection and interviews,  

use of a formal checklist  

Retention of interview  

scoresheets, 

Redeployment, 

Appropriate criteria 

identified in the person 

specification, 

 Monitoring of Interview 

questions  

The recommendations 

relating to the minor 

issues have been 

addressed. 

Establish a service driven 
contract monitoring group to 
ensure contracts including 
formally extending contracts 
and retendering managed in 
line with the Council’s 
Contract Standing orders. 

Assistant Directors  This was established 

and is ongoing. As part 

of a wider initiative to 

improve the contract 

process the Head of 

Legal and Governance 

will have some oversight 

of this process.  

Review arrangements for 
maintaining playing fields 

Assistant Director – 
Community Services 

This review is complete 
and appointment of 
alternative service 
provision is in progress. 

 

 

Page 97

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



 

Page 17 

Impacts of COVID-19 

As lockdown measures were introduced across the country, the authority 

adjusted to the significant disruption to staffing across services and functions.  

The business continuity plans were implemented and reviewed to ensure that 

essential services continued to be delivered to our residents.  A number of 

measures were quickly introduced to ensure the safety of staff, Members and 

customers, whilst maintaining service delivery; buildings were closed to the 

public, agile and flexible ways of working were introduced, virtual meetings 

were set up and social distancing and health and safety measures were 

established. 

The Local Authority and Police and Crimes Commissioner elections were 

postponed under the Coronavirus Act 2020 and took place in May 2021. 

Following regulations made under the Coronavirus Act 2020 the May 2020 

Annual Council meeting was cancelled and appointments carried forward until 

the next Annual Meeting. Arrangements were put in place for all committee 

meetings to be held remotely and live streamed.   

The Annual Meeting for 2021 was brought forward to April to enable it to be 

held remotely whilst regulations still permitted. Since 7 May 2021 

arrangements have been made for a return to meetings in a physical venue 

adhering to covid requirements. 

The CEO has delegated powers to take such action on behalf of the Council 

as appears to them necessary in circumstances that prevent obtaining the 

necessary authority from an appropriate committee following consultation with 

the Leader of the Council, as set out in the Council’s constitution. 

In order to deliver the local authority elements of the national COVID-19 

support package of business grants, business rate reliefs and hardship relief, 

it was necessary to temporarily reassign resources and defer other priorities 

to ensure an effective response was achieved.  The new powers from 

Coronavirus legislation were implemented by the Council.  More details of the 

authority’s response can be found in the Growing Forward reports presented 

to the Executive Committee in July 2020 and March 2021. 

The majority of Council services have continued throughout although some 

services were suspended for a short period e.g. green waste collection and 

bulky waste collection. Additional waste collections were provided to minimise 

fly tipping while the Household Waste Recycling Centres were closed.  

Car parking enforcement, leisure and cultural services were affected resulting 

in additional expenditure and a loss of income to be met from the COVID-19 

emergency funding and sales, fees and charges compensation. 

Page 98

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



 

Page 18 

The Council actively supported the county wide strategic co-ordination group. 

The Council actively supported the community resilience group’s approach to  

outbreak management by delivering track and trace. 

Governance and Assurance Summary 

The Council uses its Annual Governance Statement to demonstrate that it has 

sound decision making processes in place and governance arrangements that 

are fit for purpose. 

The assurance reports received from the Heads of internal provide a useful 

indicator of the effectiveness of the Council’s governance arrangements. 

His opinion is that the Council has basically sound systems of control in place, 

although there are weaknesses which put some of the system objectives at 

risk. 

The Council accepts this opinion and has put additional arrangements in place 

to further improve and enhance our governance arrangements.  

These include a comprehensive review of the Council’s constitution which 

clarified and affirmed the extent of officer delegation. We have strengthened 

the Senior Management Team by appointing a Director of People and Place 

and a Head of Legal and Governance.  We have appointed external 

consultants to support the Council in delivering major projects and service 

improvements. 

We are engaging with other Local Authorities and the private sector to deliver 

a project management approach to contract tendering.   

The Council is undergoing a significant staff restructure which will additional 

Assistant Directors which will strengthen governance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 99

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



 

Page 19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Certification Statement  

 

The review of the governance arrangements for the financial year 2020/21 

has not highlighted any areas of major concern for the Council.  We believe 

that the existing arrangements are fit for purpose and are adequate to meet 

the Council’s corporate aims.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 100

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



 

Page 20 

Councillor Mrs A Burns          S Plum 

Chair of the Audit Committee                                Chief Executive  

 

 

Page 101

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee  

29th July 2021 

Internal Audit Annual Report  
 

   

Report from:   Head of Internal Audit 

Report Author:  Head of Internal Audit 

Wards:    None 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  Internal Audit performs audits in accordance with the approved Annual Plan 

which is based on a risk assessment of the internal control environment. 

 

1.2 The annual report for the period 2020-21 is presented in this report. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee note the 

Internal Audit Annual Report. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The Head of Internal Audit is required to produce an Annual Report and provide 

an opinion on the Council’s system of internal control. 

 

3.2 This report presents the Internal Audit annual report (Appendix 1) for 2020-21. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 The Internal Audit annual plan is agreed by the Audit and Governance 

Committee. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternative options as the report is presented for noting.  

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 

Committee is charged with that role. 

 

Page 103

Agenda Item 13



 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report.  

 

Legal  

 7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.2 This report is for information. 
 
 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Internal controls are 

inadequate. 

Compliance cannot be 

demonstrated and 

assurance cannot be 

given. 

Internal Audit annual 

plan. 

 

Contact Officers  

K Jackson audit@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Internal Audit Annual Report  

 

Page 104

Agenda Item 13



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 
 

2020/21 
 
 

July 2021 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 105

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Internal Audit Annual Report – 2020/21 Barrow Borough Council 

Page 1 

 

CONTENTS Page 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 2 

1. SERVICE BACKGROUND 5 

2. REVIEW OF PERIOD  7 

3. ANNUAL STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 9 

4. RECOMMENDATIONS AND FOLLOW UP IN THE YEAR 10 

5. QUALIFICATIONS TO THE OPINION 12 

6. PERFORMANCE  13 

APPENDIX A: PROGRESS AGAINST AUDIT PLAN 2020/21 14 

APPENDIX B: CONTRACT AUDIT 2020/21 16 

 
 
 

Page 106

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Internal Audit Annual Report – 2020/21 Barrow Borough Council 

Page 2 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Background 

The purpose of this report is to meet the Head of Internal Audit’s annual reporting 
requirements set out in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).  The Head 
of Internal Audit’s formal annual report should present an opinion on the overall 
adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control environment, and: 
 

a) Include an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and control; 
however, it should be noted that as a result of the Coronavirus pandemic the 
delivery of the Council’s Internal Audit plan has been severely restricted.  This 
report has been compiled in the required format. 

 
b) Disclose any qualifications to that opinion, together with the reasons for the 

qualification, including impairment or restriction in scope; 
 

c) Present a summary of the audit work undertaken to formulate the opinion, 
including reliance placed on work by other assurance bodies; 

 
d) Draw attention to any issues the Head of Internal Audit judges particularly 

relevant to the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement; 
 

e) Compare the work actually undertaken with the work that was planned; and 
 

f) Comment on compliance with these standards and the Internal Audit quality 
assurance programme. 

 

The PSIAS require that the Chief Audit Executive (Head of Internal Audit) should 
deliver an annual report which can be used by the organisation to inform its annual 
governance statement.  Therefore, in setting out how it meets the reporting 
requirements, this report also outlines how the Internal Audit function has supported 
the Council in meeting the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. 

 

Scope of Responsibility 

The Council is responsible for ensuring its business is conducted in accordance with 
law and proper standards.  In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is also 
responsible for ensuring that there is a sound system of internal control which 
facilitates the effective exercise of the Council’s functions and which includes 
arrangements for the management of risk. 

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather 
than to eliminate risk of failure to achieve polices, aims and objectives; it can therefore 
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.   
 

Quality Assurance 

Internal Audit operates in accordance with its Audit Charter which includes a defined 
quality assurance process, involving all documentation being subject to peer review by 
a different Auditor within the team and subsequent sign-off by the Head of Internal 

Page 107

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Internal Audit Annual Report – 2020/21 Barrow Borough Council 

Page 3 
 

Audit.  This process has been consistently maintained throughout 2020/21 and applied 
to each individual audit assignment.  Additionally, Internal Audit has met all 
performance measures relevant to the service during the year. 
 

Review of Effectiveness of Internal Control 

The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the 
effectiveness of the system of internal control.  The review of the effectiveness of the 
system of internal control is informed by the work of the internal auditors and the 
senior managers within the Authority who have responsibility for the development and 
maintenance of the internal control environment; and also by comments made by the 
external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates in the annual audit 
letter and other reports.   

 

Basis of Assurance 

We have conducted our audits in accordance with professional standards and good 
practice contained within the PSIAS and additionally from our own internal quality 
assurance systems.  We have not identified any limitations in the scope of our audit 
work in “qualifications to the opinion” within the detail of this report. 

In addition, Internal Audit have undertaken a self assessment against the requirements 
of the PSIAS, and can confirm substantial compliance. 
 

Head of Internal Audit Annual Opinion Statement 

This opinion statement is provided in support of the Council’s Annual Governance 
Statement as required under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.  The opinion is 
derived from work carried out by Internal Audit during the year as part of the agreed 
Internal Audit Plan.  The Plan for 2019/20 was developed to primarily provide 
management with independent assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
internal control environment.  

The PSIAS state that the internal control environment comprises three key areas: 
internal control, governance and risk management processes.  My opinion on the 
effectiveness of the internal control environment is based on an assessment of each of 
these key areas.   

As referred to above, there is a requirement for the “system of Internal Control” to 
include an assessment of sources of assurance, beyond just that of Internal Audit 
itself.  As the Council is required to produce an Annual Governance Statement, 
sources of assurance are reflected and reviewed within this process, which Internal 
Audit are a part of; therefore the control environment is reviewed more fully in this way. 
 

2020/21 Year Opinion 

This report cannot provide reasonable assurance that the organisation’s framework of 
governance, risk management and control predominantly operated satisfactorily during 
2020/21 due to the restrictions and limitations of the coronavirus pandemic.  
Conversely, I do not have evidence to confirm significant deviation from the control 
arrangements occurred. 

Page 108

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Internal Audit Annual Report – 2020/21 Barrow Borough Council 

Page 4 
 

My detailed opinion is that, for the minimal systems reviewed, the Council has 
reasonable systems of control in place, although there are significant weaknesses 
which put some of the system objectives at risk.    

There are, however, areas where only Restricted Assurance can be provided, which 
relate to the following final reports: 

 Covid Risk Assessment – Post Assurance Review (Draft);  

 IT Procedures Review. 

Weaknesses found as a result of our work, together with our recommendations for 
improvement, have been included in our reports to senior management and Members.  
Additionally, any weaknesses identified through the Annual Governance Statement 
process are recorded separately and reflect the assurance provided from all sources 
both internal and external. 
 

Co-operation 

The successful achievement of the audit plan is dependent on the contribution of the 
Internal Audit resource and the Council’s staff as audit clients.  I would like to record 
my appreciation for the involvement and commitment of staff, and for their critical 
appraisal of our recommendations during the year.  I would also like to acknowledge 
the support shown by the Audit Committee in the delivery of our Plan. 

 

 

Keith Jackson 
Head of Internal Audit 

 

Page 109

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Internal Audit Annual Report – 2020/21 Barrow Borough Council 

Page 5 
 

1. SERVICE BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 Our reporting lines 

In 2020/21 the Council’s Internal Audit service has been delivered by an internal 
department within the Council’s structure, under the direction of the Director of 
Resources with access to the Executive Director and elected Members if, in 
exceptional circumstances, we considered this necessary.   

The Head of Internal Audit meets with the Director of Resources, on a regular 
basis to discuss progress; in addition to attendance at External Audit liaison 
meetings as required.  They also attend Audit Committee on a regular basis, 
which includes presentation of progress reports and an analysis of significant 
agreed recommendations.   

 

1.2 Professional standards 

The Service aim is to exceed professional standards, thus providing the internal 
audit service in accordance with the Council’s Internal Audit Charter, which 
incorporates the statements, standards and guidelines published by CIPFA and 
the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (in particular the PSIAS). 

 

1.3 Our audit process 

We have adopted a risk-based approach to identify, and evaluate the 
application of, financial and other management controls. 

Our process includes a computerised matrix evaluation approach.  This 
approach is a practical process for documenting efficiently, and in an easily 
assimilated form, a rigorous analysis of the potential causes of risk and an 
assessment of the strength of controls against these risks.  In addition, it can be 
used to demonstrate clearly the effect of implementing recommendations to 
address weaknesses.  It allows for ready identification of control weaknesses, 
and of key controls, which are critical for the achievement of the systems 
objectives, as well as unnecessary or excessive controls.  Our methodology 
specifically includes a rigorous quality assurance programme to ensure 
compliance with this process. 

 

1.4 2020/21 Audit Plan 

The Audit Plan for 2020/21 was derived from a needs assessment of all agreed 
auditable areas within the Council.  Each area is prioritised by significance band 
of which there are 5, with band 1 being the highest.  This has resulted in an 
annual plan which concentrates on reviewing all significance band 1 and 2 
audits (annual audits) with the remaining time allocated to Housing Benefit 
Subsidy testing and on a risk assessed and cyclical basis. 

However, as a result of the coronavirus pandemic, the audit resource was re-
allocated to the role of the administration and award of various Covid Support 
Business grants for the first half of 2020/21.  The resource for the remainder of 

Page 110

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Internal Audit Annual Report – 2020/21 Barrow Borough Council 

Page 6 
 

the year has been predominantly assigned to Housing Benefit Subsidy testing, 
with minimal time available for additional reviews.  

During the year, where reviews did occur, the specific scope and objective of 
each audit assignment was discussed with the relevant Service Manager prior 
to the commencement of each audit. 

We will continue to monitor closely any new issues which may arise and will 
work closely with the Director of Resources in rescheduling priorities where 
required. 

 
 

 

Page 111

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Internal Audit Annual Report – 2020/21 Barrow Borough Council 

Page 7 
 

2. REVIEW OF PERIOD 

 

2.1 Progress against 2020/21 Annual Plan 

A detailed analysis of the current situation regarding the 2020/21 Plan is 
provided in Appendix A. 

The assessment of auditable areas has identified 88 systems, which cover the 
Council’s operations.  The audit coverage achieved in the period, compared to 
the audit plan, is set out in the table below.  The difference in planned coverage 
compared to actual mainly relates to the transfer of resource to Covid Grant 
administration, together with significant Housing Benefit Grant Certification 
testing which is not reflected in these figures, all of which were included within 
regular progress reports issued to the Audit Committee. 

 

 

Percentage of systems 
covered 

Percentage of risk 
covered 

2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 

Planned 39% 40% 81% 82% 

Achieved 6% 32% 9% 66% 

 

 

2.2 Liaison with External Audit 

I have liaised with the External Auditor; providing documentation to assist in the 
delivery of their work where requested.   

Our aim is to maximise the benefit from the Internal Audit service by avoiding 
duplication of coverage and facilitating where appropriate the External Auditor’s 
approach, in order to provide maximum assurance; although this may not be 
possible in all instances.   
 
 
 
 

2.3 Fraud Hotline 
 

As part of the Council’s responsibility to take action against potential fraud and 
corruption, a “Whistle-blowing” facility (or Fraud Hotline/webform) has been 
established since May 1998; for use by Council staff, contractors, suppliers and 
members of the public.  The facility is operated by Internal Audit and call/report 
details are either investigated by Internal Audit, the Council’s Revenues and 
Benefits team, or forwarded to the DWP for Housing Benefit fraud.  A minor 
number are referred in specific instances to Public Protection Services, Housing 
etc. 
 

Page 112

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Internal Audit Annual Report – 2020/21 Barrow Borough Council 

Page 8 
 

Calls 
received: 

Revenues/ 

Benefit related 
Staff Related Other Total 

2020/21 35 1 28 64 

2019/20 32 1 5 38 

Page 113

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Internal Audit Annual Report – 2020/21 Barrow Borough Council 

Page 9 
 

3. ANNUAL STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE  

In order to help management evaluate the significance of each assignment, we 
allocate each audit into a significance band which is simply a method of 
assessment and prioritisation.  For example significance band 1 audits have the 
greatest “significance” or priority in terms of audit coverage.  At the conclusion 
of each audit, we give an overall opinion on the level of assurance which we 
consider is provided by the controls in place within the system audited.  The 
following classification of assurance levels has been adopted: 

 

Level Definition 

Unqualified Assurance The controls appear to be consistently 
applied. 

Substantial Assurance Evidence was identified to suggest 
that the level of non-compliance with 
controls may put some of the system 
objectives at risk. 

Restricted Assurance The level of non-compliance identified 
places the system objectives at risk. 

No Assurance Significant non-compliance with 
controls was identified leaving the 
system vulnerable to error and abuse. 

 

The following table summarises the assurance levels recorded in final reports 
relating to the years 2020/21 and 2019/20, draft reports are not included.  The 
majority of Council systems have achieved the level of Substantial Assurance, 
see Appendix A:  
 

Final 
Reports 

Total 

Unqualified 
Assurance 

Substantial 
Assurance 

Restricted 
Assurance 

No 
Assurance 

No. % No. % No. % No. % 

2020/21 5 0 0 4 80 1 20 0 0 

2019/20 27 6 22 14 52 5 19 2 7 

 
 

The conclusions and assurance levels specified for each audit are used to 
support the Council’s governance review arrangements, as required by the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards. 

 
 

Page 114

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Internal Audit Annual Report – 2020/21 Barrow Borough Council 

Page 10 
 

4. RECOMMENDATIONS AND FOLLOW UP IN THE YEAR 

4.1 Introduction 

Our audit recommendations are categorised by three priority levels.  These 
categorisations are described below. 

   Priority 1 Major issues that we consider need to be brought to the attention 
of senior management. 

   Priority 2 Important issues which should be addressed by management in 
their area of responsibility. 

   Priority 3 Detailed issues of a relatively minor nature. 

 

4.2 Recommendations made 

The following table summarises the number of audit recommendations made in 
our final reports issued during 2020/21, and the management responses, 
analysed in accordance with the above categories.  

Recommendation
s 

Total Priority 1 Priority 2 Priority 3 

Made 2020/21 17 2 8 7 

Fully Accepted 17 2 8 7 

Partly Accepted 0 0 0 0 

Not Accepted 0 0 0 0 

 

Comparative figures for 2019/20 are as follows: 

Recommendation
s 

Total Priority 1 Priority 2 Priority 3 

Made 2019/20 71 17 43 11 

Fully Accepted 66 16 39 11 

Partly Accepted 5 1 4 0 

Not Accepted 0 0 0 0 

 

Page 115

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Internal Audit Annual Report – 2020/21 Barrow Borough Council 

Page 11 
 

4.3 Implementation of recommendations 

During the financial year we have not undertaken any prior year implementation 
activity (as noted in the Executive Summary).  This is being carried forward into 
2021/22. 

 

Page 116

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Internal Audit Annual Report – 2020/21 Barrow Borough Council 

Page 12 
 

5. QUALIFICATIONS TO THE OPINION 

Internal Audit has had predominantly unrestricted access to all areas and 
systems across the authority and has received appropriate co-operation from 
officers and Members; the exception being the provision of Part 2 Committee 
Papers.

Page 117

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Internal Audit Annual Report – 2020/21 Barrow Borough Council 

Page 13 
 

6. PERFORMANCE 

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAs) require Internal Audit to be 
measured in terms of performance.  The indicators below provide information over the 
arrangements and effectiveness of Internal Audit. 
 

Indicator 2020/21 
1 Percentage of Draft reports issued within 10 working days of 

completion of audit fieldwork. 100% 

2 Percentage of Management Responses received within 20 
working days of issue of the Draft report. 0% 

3 Percentage of Final reports issued within 10 working days of 
receipt of management response. 100% 

4 Percentage of Priority 1 and Priority 2 Recommendations 
acceptable to the audit client. 100% 

 

 

Page 118

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Internal Audit Annual Report – 2019/20 Barrow Borough Council 

Page 14 

APPENDIX A: PROGRESS AGAINST AUDIT PLAN 2020/21 

Report 
Number 

Audit Assignment 

System 
Significance 

Band 
Status Assurance 

20-01 Income Collection 1 Cancelled 

20-02 Housing Benefits 1 Cancelled 

20-03 Council Tax & Council Tax Support 1 Cancelled 

20-04 Business Rates (NNDR) 1 Cancelled 

20-05 Risk Management 1 Cancelled 

20-06 Cash Floats/Receipting Controls 1 Cancelled 

20-09 Performance Management 2 Cancelled 

20-10 Budgetary Control 2 Cancelled 

20-11 Treasury Management 2 Cancelled 

20-12 Car Park Meter Income 2 Cancelled 

20-13 Payroll (incl Expenses) 2 Cancelled 

20-14 Accounts Receivable 2 Cancelled 

20-15 Corporate Control/Governance 2 Complete N/a 

20-16 
Main Accounting System & 
Periodic Controls 

2 Q3 complete N/a 

20-17 Procurement (inc. Ordering) 2 Cancelled 

20-18 Accounts Payable 2 Cancelled 

20-19 Housing Rents  2 Cancelled 

20-20 
Standing Orders/Financial 
Regs/Council Plans & Policies 

2 Complete N/a 

20-21 
Housing Maintenance (Day to day 
repairs)  

2 Cancelled 

     

 RISK ASSESSED SYSTEMS    

20-08 Fraud and Corruption Survey N/a Complete N/a 

20-25 
Covid Risk Assessment – Post 
Assurance Review  

N/a Draft Restricted 

20-26 Probity  N/a Ongoing 

     

     

     

     

Page 119

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



      

Internal Audit Annual Report – 2019/20 Barrow Borough Council 

Page 15 

Report 
Number 

Audit Assignment 

System 
Significance 

Band 
Status Assurance 

 
DESIGNATED ANNUAL AUDIT 
ACTIVITY 

   

20-22 NFI Responsibilities  Complete N/a 

20-23 Mayor’s Account  Cancelled 

20-24 Benefit Certification  Complete N/a 

     

 Community Organisations    

- Hawcoat  
Deferred to 

21/22 
N/a 

- Abbotsvale  
Deferred to 

21/22 
N/a 

- Dalton Community Association   Complete N/a 

     

 IT ENVIRONMENT AUDITS    

IT 75 
Information Technology 
Procedures Review  

1 Initial Final Restricted 

     

     

     

20-07 IMPLEMENTATION REVIEW  Complete N/a 

     

 
It should be noted that between April and September 2020 Internal Audit undertook 
almost exclusively the process of evaluating and processing COVID-19 Support 
Grants, which has clearly impacted on the delivery of coverage.  See table below 
detailing the number and value of grants applications processed and paid, for each of 
the different funding schemes. 
 

COVID-19 Grant 
Scheme 

Number of 
Claims paid 

Value paid 
£ 

Ineligible 
applications 
processed 

Total 
processed 

Small Business  
Retail, Hospitality 
& Leisure 

1,014 11,495,000 186 1,200 

Discretionary 
(Round 1) 

61 280,000 93 154 

Discretionary 
(Round 2) 

18 77,500 43 61 

Total 1,093 11,852,500 322 1,415 

 

Page 120

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



      

Internal Audit Annual Report – 2019/20 Barrow Borough Council 

Page 16 

APPENDIX B: CONTRACT AUDIT 2020/21 

Report 
Number 

Audit Assignment STATUS 
Assurance/ 
Comment 

CR119 Crematorium rebuild Ongoing 

Stages 1-3 findings 
issued. 

Further information 
requested October 

2019 

CR120 Building Cleaning  Information awaited 

CR123 Harding Rise Ongoing 

Stage 1&2 findings 
issued.  

Stages 3&4 complete, 
awaiting Stage 5 

CR132 
Portland Walk Car Park 
Maintenance 

Stage 1-2 findings 
issued 

Stages 2 & 3 findings 
produced. 

CR133 Insurance  Information awaited  

CR134 
Public Conveniences – Cleaning 
contract 

 Information awaited 

CR135 Future High Street Consultancy   Information awaited 

CR136 Forum catering & cleaning  Information awaited 

CR137 Lift servicing & maintenance   Information awaited 

CR138 Electrical Installation Testing   Information awaited 

CR139 Electrical Reactive Maintenance   Information awaited 

    

 

Page 121

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee  

29 July 2021 

Assurance 
 

   

Report from:   Director of Resources 

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    None 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  The Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee has provided the appointed 

auditor with details of how the Audit and Governance Committee gains 

assurance from management. 

 

1.2 This report provides the response for Members to endorse. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee endorse the 

Chair assurance response to the appointed auditors. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The appointed auditor requested that the Chair of the Audit and Governance 

Committee explain how assurance from management is obtained. 

 

3.2 The appointed auditors request is attached as Appendix 1. 

 

3.3 The Chair’s response is detailed at Appendix 2. 

 

3.4 Members are requested to consider and endorse the Chair’s assurance 

response. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 The only consultation is with the Audit and Governance Committee. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 Members may propose alternative responses for the Chair to consider. 

 

Page 123

Agenda Item 14



6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 

Committee is charged with that role. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report.  

 

Legal  

 7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report relates to 
internal governance. 

 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

The Audit and Governance 

Committee receive inadequate 

assurance from management. 

Governance and internal 

controls at risk. 

Audit and Governance 

Committee work plan. 

 

Internal Audit Annual 

Plan. 

 

Senior Officers 

attendance at the Audit 

and Governance 

Committee. 

 

Contact Officers  

S M Roberts directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Grant Thornton 

Assurance Request 

2 Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee 

Assurance Response 

 

Page 124

Agenda Item 14



 

 

 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 
c/o Carlisle City Council 
7th Floor 
Rickergate 
Carlisle 
Cumbria 
CA3 8QG 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

   

 
   

   

   

Commercial in confidence 

 
 

 

 

01 July 2021 

 

 

Dear Ms Burns,   

Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council Financial 
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 
As part of our audit of Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council’s financial statements for 2020/21, we need 

to make inquiries with you in relation to fraud and litigation. We do this to maintain our understanding of 

Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council and to comply with International Auditing Standards.  

 

I would be grateful, therefore, if you could write to me in your role as the Chair of the Audit Committee 

with your responses to the questions set out in the attached schedule.  

 

For information, we are also required to make enquiries of management and have also sent a letter and 

schedule of questions to Susan Roberts (the schedule of management questions is attached for your 

information). 

 

I would be grateful for your responses, if possible, by the 16 July 2021 to help inform our risk 

assessment and planning of our 2020/21 audit of the Authority ‘s financial statements. 

 

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you wish to discuss anything in relation to this request. 
 
 

Yours sincerely 

 

Matt Derrick 

Senior Manager 

For Grant Thornton UK LLP 

 

T: 0141 223 0656 

E: matt.f.derrick@uk.gt.com 

Councillor Anne Burns 
Chair of the Audit Committee 
Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council 
Town Hall 
Duke Street 
Barrow-In-Furness 
Cumbria LA14 2LD 

 

 

Page 125

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1



 

 
 

Commercial in confidence 

Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council 

Responses from Audit Committee Chair: 

Fraud risk assessment 

Auditor Question Response 
Has the Council assessed the risk of material 
misstatement in the financial statements due to 
fraud? 

 

What are the results of this process?  

What processes do the Council have in place to 
identify and respond to risks of fraud? 

 

Have any specific fraud risks, or areas with a high 
risk of fraud, been identified and what has been 
done to mitigate these risks? 

 

Are internal controls, including segregation of 
duties, in place and operating effectively? 

 

If not, where are the risk areas and what mitigating 
actions have been taken? 

 

Are there any areas where there is a potential for 
override of controls or inappropriate influence over 
the financial reporting process (for example 
because of undue pressure to achieve financial 
targets)?  

 

Are there any areas where there is a potential for 
misreporting? 

 

How do the Audit Committee exercise oversight 
over management's processes for identifying and 
responding to risks of fraud? 

 

What arrangements are in place to report fraud 
issues and risks to the Audit Committee? 

 

How do the Council communicate and encourage 
ethical behaviour of its staff and contractors? 

 

How do you encourage staff to report their 
concerns about fraud?  
Have any significant issues been reported? 

 

Are you aware of any related party relationships or 
transactions that could give rise to risks of fraud? 

 

Are you aware of any instances of actual, 
suspected or alleged, fraud within the Council since 
1 April 2020? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 126

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1



 

 2

Commercial in confidence 

Law and regulation 

Auditor Question Response 
What arrangements do the Council have in place to 
prevent and detect non-compliance with laws and 
regulations? 

 

How do management gain assurance that all 
relevant laws and regulations have been complied 
with? 

 

How is the Audit Committee provided with 
assurance that all relevant laws and regulations 
have been complied with? 

 

Have there been any instances of non-compliance 
or suspected non-compliance with law and 
regulation since 1 April 2020? 

 

What arrangements do the Council have in place to 
identify, evaluate and account for litigation or 
claims? 

 

Is there any actual or potential litigation or claims 
that would affect the financial statements? 

 

Have there been any reports from other regulatory 
bodies, such as HM Revenues and Customs, which 
indicate non-compliance? 

 

 

 
 

Page 127

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



Chief Executive 
Sam Plum 

Director of Resources 
Susan Roberts 

 

 Director of People and Place 
Steph Cordon 

Contact Name: Date: 

Matt Derrick  
Senior Manager  
Grant Thornton UK LLP  
 
Sent by email 

 
Director of Resources 

 
TOWN HALL · DUKE STREET 

BARROW-IN-FURNESS · CUMBRIA  LA14 2LD 
Tel: (01229) 876543 

 
Email: customerservices@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

 SMR/AB  Susan Roberts  16/07/2021 
    
 

Dear Matt 
  
Barrow Borough Council - Financial Statements for the year end 31 March 2021 
 
Thank you for your letter of the 1 July 2021 regarding the above. 
 
I have set out my responses to explain how the Audit and Governance Committee gains 
assurance from management at Appendix 1. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
  
  
Councillor Mrs A Burns 
Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee 
 
Appendix 1 – Responses from the Chairman of the Audit Committee 
 
 

 

 Our Ref: 

 Your Ref: 

Page 129

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 2



 

 
 

Commercial in confidence 

Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council 

Responses from Audit Committee Chair: 

Fraud risk assessment 

Auditor Question Response 
Has the Council assessed the risk of material 
misstatement in the financial statements due to 
fraud? 

Yes.  All accounting entries that are created 
manually are checked and posted by a separate 
officer. 

The Accountancy Services Manager is 
responsible for compiling the financial statements 
based on the work performed by the Finance 
Department (temporary officer in post).  There is a 
secondary check performed within the Finance 
Department prior to the issue of the financial 
statements to the Director of Resources.  The 
financial statements are checked again, 
independently, by the Director of Resources prior 
to authorising for issue. 

The underlying financial systems are checked by 
Internal Audit as part of the work on internal 
controls and periodic checks are performed 
throughout the year.  The underlying financial 
systems have not changed during 2020-2021. 

The basis of estimations and significant 
judgements is disclosed in the Statement of 
Accounts along with accounting policies and the 
use of required expertise is disclosed in the 
financial statements. 

What are the results of this process? The checks of the financial statements are 
evidenced on the detailed timetable held by the 
Finance Department.  Any fraudulent 
misstatements identified is reported to the 
Director of Resources. 
 
Any fraudulent misstatements identified by the 
Internal Audit work are reported to the Director of 
Resources. 
 
An investigation and appropriate action would be 
initiated by the Director of Resources.  If the 
Director of Resources’ management override 
were suspected, the matter would be referred to 
the Chief Executive. 

What processes do the Council have in place to 
identify and respond to risks of fraud? 

The Council has a comprehensive Anti-Fraud, 
Theft, Bribery and Corruption Strategy and 
Response Plan, and a Whistleblowing Policy. 
 

Page 130

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 2



 

 2

Commercial in confidence 

The Internal Audit annual plan is risk-based and is 
intended to cover all significant risk areas.  
 
The Fraud Hotline provides an independent route 
for any concerns to be raised confidentially. 
 
There is a Code of Conduct for Members of the 
Council and a Code of Conduct for Officers. 
 
The Council has a Money Laundering Policy and 
controls its treasury activities through its Treasury 
Management Practices. 
 
The Finance Department control changes to 
supplier details and also authenticates any 
subsequent updates. 

 
Segregation of duties and management 
authorisations operate in the areas of the Council 
involving financial controls, such as ordering 
goods or services, payment of invoices or 
expenses, cash and banking reconciliations. 

Have any specific fraud risks, or areas with a high 
risk of fraud, been identified and what has been 
done to mitigate these risks? 

Within the core business of the Council no new 
fraud risks have become apparent.  All financial 
transactions carry a degree of risk and that was 
assessed as part of the internal control framework 
when systems and processes were designed.  
Any changes or adaptions to the existing systems 
and processes are thoroughly assessed before 
being implemented. 
 
The areas within the Council that operate with 
cash are always deemed as high risk for potential 
fraud.  There are specific controls designed to 
mitigate and detect any fraudulent activity; 
services that directly accept cash only receive low 
value cash transactions. 
 
Treasury management involves high value 
transactions and again specific controls are in 
place internally as well as externally – the brokers 
and counterparties all have fraud risk mitigation 
and detection built into their dealings process. 
 
During COVID-19 local authorities distributed a 
variety of business support grants and self-
isolation payments.  Processes for delivering 
these were established including the verification 
requirements to meet the assurance set by 
MHCLG, DHSC and the Council’s own controls.  

Are internal controls, including segregation of 
duties, in place and operating effectively? 

Yes, the Council’s internal controls are reviewed 
and tested by Internal Audit and through 
management review.  Managers are sometimes 
part of an internal control process, but where this 
is not the case it is expected that checks are 

Page 131

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 2



 

 3

Commercial in confidence 

made to ensure the continued observance of the 
controls is occurring. 
 
Duties are segregated where necessary and dual 
authorisation applies to all financial transactions. 
 
The main source of assurance will always be 
Internal Audit. 

If not, where are the risk areas and what mitigating 
actions have been taken? 

This is covered in the previous response. 

Are there any areas where there is a potential for 
override of controls or inappropriate influence over 
the financial reporting process (for example 
because of undue pressure to achieve financial 
targets)?  

There are no areas where financial targets apply 
and there is no benefit in inappropriately 
influencing the financial reporting process. 
 
The quarterly reporting follows a similar process 
to the financial statements; the Finance 
Department create all the transactions for 
services, the Accountancy Services Manager 
compiles the budgetary movements and reserves, 
the Director of Resources prepares the overall 
monitoring report. 
 
Access to posting entries into the General Ledger 
is restricted.   
 
Access to update the sub-ledgers is restricted to 
the Finance Department where internal controls 
exist for each process and segregation of duties 
is observed. 

Are there any areas where there is a potential for 
misreporting? 

There are no areas where there is a potential for 
misreporting as the financial information is 
sourced from the General Ledger which is within 
a controlled environment as already explained in 
the previous response. 

How do the Audit Committee exercise oversight 
over management's processes for identifying and 
responding to risks of fraud? 

The Audit and Governance Committee receives 
reports from Internal Audit, the Director of 
Resources and the appointed external auditors.  
Any issues relating to fraud would be reported to 
the Audit and Governance Committee. 
 
The Anti-Fraud Policies are approved and 
adopted by Full Council through the Executive 
Committee process.  The Audit and Governance 
Committee are made aware of the process and 
any updates or revisions as those charged with 
governance. 

What arrangements are in place to report fraud 
issues and risks to the Audit Committee? 

The Anti-Fraud Policies identify Internal Audit as 
the preferred route to report fraud issues and 
risks.  However, officers can report concerns to 
their managers or Management Team if they 
prefer. 
 
For Members, any potential issues are reported to 
the Monitoring Officer in the first instance. 

Page 132

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 2



 

 4

Commercial in confidence 

How do the Council communicate and encourage 
ethical behaviour of its staff and contractors? 

There is a comprehensive checklist completed as 
part of the induction process for new staff, which 
includes the way the Council operates and the 
policies and conditions of service that the officers 
are expected to work to. 
 
Policies, such as the Anti-Fraud Policies are 
available online to all staff with computer access 
and managers are asked to provide these in hard 
copy to other employees.  As and when policies 
change, an email is sent to all staff to make them 
aware that changes have occurred (usually with a 
brief summary of the changes included) and that 
a revised or updated policy has now been 
published. 
 
Internal communications is identified for review 
within the Values and Behaviours roadmap. 

How do you encourage staff to report their 
concerns about fraud?  
Have any significant issues been reported? 

The Whistleblowing Policy is promoted and a 
number of calls have been received – this activity 
is reported in the Internal Audit Progress Report.  
No fraud concerns have been raised during 2020-
2021; non-fraud concerns are also reported to the 
Fraud Hotline. 

Are you aware of any related party relationships or 
transactions that could give rise to risks of fraud? 

There are no related party relationships or 
transactions that could give rise to risks of fraud 
that I am aware of. 

Are you aware of any instances of actual, 
suspected or alleged, fraud within the Council since 
1 April 2020? 

There are no instances of actual, suspected or 
alleged fraud either within the Council as a whole 
or within specific departments since 1 April 2020 
that I am aware of. 

 

Law and regulation 

Auditor Question Response 
What arrangements do the Council have in place to 
prevent and detect non-compliance with laws and 
regulations? 

The Council relies on the Monitoring Officer to 
prevent and detect non-compliance with laws 
and regulations, and that senior officers will 
flag issues that require the Monitoring Officer’s 
opinion. 
 
The Monitoring Officer ensures compliance 
with the Council’s Constitution. 
 
The Council also employs a number of 
professional, qualified officers in particular 
fields of expertise and also obtains external 
legal advice when required; generally for 
clarification in specific circumstances. 
 
The Executive Committee report template 
includes consideration of the legal aspects of 
any decision for Members. 

Page 133

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 2



 

 5

Commercial in confidence 

How do management gain assurance that all 
relevant laws and regulations have been complied 
with? 

Management Team review the legal aspects of 
Executive Committee proposals at pre-agenda 
meetings and challenges report authors where 
necessary; the Monitoring Officer attends the 
pre-agenda meetings.   
 
On occasion management make use of a 
number of professional, qualified officers in 
particular fields of expertise including external 
legal advice when required. 

 
The Monitoring Officer is part of a Cumbria-
wide network and attends training as available 
and appropriate. 

How is the Audit Committee provided with 
assurance that all relevant laws and regulations 
have been complied with? 

The Monitoring Officer has overall 
responsibility for assuring management that all 
relevant laws and regulations have been 
complied with. 

 
The legal aspects of any decision for Members 
are disclosed in the reports presented at the 
Executive Committee. 

Have there been any instances of non-compliance 
or suspected non-compliance with law and 
regulation since 1 April 2020? 

There have been no instances of non-
compliance or suspected non-compliance with 
law and regulation since 1 April 2020. 

What arrangements do the Council have in place to 
identify, evaluate and account for litigation or 
claims? 

Claims against the Council are raised with 
Management Team and would be dealt with 
either by the Council’s insurers, retained 
solicitors or an alternate if specific expertise 
were required. 

Is there any actual or potential litigation or claims 
that would affect the financial statements? 

There are no actual or potential litigation or 
claims that would affect the financial 
statements. 

Have there been any reports from other regulatory 
bodies, such as HM Revenues and Customs, which 
indicate non-compliance? 

There have been no reports from other 
regulatory bodies that indicate non-
compliance. 

 

 
 

Page 134

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 2



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee  

29 July 2021 

Annual Review of Internal Audit 
 

   

Report from:   Director of Resources 

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    None 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  Internal Audit must comply with proper practice as defined by the Accounts and 

Audit Regulations. 

 

1.2 Each year a review of the effectiveness of Internal Audit is undertaken and this 

report informs Committee of the findings. 

 

1.3 The Section 151 Officer is satisfied that the Internal Audit service is effective. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee endorse the 

annual review of the effectiveness of Internal Audit. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The Section 151 Officer is charged with ensuring an effective Internal Audit 

function is resourced and maintained. 

 

3.2 The review relies upon the following documents to support the view that the 

Internal Audit service is effective: 

 

3.3 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

 

3.3.1 A self-assessment checklist completed by the Head of Internal Audit and 

reviewed by the Director of Resources.  It covers the Authority and its Internal 

Audit arrangements and the Internal Audit Service is substantially compliant with 

these standards: 

 

 Scope of Internal Audit 

 Independence 

Page 135

Agenda Item 15



 Ethics for internal auditors 

 Audit Committees 

 Relationships 

 Staffing, training and development 

 Audit strategy and planning 

 Undertaking audit work 

 Due professional care 

 Reporting 

 Performance, quality and effectiveness 

 

3.4 The CIPFA statement on the role of the Head of Internal Audit in local 

government 

 

3.4.1 A self-assessment completed by the Head of Internal Audit and reviewed by the 

Director of Resources.  The 2019 edition of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of 

the Head of Internal Audit provides case studies to demonstrate the principles in 

action; to share best practice. 

 

3.5 The Internal Audit Annual Report 

 

3.5.1 This contains the performance of the service for the last full financial year.  This 

report is presented separately on this agenda. 

 

3.6 Post Audit Questionnaires 

 

3.6.1 These are returned by departmental managers to reflect satisfaction with the 

Internal Audit service; the questionnaire focuses on the audit process and not the 

recommendations as a result of the audit. 

 

3.6.2 Once audits are completed, departmental managers are issued with a 

satisfaction questionnaire that can be returned to the Director of Resources. 

 

3.6.3 Due to the Internal Audit resource for 2020-2021 being largely employed in the 

delivery of COVID-19 business grants and the DWP Housing Benefit subsidy 

audit, the planned audits were not undertaken resulting in less questionnaires 

being issued or returned. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Consultation is not relevant to the recommendation. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 The Audit and Governance Committee may choose not endorse the review and 

note their rationale.  

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

Page 136

Agenda Item 15



6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 

Committee is charged with that role. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report.  

 

Legal  

 7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report is for 
information. 

 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

The Internal Audit service is 

not effective. 

The Council cannot 

demonstrate good 

governance. 

Internal Audit annual 

plan, audits, progress 

report and annual report. 

 

Contact Officers  

S M Roberts directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Page 137

Agenda Item 15



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee  

29th July, 2021 

Report on Compliments, Customer Feedback and 

Complaints received during 2020/21 
 

   

Report from:   Monitoring Officer 

Report Author:  Debbie Storr 

Wards:    All 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  Feedback is very important to help us better understand the customer’s needs 

and concerns and can help identify possible avenues of service improvement.  

This report presents an update to Members on the number of complaints and 

compliments received during 2020/21 (April, 2020 – March, 2021). 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee receive and 

note the report.  

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1  It was agreed at the Audit and Governance Committee held on 1st October, 2020 

that regular reports would be presented on compliments, customer feedback and 

complaints.  All complaints and compliments are managed and recorded by the 

Democratic Services Team. Quarterly reports are presented to Management 

Team. 

 

3.3 Whilst complaints up to December 2020 have previously been reported to 

Committee, this report presents an update for the period April, 2020 to March, 

2021.  During the last municipal year there were 43 stage 1 complaints received 

compared to 52 in the previous financial year and 8 appeal stage complaints 

received compared to 7 in the previous financial year. The reasons for the 

complaints are wide and varied and there is no underlying trend in those two 

years.  Appendix 1 shows the complaints received by service area for both Stage 

one and Appeal Stage complaints.  

 

3.4 In terms of response times 86% of complaints received were answered within the 

10 working day target for stage 1 complaints, and 75% were answered within the 

Page 139

Agenda Item 16



20 working target for stage 2 complaints. The team will continue to work with 

Officers to increase the percentage against the target at stage 1. 

 

3.5  Appendix 1 also shows a more detailed breakdown of the stage 1 complaints by 

Department and also by complaint category.  The data collated is useful to 

identify trends and assist with service improvements. No underlying trends have 

been identified during 2020/21. 

 

3.6 During the reporting period 42 compliments were received and noted 

corporately. Details of the service area are shown in Appendix 2.  This does not 

include the visitor comments at e.g. the Dock Museum.  Service areas have 

been requested to ensure that any compliments received are logged corporately. 

Quarter 1 and subsequent reports for 2021/22 will be reported to a future 

meeting. 

  

3.7 Members are asked to receive the report. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

 Not applicable 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternative options, the report is to note. 

 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities  

6.1 Links to the Council priorities in relation to excellence 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 Not applicable 

 

Legal  

7.1.2 Not applicable 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No – not applicable 
 

  

Page 140

Agenda Item 16



Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Reputational risk as a result of 

complaints 

The reputation of the 

council is diminished 

Regular review of the 

complaints policy and 

proactive monitoring of 

complaints 

 

Contact Officers  

dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk/jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete section 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Complaints Data 1 April 2020 – 31 March 2021 

2 Details of compliments logged 

 

Background Documents Available 

None  

Page 141

Agenda Item 16



This page is intentionally left blank



Sharron Rushton, Democratic Services Officer 
July, 2021 
 

 

BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL COMPLAINTS STATISTICS 2020/2021 

 

Below is a table showing the total number of complaints received during 2020/21 (1st April, 

2020 – 31st March, 2021). 

Complaints Table 2020/2021 

 Quarter 1 
1st Apr 2020 – 
30th June 2020 

Quarter 2 
1st Jul 2020 – 
30th Sept 2020 

Quarter 3 
1st Oct 2020 – 
31st Dec 2020 

Quarter 4 
1st Jan 2021 – 
31st Mar 2021 

Total 
Number of 

Stage 1 
Complaints 

 
11 

 
14 

 
8 

 
10 

Total 
Number of 

Appeal 
Complaints 

 
2 

 
2 

 
1 

 
3 

 

A table showing the number of complaints received in 2019/20 during the same period 

for comparison is as follows:- 

Comparison Table 2019/2020 

 Quarter 1 
1st  Apr 2019 – 
30th June 2020 

Quarter 2 
1st July 2019 
– 30th Sept 

2020 

Quarter 3 
1st Oct 2019 – 
31st Dec 2020 

Quarter 4 
1st Jan 2020 – 
31st Mar 2020 

Total 
Number of 

Stage 1 
Complaints 

 
18 

 
12 

 
12 

 
10 

Total 
Number of 

Appeal 
Complaint 

 
1 

 
4 

 
2 

 
0 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 143

Agenda Item 16
Appendix 1



Sharron Rushton, Democratic Services Officer 
July, 2021 
 

STAGE 1 COMPLAINTS BY DEPARTMENT 2020/2021 

 

Department Total 
Number of 
Complaints 

Upheld Not 
Upheld 

Partly 
Upheld 

Ongoing Rejected/ 
Withdrawn 

Car Parking 1 0 1 0 0 0 

Council Tax 15 1 11 1 2 0 

Ground 
Maintenance 

1 0 1 0 0 0 

Customer 
Services 

1 0 1 0 0 0 

Finance/ 
Grants 

1 0 0 0 1 0 

Housing  4 1 1 1 1 0 

Housing 
Benefit 

7 0 5 2 0 0 

Legal 1 0 1 0 0 0 

Planning 2 0 2 0 0 0 

Public 
Protection 

4 2 2 0 0 0 

Streetcare 6 2 4 0 0 0 

TOTALS 43 6 29 4 4 0 

 

PERCENTAGE OF STAGE 1 COMPLAINTS UPHELD, NOT 

UPHELD, PARTLY UPHELD, ONGOING OR 

REJECTED/WITHDRAWN 

 

 

Upheld
14%

Not Upheld
68%

Partly Upheld
9%

Rejected/Withdrawn
0%

Ongoing
9%

Stage 1 2020/21

Page 144

Agenda Item 16
Appendix 1



Sharron Rushton, Democratic Services Officer 
July, 2021 
 

APPEAL STAGE COMPLAINTS BY DEPARTMENT 2020/2021  

 

Department Total 
Number of 
Complaints 

Upheld Not 
Upheld 

Partly 
Upheld 

Ongoing Rejected/ 
Withdrawn 

Council Tax 4 0 3 0 1 0 

Customer 
Services 

1 0 1 0 0 0 

Ground 
Maintenance 

1 0 1 0 0 0 

Housing 
Benefit 

1 0 1 0 0 0 

Legal 1 0 1 0 0 0 

TOTAL 8 0 7 0 1 0 

 

 

PERCENTAGE OF APPEAL STAGE COMPLAINTS UPHELD, 

NOT UPHELD, PARTLY UPHELD, ONGOING OR 

REJECTED/WITHDRAWN 

 

 

 

 

 

Upheld
0%

Not Upheld
87%

Partly Upheld
0%

Rejected/Withdrawn
0%

Ongoing
13%

Appeal Stage 2020/21

Page 145

Agenda Item 16
Appendix 1



Sharron Rushton, Democratic Services Officer 
July, 2021 
 

COMPLAINT RESPONSES 2020/21 

Below are tables showing the total number of stage one complaints answered within the 10 

working day period and Appeal Stage complaints answered within the 20 working day period 

received during 2020/21 (1st April, 2020 – 31st March, 2021).  

Stage 1 Response Table 2020/2021 

 Quarter 1 
1st  Apr 2020 
– 30th June 

2020 

Quarter 2 
1st July 2020 
– 30th Sept 

2020 

Quarter 3 
1st Oct 2020 – 
31st Dec 2020 

Quarter 4 
1st Jan 2021 – 
31st Mar 2021 

Total within 
10 day 
working 
target 

 
9 

 
11 

 
8 

 
9 

Total  outside 
the 10 day 

working 
target 

 
2 

 
3 

 
0 

 
1 

  

PERCENTAGE OF STAGE 1 COMPLAINTS ANSWERED 

WITHIN 10 DAY TARGET 

 

 

 

 

Answered 
within 10 

working days
86%

Not answered 
within 10 

working days
14%

Answered within 10 Day Target 
2020/21

Page 146

Agenda Item 16
Appendix 1



Sharron Rushton, Democratic Services Officer 
July, 2021 
 

 

Appeal Stage Response Table 2020/2021 

 Quarter 1 
1st  Apr 2020 
– 30th June 

2020 

Quarter 2 
1st July 2020 
– 30th Sept 

2020 

Quarter 3 
1st Oct 2020 – 
31st Dec 2020 

Quarter 4 
1st Jan 2021 – 
31st Mar 2021 

Total within 
20 day 
working 
target 

 
2 

 
1 

 
1 

 
2 (+1 ongoing) 

Total  outside 
the 20 day 

working 
target 

 
0 

 
0 

 
1 

 
0 

 

PERCENTAGE OF APPEAL STAGE COMPLAINTS 

ANSWERED WITHIN 20 DAY TARGET 

 

 

 

 

 

Answered 
within 20 

working days
75%

Not answered 
within 20 

working days
12%

Ongoing
13%

Answered within 20 Day Target 
2020/21

Page 147

Agenda Item 16
Appendix 1



Sharron Rushton, Democratic Services Officer 
July, 2021 
 

 

COMPLIMENTS BY DEPARTMENT 2020/2021 

 

Below is a table showing the total number of compliments received during 2020/21 (1st April, 2020 

– 31st March, 2021,). 

Compliments Table 2020/2021 

Department Total Number of Compliments 

Democratic Services 2 

Finance/Grants 14 

Freedom of Information 1 

Housing 9 

Parks 6 

Streetcare 10 

 

PERCENTAGE OF COMPLIMENTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Democratic 
Services

5%

Finance/Grants
33%

Freedom of 
Information

2%
Housing

22%

Parks
14%

Streetcare
24%

Compliments 2020/21

Page 148

Agenda Item 16
Appendix 1



APPENDIX 2 
 

Compliments - 2020/21 (July, 2020 – March, 2021) 
 
 

Date Department 

14th July, 2020 Discretionary Grants 

14th July, 2020 Discretionary Grants 

14th July, 2020 Discretionary Grants 

14th July, 2020 Discretionary Grants 

14th July, 2020 Discretionary Grants 

14th July, 2020 Discretionary Grants 

21st August, 2020 Parks 

1st September, 2020 Discretionary Grants 

1st September, 2020 Discretionary Grants 

4th September, 2020 Democratic Services 

2nd September, 2020 Parks 

8th September, 2020 Streetcare 

29th September, 2020 Parks 

30th September, 2020 Parks 

1st October, 2020 Housing 

25th November, 2020 Streetcare 

3rd December, 2020 Streetcare 

10th December, 2020 Streetcare 

11th December, 2020 Parks 

11th December, 2020 Streetcare 

7th January, 2021 Housing 

12th January, 2021 Streetcare 

18th January, 2021 Housing 

19th January, 2021 Housing 

19th January, 2021 Housing 

19th January, 2021 Housing 

20th January, 2021 Housing 

26th January, 2021 Discretionary Grants 

27th January, 2021 Discretionary Grants 

28th January, 2021 Discretionary Grants 

28th January, 2021 Streetcare 

9th February, 2021 Streetcare 

11th February, 2021 Democratic Services 

18th February, 2021 Streetcare 

18th February, 2021 Discretionary Grants 

19th February, 2021 Discretionary Grants 

26th February, 2021 Streetcare 

3rd March, 2021 Freedom on Information 

5th March, 2021 Discretionary Grants 

15th March, 2021 Housing 

22nd March. 2021 Housing 

29t March, 2021 Parks 
 

 

Page 149

Agenda Item 16
Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee  

29th July 2021 

Internal Audit Final Reports 
 

   

Report from:   Head of Internal Audit 

Report Author:  Head of Internal Audit 

Wards:    None 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  Internal Audit performs audits in accordance with the approved Annual Plan 

which is based on a risk assessment of the internal control environment. 

 

1.2 The final reports completed since the last meeting of the Committee are 

presented in this report. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee note the 

Internal Audit final reports. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 This report presents the Internal Audit final reports completed since the last 

meeting of the Committee. 

 

3.2 There is one final report for presentation.  All recommendations have been 

accepted by management unless otherwise stated. 

 

3.3 IT75 IT Procedures Review, Appendix 1; restricted assurance.  This report 

contains two major issues and five important issues. 

 

3.4 The assurance levels are:  

 

 None – control is weak, causing the system to be vulnerable to error and abuse.  

 Restricted – significant weaknesses have been identified in the system of 

control, which put the system objectives at risk.  

 Substantial – while there is a reasonable system of control, there are 

weaknesses, which may put the system objectives at risk. 

Page 151

Agenda Item 17



 Unqualified – there is an adequate system of control designed to achieve the 

system objectives. 

 

3.5 The recommendation levels assigned to issues identified are:  

 

 Priority 1 – major issues that Internal Audit considers need to be brought to the 

attention of senior management.  

 Priority 2 – important issues which should be addressed by management in their 

areas of responsibility.  

 Priority 3 – minor issues which provide scope for operational improvement.  

 Previous issues – are issues identified in a previous audit report that have not 

been entirely implemented at the time of this latest audit. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 The Internal Audit annual plan is agreed by the Audit and Governance 

Committee. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternative options as the report is presented for noting.  

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 

Committee is charged with that role. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report.  

 

Legal  

 7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.2 This report is for information. 
 
 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Internal controls are 

inadequate. 

Compliance cannot be 

demonstrated and 

assurance cannot be 

given. 

Internal Audit annual 

plan. 

 

Page 152

Agenda Item 17



Contact Officers  

K Jackson audit@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  IT Procedures Review  

 

Page 153

Agenda Item 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 June 2021 
Page 1 

BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL 

INTERNAL AUDIT FINAL REPORT IT 75 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY PROCEDURES REVIEW  

 

Executive Summary 

 

Introduction 

High profile data losses, system outages and project failures in both the public and 

private sectors have raised the need for comprehensive, documented, policies and 

procedures in order to create a robust and sustainable IT management system. 

In order to protect itself, an organisation needs to have robust documented procedures 

describing its policies, security concepts, security safeguards, guidelines, risk 

management approaches, actions, training, best practices, assurance and technologies.  

A well-documented control framework should provide a foundation from which to secure 

information systems and assets including connected computing devices, personnel, 

infrastructure, applications, services and the totality of transmitted and/or stored 

information.  Well documented procedures can bring many benefits to an organisation 

including but not limited to:- 

 providing risk mitigation to enforce and demonstrate compliance with legal, 

regulatory and best practice; 

 providing a baseline for the service to be measured against and driving service 

improvements; 

 providing operational efficiencies and consistency; 

 assisting with change management; and 

 providing operational resilience to reduce risks if key talent/expertise leave or 

become unavailable. 

 

Audit Objectives 

The audit was agreed with management as part of the 2020/21 IT 
Audit coverage.  The main objective of the audit was to review the 
information security policies and procedures that have been 
adopted by the Council to deliver information technology services 
which support business needs and objectives.  

The scope of the audit was discussed and agreed with the IT 
Manager before the audit commenced. 

 

 

Key Points 

Restricted Assurance 
 
Two major issues  
 
Five Important Issues 
 

Page 155

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



Barrow Borough Council              Final Report IT 75
      

 June 2021 
Page 2 

Audit Conclusion – Restricted Assurance 

As a result of the audit we have concluded that whilst there are some information 
technology security areas covered by policy and procedure, significant weaknesses 
have been identified in the system of control and associated documentation, which put 
the system objectives at risk. We have identified two major issues, which relate to: 

 accelerating the completion of the development of a coherent and managed suite 

of policies that form part of an overarching Information Security Management 

System; and 

 ensuring all policies undergo the appropriate approval process to ensure they are 

fit for purpose and regularly reviewed. 

We have also identified five important issues which concern: 

 introducing a suitable review and/or approval process for procedural 

documentation to ensure the guidance is appropriate for the user and follows best 

practice;  

 ensuring areas for which there are currently no policy or procedures are 

incorporated within the documentation set; 

 ensuring all policies are compliant with the Council’s Document Control policy 

using the standard format; 

 creating and implementing a standard format for procedural documentation, to 

ensure all appropriate information is captured; and 

 presenting policies and procedures to staff in a user-friendly and accessible way 

as part of a policy and procedure communication plan. 

 

Management Response 

We have received a constructive management response from the Corporate Support 
Manager, accepting each of the recommendations. 

  

Acknowledgement 

Internal Audit and MIAA would like to thank IT Services and other staff for their co-
operation and assistance during the review. 

Page 156

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee  

29 July 2021 

External Audit Fee 
 

   

Report from:   Director of Resources 

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    None 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  Grant Thornton have confirmed the audit fee for 2020-2021 as £62,772. 

 

1.2 This is an increase against the scale fee set by Public Sector Audit Appointments 

for new and ongoing issues added to the audit scope. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee receive the 

External Audit Fee for 2020-2021. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 Grant Thornton have produced the audit scope and additional work fee letter for 

2020-2021 (Appendix 1). 

 

3.2 The scale fee is set by Public Sector Audit Appointments at £39,362 for this 

authority. 

 

3.3 The new and ongoing issues added to the audit scope increase the audit fee by 

£23,410 to a total of £62,772 for 2020-2021. 

 

3.4 The additional work/assurance is contained in the audit scope and additional 

work letter from Grant Thornton (Appendix 1). 

 

3.5 Auditors must undertake sufficient work to comply with the requirements of the 

Code of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office and relevant 

professional standards, and to enable them to discharge their statutory 

responsibilities and their contractual obligations to PSAA. 

 

Page 157

Agenda Item 18



3.6 Grant certification fees are separate to this for the DWP housing benefit subsidy 

claim and Housing Capital Receipts report. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Consultation is not relevant to the recommendation. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternative options as the report is presented for noting.  

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 

Committee is charged with that role. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 Audit fees are funded from the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account 

revenue budgets.  The fees for 2020-2021 have been accrued at year-end.  The 

ongoing revenue budgets will be revised as part of monitoring 2021-2022.  There 

are no procurement implications arising from this report.  

 

Legal  

 7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report is for 
information. 

 

Contact Officers  

S M Roberts directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Audit Scope and Additional Work 2020/21 

 

Page 158

Agenda Item 18



 

 

 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

   

 
   

   

Chartered Accountants. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. 
Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available from our registered office.  Grant Thornton 

UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton 
International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. 
GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or om issions. 

Please see grantthornton.co.uk for further details.   

grantthornton.co.uk 

Commercial in confidence 

 

 

 

31 March 2021 
 

 

Dear Sue 

Audit Scope and additional work 2020/21 

 
 

Introduction 

As you are aware, local audit has gone through major changes in the last couple of years. 

More and more councils are getting involved in complex and innovatory financial 

arrangements, increased regulatory pressures, the expectations of stakeholders and 

enhancements to Codes and Standards have fundamentally changed the landscape in which 

we work. COVID - 19 and lockdown have added further unanticipated pressures on both 

auditors and audited bodies. In this letter, I set out my expectations of the increased audit 

work which will be required in 2020/21. I also set out the expected fee impact, the need for 

which has recently been acknowledged by both the Redmond Review and MHCLG’s 

subsequent response. I hope this is helpful in setting out the context in which we will work with 

you, as well as a sign of Grant Thornton’s continued commitment to the highest audit quality.  

 

Looking back to 2019/20 

In February 2020, I wrote to you regarding the increased regulatory focus facing all audit 

suppliers and the impact this would have on the scope of our work for 2019/20 and beyond. I 

referred to this as ‘raising the bar’, reflecting the expectation from the FRC that all audit work 

should now be of level 2a (limited improvement only) or better. I set out my expectation that 

there would be an additional fee requirement for the 2019/20 audit, compared to the scale fee 

published by PSAA, of £10,000 (an increase of 25%). This was reflected in our Audit Plan 

dated March 2020. 

The subsequent COVID 19 pandemic had a further significant impact on the cost of us as 

auditors discharging our responsibilities. As a result of the additional work a further uplift to 

the fee was proposed resulting in a final fee for 2019/20 of £73,662 (a variation to scale of 

87%). 

The main reasons for the further variation is as a result of the disruption caused by COVID - 

19, impacting both on your closedown procedures and our ability to audit remotely; as well as 

the additional audit considerations including in respect of asset valuations. These meant that 

 

Susan Roberts  
Director of Finance (s151 Officer) 
Barrow in Furness Borough Council 
By email 
 

 
 

Page 159

Agenda Item 18
Appendix 1



 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 2 

Commercial in confidence 

like you, we incurred considerable extra costs. Across all firms, only 45% of local government 

audits were signed off by the target date of 30 November, which indicates the scale of the 

challenge involved.  

In the sections below, I set out the main factors which will impact on the audit fee for 2020/21. 

These include the introduction of the new NAO Code of Audit Practice, with consequent 

implications for Value for Money work; the revision to major auditing standards, including 

those covering estimates and fraud, and the update of Practice Note 10 (the adaptation of 

auditing standards to public sector audits). 

Following the national lockdown in January 2021, COVID - 19 will also continue to impact in a 

large way on the audit, and I have also commented on this below. We also note that the 

Government response to the Redmond Review, published on 17 December 2020 promised 

that MHCLG will provide relevant local authorities with £15 million in additional funding in 

2021/22 to be used to support the additional costs of reporting and audit anticipated related to 

the 2020/21 financial year. 

 
New audit requirements for 2020/21 – the new NAO Code 
 
On 1 April 2020, the National Audit Office introduced a new Code of Audit Practice which 
comes into effect from audit year 2020/21. The most significant change in the Code is the 
introduction of a new ‘Auditor’s Annual Report’, which brings together the results of all the 
auditor’s work across the year. The Code also introduced a revised approach to the audit of 
Value for Money. These changes are set out in more detailed in the NAO’s Auditor Guidance 
Note 03 which was published in October 2020.  
 
We plan to issue our Audit Plan for 2020/21 in July 2021. I have set out below the main 
changes in respect of Value for Money, and the implications for the timing and resourcing of 
our work, as well as for the audit fee.  
 
There are three main changes arising from the NAO’s new approach. 

• A new set of key criteria, covering governance, financial sustainability and 
improvements in economy, efficiency and effectiveness 

• More extensive reporting, with a requirement on the auditor to produce a commentary 
on arrangements across all of the key criteria, rather than the current ‘reporting by 
exception’ approach 

• The replacement of the binary (qualified / unqualified) approach to VfM conclusions, 
with far more sophisticated judgements on performance, as well as recommendations 
on any significant weaknesses in arrangements identified during the audit. 

Grant Thornton very much welcomes the changes, which will support auditors in undertaking 
and reporting on work which is more meaningful and makes impact with audited bodies and 
the public. We agree with the move away from a binary conclusion, and with the replacement 
of the Annual Audit Letter with the new Annual Auditor’s Report. The changes will help pave 
the way for a new relationship between auditors and audited bodies which is based around 
constructive challenge and a drive for improvement. 

The following are the main implications in terms of audit delivery: 

• We are aiming to publish our work on the Auditor’s Annual Report at the same time as 
the Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements. To ensure we are able to complete 
the necessary work by the due date, we propose to undertake our initial planning on 
July 2021 and to share the results of our risk assessment with you by 30 July 2021. 
We will aim to complete the fieldwork by 15 September 2021. We will allow sufficient 
time for you to comment on our risk assessment and audit findings at each key stage 
before we present the results to Audit Committee.  
 

• Where auditors identify weaknesses in Value for Money arrangements, there will be 
increased reporting requirements on the audit team. We envisage that across the 

Page 160

Agenda Item 18
Appendix 1

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-authority-financial-reporting-and-external-audit-government-response-to-the-redmond-review
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/wp-content/uploads/sites/29/2020/01/Code_of_audit_practice_2020.pdf
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/agn-03-vfm-consultation/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/agn-03-vfm-consultation/


 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 3 

Commercial in confidence 

country, auditors will be identifying more significant weaknesses and consequently 
making an increased number of recommendations (in place of what was a qualified 
Value for Money conclusion). We will be working closely with the NAO and the other 
audit firms to ensure consistency of application of the new guidance.   

 

• The new approach will also potentially be more challenging, as well as rewarding, for 
audited bodies involving discussions at a wider and more strategic level. Both the 
reporting, and the planning and risk assessment which underpins it, will require more 
audit time, delivered through a richer skill mix than in previous years. Our estimate is 
that for your audit, this will result in an increased fee of £9,000 (38% of the additional 
fee increase) for 2020/21. This in line with increases we are proposing at all our local 
audits.  

 

• PSAA recognise that the additional work required as a result of the new Code will 
continue in future years and are consulting on how best to reflect this in any revision 
to scale fees with effect from 2021/22. For 2020/21 the fee variation will be approved  
by PSAA via the fee variations process in the usual manner. 
 

• There will be increased documentation and reporting requirements on the audit team. 
The value for money work will now cover a much wider scope, as set out above. Each 
year we will need to assess the arrangements in place across these areas and 
explore the arrangements in more detail than previously. We envisage that across the 
country, auditors will be identifying more significant risk areas and will be reporting 
more extensively than in previous years. The financial and governance aspects of the 
COVID - 19 pandemic are likely to feature heavily in our work. 

 

Enhanced auditing standards for 2020/21: ISA 540 - Estimates 

In the period December 2018 to January 2020 the Financial Reporting Council issued a 
number of updated International Auditing Standards (ISAs (UK)) which are effective for audits 
of financial statements for periods beginning on or after 15 December 2019. The single most 
significant of these for this year’s audit is ISA (UK) 540 (revised): Auditing Accounting 
Estimates and Related Disclosures which includes a number of enhancements in respect of 
the audit risk assessment process for accounting estimates. 
 
In summary, the revised Standard reflects increasing focus from regulators and other 
stakeholders on all key estimates, especially those which are complex, require significant 
judgements. ISA 540 has been enhanced to place increasing demands on auditors to 
understand and assess an entity’s internal controls over accounting estimates. 

In practice, you will see an increased focus during our audit on key internal controls including: 

• How management identifies the need for and applies specialised skills 

• The information system as relates to estimates 

• How management reviews the outcomes of previous accounting estimates 

• The role of those charged with governance: to what extent does the Audit Committee 
understand and oversee the estimation process? 

 
We will also look for you to articulate clearly: 

• How management understands the degree of estimation uncertainty related to each 
accounting estimate; and  

• How management address this estimation uncertainty when selecting their point 
estimate. 

The following are examples of where this could apply: 

• Valuations of land and buildings, council dwellings and surplus assets 

• Depreciation 

• Year-end provisions and accruals 

Page 161

Agenda Item 18
Appendix 1



 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 4 

Commercial in confidence 

• Credit loss and impairment allowances  

• Valuation of defined benefit net pension fund liabilities 

• Fair value estimates 
 

As the audit progresses, we will discuss the practical ways in which you can support us in 
meeting our obligations through the audit.  

 

Enhanced auditing standards for 2020/21: ISA 240 - Risks in respect of fraud 

The auditor’s responsibilities in relation to fraud in an audit of the financial statements are set 
out in ISA 240. This was most recently updated in January 2020, with effect for audit year 
2020/21. Note that the FRC is currently consulting on further enhancements to the Standard, 
reflecting concerns expressed amongst others by Sir Donald Brydon that that auditors are not 
doing enough work to detect material fraud. 

In response to the new Standard, and to the increased expectations of regulators, we are 
heightening our focus on fraud risks. The following are examples of where this could apply: 

• Increased scope and coverage of journals testing 

• Increased cut off testing  

• Increased testing of income and expenditure 

• Automated/data interrogation techniques  

• Keeping materiality under review throughout the audit.  

• More robust reporting (including the use of Statutory Recommendations where 
appropriate). 

 
As with estimates, our work in this area may look and feel different to you, and you will notice 
an increased audit presence. We will discuss emerging findings with you, and ensure you 
have an early opportunity to comment on findings.  

 

Revised ISA (UK) 700 Forming an opinion and reporting on financial statements 

(Updated January 2020):  

This revised Standard is effective for engagements relating to financial periods commencing 

on or after 15 December 2019. The key change is that all auditor’s reports will be required to 

include an explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting 

irregularities including fraud. This explanation may include: 

• how the engagement team obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory 
framework applicable to the entity and how the entity is complying with that 
framework   

• which laws and regulations the engagement team identified as being of significance in 
the context of the entity 

• the engagement team’s assessment of the susceptibility of the entity’s financial 
statements to material misstatement, including how fraud might occur   

• the engagement partner’s assessment of whether the engagement team collectively 
had the appropriate competence and capabilities to identify or recognize non-
compliance with laws and regulations   

• the engagement team’s understanding of the entity’s current activities, the scope of its 
authorization and the effectiveness of its control environment where the entity is a 
regulated entity 

• in the case of a group audit, how the engagement team addressed these matters at 
both at the group and component levels and relevant communications with 
component auditors. 

 

 

Page 162

Agenda Item 18
Appendix 1

https://www.frc.org.uk/news/october-2020/consultation-on-revised-auditing-standard-for-the


 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 5 

Commercial in confidence 

 
Practice Note 10 (PN 10): The application of auditing standards for public sector audits  
 
Reflecting the differences between public sector and commercial audits, Practice Note 10 
provides guidance for auditors on the application to relevant standards in the public sector. An 
updated version of PN 10 was published in November 2020. This updated version reinforces 
the enhancements described above in respect of estimates and risk of fraud.  
 
In addition, there is one other major change in PN 10 and this is in respect of the auditor’s 
responsibilities in respect of going concern. As auditors, we are required to obtain sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence regarding, and conclude on:  

• whether a material uncertainty related to going concern exists; and  

• the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in 
the preparation of the financial statements. 

 
The revisions to PN 10 are helpful in that they allow auditors to apply a ‘continued provision of 
service approach’ to auditing going concern where appropriate. Applying such an approach 
enables auditors to change focus somewhat. Whilst we will still undertake relevant work in 
respect of management’s disclosure around going concern, the concept of the ‘material 
uncertainty’ disclosure is far less likely to apply. The NAO’s guidance to auditors makes clear 
that auditor’s focus should instead be based on the financial resilience of the authority. As 
such, there is no reduction in respect of work on going concern and financial resilience, but 
rather a shift in emphasis.   
 
Other revised Auditing Standards 
 
In November 2019, the FRC issued an update to ISA 220, covering Quality Control of 
Financial Statements. This revised standard highlights the increased importance for the 
engagement lead auditor in planning, supervising and reviewing the work of the local audit 
team.  
 

Impact of COVID - 19 

As last year, we expect that our detailed work programme will need to take account of a 
number of risks arising from COVID - 19 related issues, including lockdown. These include 
potential uncertainties around the valuation of property and pension liabilities, as well as the 
accounting for government income received in respect of COVID - 19 pressures. Whilst 
lockdown continues, there are also complications arising from the remote preparation of 
accounts and working papers, as well as challenges for us in providing support for our junior 
team members working remotely. Please note, the proposed fees for 2020/21 set out in the 
letter do not include any additional fees to reflect potential additional work necessary in 
2020/21 due to Covid-19. We continue to monitor developments in this area and will update 
you accordingly as clarity emerges on its impact in the current year. 

 

Overall impact  

MHCLG has acknowledged, via their response to Redmond, that audit fees need to increase 
due to the additional work being undertaken by auditors and the pressure on the audit market. 
Funding of £15m is being provided to local government to cover these additional costs in 
2020/21. 

Our estimate is that, for your audit, this will result in an overall increased fee of £62,772. This 
is in line with increases we are proposing at all our local audits. I set out below the core 
strategic constituents of this fee.  

 

 

Page 163

Agenda Item 18
Appendix 1



 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 6 

Commercial in confidence 

    Total (£) 

Scale fee published by PSAA    39,362 

Plus:     

Ongoing increases to scale first 
identified in 2019/20 

    

Raising the bar/ regulatory factors     3,970 

PPE    1,970 

Pensions    1,970 

New issues for 2020/21     

Increase in respect of additional work 
on Value for Money under new NAO 
Code  

   9,000 

Impact of new auditing standards     6,500 

Sub total    23,410 

Local risk factors (e.g. complex new 
accounting issues / evident reductions 
in quality of accounts prep/ financial 
standing issues) 

   nil 

Increase to scale     23,410 

Fee proposed for 2020/21    62,772 

 

All variations to the scale fee will need to be approved by PSAA. 

 

Next steps 

I hope this is helpful in explaining how the audit world is changing, as well as the practical 
implications in terms of the Audit Plan, and the benefits to audited bodies from an even more 
rigorous and robust audit. I look forward to discussing this in more detail at our next meeting. 
If you have any questions in the meantime, please don’t hesitate to contact me.  

 

Yours sincerely 

 

Gareth Kelly 

 

 

Engagement Lead, Public Sector Assurance  

For and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP 

Page 164

Agenda Item 18
Appendix 1



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee  

29 July 2021 

Closedown Update 2020-2021 
 

   

Report from:   Director of Resources 

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    None 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  This report provides an update relating to the closedown of the accounts for 

2020-2021. 

 

1.2 A further update will be reported at the meeting. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee note the 

closedown update 2020-2021. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 For the 2020-2021 financial year, the publication date is 31 July 2021. 

 

3.2 The ledger has been closed and the Statement of Accounts has been prepared; 

the checks and consistency review work has commenced. 

 

3.3 The results for 2020-2021 will be reported to the Executive Committee and to 

this committee once approval to issue has been given. 

 

3.4 The Finance Department is operating with reduced accountancy resources as 

recruitment has not been successful and all effort had to focus on the production 

of the Statement; resource needs will be addressed. 

 

3.5 Plans are still on track to publish the draft unaudited Statement of Accounts and 

the draft Annual Governance Statement before the 31 July 2021.  The 

documents are to be published online and provided to Grant Thornton for audit. 

 

3.6 With the potential audit timeframe beginning in August, resources will need to be 

accommodated by the Council and Grant Thornton.  The Council has no 

Page 165

Agenda Item 19



intention to restrict annual leave over the summer and there will be an open and 

ongoing dialogue with the external audit team to match up work between the 

accountants and other staff, and the audit team members. 

 

3.7 The Audit Plan will establish the timeframe and it may be possible to update on 

this at the meeting. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 There is no relevant consultation, this report is only for noting. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternative options as the report is presented for noting.  

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the Council must be 

financially resilient and have good financial management.  The opinion of the 

appointed auditor informs financial management and the value for money 

conclusion focusses on the Council’s use of resources. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.  There are vacancies 

to fill within the Finance Department and these will be progressed.  Temporary 

resource has allowed the production of the Statement of Accounts and further 

interim resources are under consideration.  

 

Legal  

 7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report is for 
information. 

 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

The audit is not completed. Reputational risk. Closedown plan and 

ongoing dialogue with 

Grant Thornton audit 

team. 

 

Contact Officers  

S M Roberts directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Page 166

Agenda Item 19



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit Committee and Governance 

29th July 2021 

Risk Management Report 
 

   

Report from:   Corporate Support Manager 

Report Author:  Corporate Support Manager 

Wards:    All wards may be impacted 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  The Council Risk Register has been updated by Senior Management Team  

2.0  Recommendation  

Members are invited to consider the risk report and determine whether further 

action is required. 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The Council’s risk register is submitted to Management Team on a quarterly basis 

to be reviewed and updated. The report is presented to the Audit Committee for 

them to determine whether the Council is adhering to the Council’s Risk Policy.  

The Risk register was last presented to Management Team on 14th July. Senior 
Management Team agreed to remove risk 11/20/1 Impact of UK exiting the EU 
with or without a withdrawal agreement. This event has occurred and the controls 
and mitigating actions we put in place were sound. 
There were other minor which reflect proposed mitigating actions which are now in 
place. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

 We do not need undertake a consultation. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 Not applicable 

 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities  

6.1 There are links to all the Council’s priorities 

 

 

7.0 Implications  

Page 167

Agenda Item 20



Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1     There maybe financial implications relating to risk and that will be considered on 

an individual basis. 

 

Legal  

7.2     There maybe legal implications relating to risk and that will be considered on an 

individual basis. 

 

 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental  

7.3     There maybe implications relating to risk and that will be considered on an 

individual basis. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.4     There are no equality or diversity implications related to this report. 

 

 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

None compliance with Risk 

Policy 

Risks to the Council and 

local people are not 

considered 

Process via Management 

Team and Audit 

Committee 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

N/A   

 

Contact Officers  

Corporate Support Manager jpenfold@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete section 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Corporate Risk Register February 2021 

2   

 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

1 

2 

Add links where possible 

 

Page 168

Agenda Item 20

mailto:jpenfold@barrowbc.gov.uk


Corporate and Operational Risk Register 

1 
 

 Corporate Risk Register 
 

Reference  
Risk number/year/version 

Inherit Risk  
 

 
Mitigating 

Risk 
 

Ref. Risks 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

 
 

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

Lead Officer 

1/21/1 

Significant changes 
arising from Central 
Government 
Legislation. 

5 5 25 

 Regulatory changes 

 Changes to service delivery 

 Service performance implications 

 Resource requirements 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Awareness 

 Monitoring Officer will receive notification. 

 Horizon scanning by Management Team and Heads of 
Service. 

 Membership of professional and local government bodies 
aids horizon scanning. 

Actions 

 Management Team will determine actions to be taken. 

 We will create detailed project plans to manage 
implementation of changes. 

 We will adopt a management of change approach to mitigate 
against significant impact to the Council and its staff 

 Service Manager will be responsible for implementing 
changes through service planning. 

 Financial and workforce planning will be reviewed. 

 External support will be acquired e.g. WRAP 

 The Council will respond to changes in Covid guidance. 

 The Council is preparing for changes to local government 
arrangements. 

2 5 10 
Head of legal and 
Governance 

2/21/1 
Poor internal and 
external  
communications. 

4 4 16 

 Poorly informed direction of resources and lack of support 
for change. 

 Providing inaccurate information to the public may result in 
processing errors and reworking. 

 Public may have a negative perception of the Council.  
 
 

Awareness 

 Communication strategy on priorities 

 Internal & external regular publications 

 Regular staff communication from the Chief Executive 
Officer 

 Comments, Compliments and Complaints monitoring will be 
reported to the Strategic Management Team and the Audit 
and Governance Committee 

Actions 

 Regular staff and management meetings 

 Key stakeholder networks for consultation 

 Co-ordinated press releases 

 Develop and maintain website and intranet. 

 Use external communication providers 

2 2 4 Head of Paid Service 

3/21/1 

Failure to achieve 
efficiency saving, 
maximise income, 
or performance 
targets.  

 
5 

 
5 

 
25 

 Greater costs than budgeted for.  

 Additional costs to mitigate Covid 
 
 
 

Awareness 

 Performance Management Framework. This will be updated 
to include service plans 

 Regular reporting to Senior Management team, Executive 
Committee and Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Actions 

 Heightened analysis of budgets and services 

 Service transformation 

 Business/service planning 

 Pursue action to increase income streams 

 Budget and performance monitoring 

 Secure additional government support when available 

 Challenges to hospitality industry may impact on income 

4 4 16 
Director of 
Resources 

P
age 169

A
genda Item

 20
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register 

2 
 

Reference  
Risk number/year/version 

Inherit Risk  
 

 
Mitigating 

Risk 
 

Ref. Risks 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

 
 

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

Lead Officer 

4/21/1 
Poor management 
of projects and 
contracts. 

4 5 20 

 Leads to overruns on time or cost and failure to achieve 
project aims.  

 Non-compliance with financial regulations  

 Potential of Fraud and corruption 
 
 
 
 

 

 Irretrievable breakdown in contractor arrangements results 
in the contractor being unable to deliver the outsourced 
service.  
 

 
 

Awareness  

 Managing Contract performance. 

 Contract Checklist  

 Service plans 

 Monitoring of contractor performance. 

 Regular contractor meetings. 
Actions 

 Project Management methodology. Briefings for managers 
have been arranged 

 External project management support 

 External contract management support 

 Contract Standing Orders and Financial Regulations 

 Budgetary control. 

 The Council owns a number of assets used by the 
contractor. 

 Review options for bringing service in-house 

3 2 6 

Director of People 
and Place 
 
Legal and 
Governance should 
be involved at start 
of contract process?  

5/21/1 

Ineffective 
workforce planning, 
or imposed 
reductions in 
resources.  

4 5 20 

 Poor standards of service or disruption to service.   

 Service transformation and commissioning can help build 
resilience. 

 Loss of qualified and knowledgeable staff exposing the 
Council to risk of service failure and legal challenge. 

 
 
 
 
 

Awareness 

 Established suite of HR policies and procedures 

 Service planning process   
Actions  

 Organisational review 

 Organisational Development 

 Training and development 

 Working environment 

 Staff surveys/consultation 

 Flexible working 

 Business continuity plans 

 Management training 

 Appraisals 

 Service Planning 

 Values and behaviours training 

2 3 6 
Director of 
Resources 

P
age 170

A
genda Item

 20
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register 

3 
 

Reference  
Risk number/year/version 

Inherit Risk  
 

 
Mitigating 

Risk 
 

Ref. Risks 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

 
 

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

Lead Officer 

6/21/1 
Failure to secure 
and manage data.  

5 5 25 

 Loss of/ corruption of/ inaccuracy of data, results in 
disruption to services and breaches of security.   

 Major IT physical hardware failure or electronic attack, such 
as viruses, hacking or spyware, causes disruption to 
services and breaches of security.   

 Financial penalties and reputational risk. 
 
 
 
 

Awareness 

 Data breach reporting 

 IT security monitoring 

 Awareness of cyber security risks 
Actions 

 Data protection policy and procedure 

 Freedom of Information publication scheme 

 Data retention policy and procedure for archive and disposal 

 Information breach response plan 

 Review Business Continuity Plan 

 IT system security 

 Public Services Network compliance 

 IT and data online training modules 

 GDPR training and policy 

 Review data sharing agreements 

 Data owner central register 

 Anti-virus software 

 Review of disaster recovery arrangements 

 IT security policies 

 Clear desk strategy 

 Produce Agile Working Policy 

 Review of agile working security. IT project will improve 
security 

 Virtual meetings policy 

2 3 6 
Director of resources 
 
 

7/21/1 Economic change. 5 5 25 

 Imposed savings requirements, the financial settlement and 
Fairer Funding Review; Housing Revenue Account 
restraints; reliance on Council Tax and Business Rate 
income. 

 Changes in service demands and levels of income and 
unsustainable costs for the Council. 

 
 
 

Awareness 

 Council wide efficiency monitoring and reporting 

 Budget monitoring 

 Debt management policy 
Actions  

 Section 151/Chief Finance Officer 

 Financial Regulations and Contract Standing Orders 

 Organisational review to ensure we have the right posts and 
the right skills. 

 Medium Term Financial Plan and Budget Strategy 

 Political decisions aligned to planned budget strategies and 
available resources 

 Review of fees and charges 

 Maintaining and contributing to financial reserves 

 Strong financial management system 

 Capital finance risk management 

 Internal Audit review of fundamental systems 

 Modelling and monitoring of Business Rates (including 
appeals) and Council Tax 

 Spending Review technical assessment 

4 4 16 Section 151 Officer 

P
age 171

A
genda Item

 20
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register 

4 
 

Reference  
Risk number/year/version 

Inherit Risk  
 

 
Mitigating 

Risk 
 

Ref. Risks 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

 
 

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

Lead Officer 

8/21/1 

Natural disaster 
pandemic; 
malicious or 
accidental incident. 

5 4 20 

 Affects support required by citizens or disrupts existing 
Council services. 

 
 
 
 
 

 Impact on Council’s finances 

 There is a risk that additional costs and loss of income 
associated with the coronavirus pandemic depletes the 
Council’s reserves to such an extent that the Council is no 
longer financially sustainable. 

 
 
 

Awareness 

 Information provided by external organisations 

 Communications Strategy 
Actions 

 Emergency plan  

 Emergency planning exercises 

 Review Business Continuity Plan 

 Review of disaster recovery arrangements 

 Arrangements with partner organisations 

 Review service arrangements with major contractors 

 Work with other Cumbria local authorities to lobby Central 
Government to address the costs of the coronavirus 
pandemic 

 Continue to review reserves and MTFP. 

4 4 16 Head of Paid Service 

9/21/1 
Changes in political 
priorities. 

5 4 20 

 Resulting in immediate changes that require additional 
resource to achieve and fail to reflect priorities determined 
by consultation. 

 Potential Local Government reorganisation impacts on other 
priorities 

 
 
 

Actions 

 Financial and workforce planning 

 Monitoring by Management Team and reporting to the 
Executive Committee 

 Clear corporate planning and regular performance 
monitoring 

 Effective service planning 

 Respond to national consultation on key policy changes 

 Membership of the Local Government Association 

 Member training sessions to reflect changes in priorities 

5 3 15 Head of Paid Service  

10/21/1 
Major Health and 
Safety incident at 
the Council.  

4 4 16 

 Additional costs for inquiry, disruption to service and 
possible prosecution. 

 

 Unknown issues relating to working at home? 

Awareness 

 Corporate wide H&S training 
Actions 

 Health & Safety (H&S) Board 

 H&S Management Group 

 H&S procedures – addressed at every service area 

 H&S audits /peer review 

 Specialist H&S advisor 

 Insurance. 

 Assess impact of agile working and provide additional 
equipment if required. 

 Review agile working guidance 

4 3 12 Head of Paid Service 

12/20/1 
Failure to deliver 
the objectives of the 
Council plan 

5 3 15 

 Opportunities to deliver improvements for the Borough may 
be missed. 

 Detrimental impact for residents. 

 Unable to attract new businesses and residents to the 
Borough. 

 

 There is an annual review of progress against the Council 
Plan which is presented to the Executive Committee.  

 The plan contains actions which will deliver the plan’s 
objectives. 

 Service plans for each department are currently being 
prepared.  

5 2 10 Chief Executive 

 

P
age 172

A
genda Item

 20
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register 

5 
 

Operational Risk Register 

 
Reference  

Risk number/year/version 
Inherit Risk  

 
 

Mitigating 
Risk 

 

Ref Risks 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

 
 

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

Risk owner 

1/21/1 

Service provision 
and performance 
affected by 
organisational 
change, industrial 
action and/or staff 
sickness. 

4 5 20 

 Complaints, poor performance and possible further costs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Awareness 

 Established suite of HR policies and procedures 

 Organisational culture 

 Management training 
Actions  

 Working environment 

 Staff surveys/consultation 

 Flexible working 

 Business continuity plans 

 Appraisals and professional training 

 Performance monitoring and management 

 Clear absence management scheme 

 Workforce strategy 

3 4 12 Section 151 Officer 

2/21/1 

Failure of contractor 
or partners to deliver 
services or meet 
agreed performance 
targets. 

4 5 20 

 Additional costs or failed objectives. 
 
 
 
 

Awareness 

 Project management 
Actions  

 Procurement processes – including financial 
aspects/contract standing orders/equality standards 

 Contract process – creation of robust contracts. 

 Creation of a new post to improve the quality of contracts 

 Accountability and risk ownership documented. 

 Service Level Agreements 

 Contract monitoring 

 Trained/skilled staff 

 Established governance arrangements 

4 3 12 
Director of 
Resources 

3/21/1 

Potential for fraud, 
corruption, 
malpractice or error, 
by internal or 
external threats.  In 
additional to 
immediate financial 
loss.  

5 3 12 

 Could harm reputation and lead to additional inquiry costs 
and penalties. 

Awareness 

 Appropriate culture and risk awareness 
Actions 

 Anti-fraud and corruption strategy 

 Whistleblowing policy 

 National Anti-Fraud Network 

 National Fraud Initiative 

 Financial Regulations and Contract Standing Orders 

 Codes of conduct 

 Appropriately trained staff 

 Segregation of duties 

 Supported financial management system 

 Budget monitoring regime 

 Internal Audit review of systems and controls 

 Insurance 

 Annual Governance Statement 

3 1 3 
Director of 
Resources 

P
age 173

A
genda Item

 20
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register 

6 
 

Reference  
Risk number/year/version 

Inherit Risk  
 

 
Mitigating 

Risk 
 

Ref Risks 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

 
 

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

Risk owner 

4/21/1 

 
 
 
 
Significant 
infrastructure 
projects aren’t 
properly supported. 
 
 
 

5 4 20 

 Projects aren’t delivered in a timely manner. 

 Additional project cost. 

 Loss of reputation. 
 
 
. 
 
 

Awareness 

 Monitoring at IT Users Board 

 Service delivery plan will establish key milestones. 
Actions 

 Regular reviews by the Major Projects Board and the Major 
Projects Advisory Board. 

 Review resource and skill requirements. 

 Realign resources with the Council’s priorities. 

 Address skill shortages. 

 Develop project management skills where required 
 

5 2 10 
Director of People 
and Place. 

 
 
 
 
5/21/1 

Failure to deliver 
repairs services due 
to Covid 19 
restrictions 

 
 
 
 
5 

 
 
 
 
3 

 
 
 
 
15 

 Unable to carryout  repairs and maintenance services to 
housing assets within the borough 

 Potential increase in disrepair claims from Solicitors 

 Tenants at risk of harm from defective components and 
maintenance of gas/electric services 

 Responsive Repairs Contractor may not be able to maintain 
services due to economic downturn 

 Materials and components are not available from builders 
merchants 

 
 

 Arrangements in place to ensure adequate trade resources 
remain available to provide 24 hour emergency cover  

 Covid 19 Risk Assessments and safe systems of work 
signed off and in place, including PPE and tenant 
questionnaire 

 Routine (30 day repairs) are presently on hold to reduce 
build up/backlog of overdue orders 

 Investigating zonal working by housing area to improve 
efficiency, reduce cold calling and increase communications 
with tenants 

 Additional software purchased from Eviid to reduce number 
of home visits by staff and provide improved live video chat 
with tenants to identify repair priority and diagnosis 

5 2 10  
 
 
 
Assistant Director - 
Housing 

 

P
age 174

A
genda Item

 20
A

ppendix 1



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee  

29 July 2021 

Internal Audit Progress Report 
 

   

Report from:   Head of Internal Audit 

Report Author:  Head of Internal Audit 

Wards:    None 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  Internal Audit performs audits in accordance with the approved Annual Plan 

which is based on a risk assessment of the internal control environment. 

 

1.2 The progress report for the period 1 April 2021 to 16 July 2021 is presented in 

this report. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee note the 

Internal Audit progress report. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 This report presents the Internal Audit progress report for the period 1 April 2021 

to 16 July 2021. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 The Internal Audit annual plan is agreed by the Audit and Governance 

Committee. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternative options as the report is presented for noting.  

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 

Committee is charged with that role. 

 

 

Page 175

Agenda Item 21



7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report.  

 

Legal  

 7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.2 This report is for information. 
 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Internal controls are 

inadequate. 

Compliance cannot be 

demonstrated and 

assurance cannot be 

given. 

Internal Audit annual 

plan. 

 

Contact Officers  

K Jackson audit@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Internal Audit 

Progress Report 

 

Page 176

Agenda Item 21



 

 

 

 

 

 

BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 

 

April to July 2021 

 

2021/22 

 

 

 

Page 177

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1



 

2 

CONTENTS Page 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 3 

1. STATISTICAL SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 4 

2. ACCEPTED PRIORITY 1 RECOMMENDATIONS 5 

3. REJECTED RECOMMENDATIONS 12 

4. INTERNAL AUDIT COVERAGE: 13 

5. CONTRACT AUDIT 15 

6. CLASSIFICATIONS 16 

7.    PERFORMANCE 17 

8.    DRAFT REPORTS ISSUED 17 

APPENDIX 1 – RESTRICTED ASSURANCE AUDITS 18 

  

 

 

 

Page 178

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1



 

3 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

Purpose 

The purpose of the report is to update Members of the Council’s Audit Committee on: 

 Internal Audit work performed up to 16th July 2021, including final reports issued 
relating to a previous reporting period; and 

 Significant issues that have arisen during this period as a result of our work. 

 
 

Content 

The information is presented in the following schedules: 

1. A Statistical Summary of Recommendations 

 This schedule includes all audit recommendations to which Council 
management have responded between 1st April and 16th July 2021.  The figures 
are analysed according to the ‘priority’ of the recommendations, and the extent 
to which each has been accepted by management for action. 

2. Accepted Priority 1 Recommendations 

 This schedule provides details of all major recommendations which have been 
accepted by management. 

3. Rejected Recommendations 

 This schedule provides details of major and significant (i.e. Priority 1 and 
Priority 2) recommendations, which have been rejected by Council 
Management. 

4. Audit Coverage 

 Details of audit assignments carried out in the period, including any checks on 
external partner organisations. 

5. Classifications of Assurance and Recommendations 

 An explanation of the classifications used for prioritising recommendations and 
assessing levels of assurance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 179

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1



 

4 

1. STATISTICAL SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

The following table summarises the number of audit recommendations we have made 
in our final reports issued up to 16th July 2021; analysed by their priority, including 
whether accepted by management. 

 

Recommendations Total Priority 1 Priority 2 Priority 3 

Made 7 2 5 0 

Fully Accepted 7 2 5 0 

Partly Accepted 0 - - - 

Not Accepted 0 - - - 

 

 

 

 

Page 180

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1



 

5 

2. ACCEPTED PRIORITY 1 RECOMMENDATIONS 

There have been two Priority One recommendations since the previous Audit 
Committee, which relate to the following:   

Audit Report  IT75 IT Procedures Review  

Recommendation The Council should accelerate the completion of the 
development of a coherent and managed suite of policies that 
form part of an overarching Information Security Management 
System. 

Rationale As part of this review, 13 IT policies along with 284 procedural 
documents, covering 42 different areas managed or supported 
by IT were provided.  All policies were reviewed along with a 
cross section of procedural documentation in order to ascertain 
if the control framework in place was fit for purpose. 

Although there was the basic structure of an Information 
Security Management System (ISMS) in place, all of the 
supporting policies/standards had not yet been created to give 
the required substance for users to be able to comprehensively 
follow.  

Consulting the Council’s IT Strategic Plan 2017-2020, there 
were some areas that had not been included within the ISMS 
that should have been, such as risk management, asset 
management and software copyright and intellectual property 
rights. It is possible that they may be included within the 
documents which were not provided for review or those still to 
be developed, as advised within Appendix A of the Information 
Security Policy, however, there were no indicative dates for 
completion provided. 

Without an agreed, current, fit for purpose and suitably 
communicated complete suite of Information Security 
Management System policies and procedures, good practice 
cannot be assured, inconsistencies and non-adherence are 
more likely and compliance is more difficult to enforce. It is also 
more likely that a monetary penalty may be issued against the 
Council in the event of a breach, if it is deemed by the 
Information Commissioner, that the Council had no specific 
policies, procedures or processes in place which may have 
prevented the contravention. The Council engaged a third party 
to provide a suite of IT policy templates which would form the 
Council’s ISMS structure. Resource was allocated to complete 
these policies but is no longer available. We have undertaken 
an internal review of ISMS structure provided by the third party, 
this is a comprehensive suite of policies and some of them are 
superfluous to the needs of the Council. We will rationalise the 
suite so that it fits the needs of the Council. We will identify 
resource options to update our policies but in the meantime our 
historical policies are still valid. 

Page 181

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1



 

6 

Response  These templates were marginally different to those previously 
used. Risk management forms part of the Information 
management and Security Policy which has not yet been 
completed and now needs to consider additional controls 
relating to agile working. Asset Management and software 
copyright and intellectual property rights are not included in the 
suite of policies and this will be addressed separately. 

The ISMS policy and end user acceptable usage policies 
together with new policies covering information assets, and 
mobile device policies are in place and provide suitable 
controls to minimise data breaches 

 

Page 182

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1



 

7 

 

Audit Report  IT75 IT Procedures Review 

Recommendation The Council should ensure that all policies undergo the 
appropriate approval process to ensure it is fit for purpose and 
is regularly reviewed. 

Rationale The Council are in the process of fully implementing an 
Information Security Management System. As part of the audit, 
thirteen Policies provided by IT were reviewed in order to 
ascertain if the control framework in place was fit for purpose.  
The following issues were identified: 

Information Security Policy 

 This policy did not have any real substance and appeared 
prematurely published. The phrase "will be" was frequently 
used within the document that gave the impression that these 
standards were not currently implemented, leading to the 
policy potentially being ineffective. 

 Supporting standards should have been ready/in place by the 
time this overarching policy was produced. However, of the 
20 supporting documents listed in the appendix, 13 were 
noted as current with eight of these as the responsibility of IT. 
Six of the eight documents were provided for review. 

Information Security Acceptable Use of Information Assets 

 A supporting policy should provide the guidance for the 
specific area it covers however this example contained 
multiple redirections to other documents and lacked the detail 
required. 

 The Key Points in section 2.2 could lead users to look to this 
area for guidance rather than find the detail within the policy 
and also inadvertently dismisses other areas of policy that 
are not considered “key”. 

 Users were redirected to other documents multiple times. The 
Council should understand and define the overarching policy 
and supporting standards they require and map the guidance 
appropriately to avoid crossover and repetition. An example 
of this would be that users looking for information on Email 
and Internet acceptable use would first look at the 
overarching Information Security policy which would redirect 
them to the Acceptable Use Policy which then redirects again 
to a separate Email and Internet Acceptable Use policy. 

 Section 3.6 states “Users of Barrow Borough Council 
resources have no expectation of personal privacy” however 
employees have a human right to a private and family life, 
both in and out of the workplace, due to the European 
Convention on Human Rights. 

Page 183

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1



 

8 

Rationale 
(continued) 

 Within section 3.7.3, it would be helpful to clarify that the clear 
desk policy also applies to when the desk is left unattended 
and not just to refer to the end of the day. 

 This supporting policy would be better placed being merged 
with Information Security Policy to give substance to the 
overarching policy and minimise the redirections for users. 

Information Security Incident Reporting and Management 
Policy 

 This policy was provided as part of the three sub-policies 
listed in the ISMS. The latest date on this document is 2012 
and therefore would strongly indicate it is out of date and in 
need of urgent review. 

 The policy did not appear to be in the standard Council 
format. 

 Section 1.9 required updating as it contains out of date 
references. 

BBC Template for System Information Security 
Requirements 

 This document is not a policy but could potentially form an 
appendix of the System Configuration and Management sub-
policy. 

 It does not provide any information on who is to complete the 
template or who would assess it.  

 Although it references IT Infrastructure Standards, there is no 
guidance on where the user can find these. 

Information Security Policy Annex - Exceptions to Desktop 
Policy 

 This document is dated October 2015 and not in standard 
Council format and therefore requires review. 

 Exceptions to policy should be avoided to ensure policies are 
uniform across the organisation. This policy could be 
incorporated within one of the sub-policies to indicate any 
additional controls in place, if still required, rather than having 
a separate exceptions document. 

Tablet Acceptable Usage Policy for Councillors 

 This document was very repetitious of the Mobile Device 
Acceptable Use policy. The Council should consider merging 
these two documents, adding a section for extra 
requirements that are applicable to councillors rather than 
have a separate policy. 

 

Page 184

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1



 

9 

Rationale 
(continued) 

IT Services Version Control Guidelines 

 This policy did not have an approval date but was produced 
in the standard Council format. The policy review date on the 
document had been exceeded and therefore a review is 
required. 

Information Technology Change Control 

 The policy stated that “Standard Changes" were out of scope 
for this policy and gives further guidance to what it considers 
to be in this category later in the document. However, it is not 
clear where the user would be able to determine whether a 
change had been fully documented and tested to be 
considered standard and how this documentation could be 
checked. 

 The section on critical changes could provide more detail on 
what level of approval is “sufficient” and include that a record 
should be kept of critical changes and where. 

 The section referring to the Change Authority did not provide 
clarity on who or what this was. 

IT Infrastructure Standards 

 Although the last revision is stated as October 2019, this 
policy has not been converted to the standard Council format.  

 The current software and applications have been referred to 
by name rather than generically which would require this sub-
policy to be regularly reviewed to ensure changes are 
recorded accurately. It should also be considered how much 
detail is appropriate for a public document while protecting 
the security of the Council’s IT Infrastructure. 

Data Backup Overview 

 This document was last dated August 2016 and therefore 
required review. 

 

 The document was provided as supporting documentation to 
the IT Infrastructure Standards which is in itself a sub-policy 
of the Information Security Policy. As such, it should be 
considered whether this is required as a separate document 
or if it can be merged into the IT Infrastructure Standards. 

Response  The phrase "will be" was frequently used within the document 
but I think this is a matter of semantics and is attributable to the 
author’s style of writing rather than weaknesses in the system. 
We will review to ensure the policies provide clear guidance. 

Page 185

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1



 

10 

Response 
(continued) 

Our view was that the key documents should be published 
when they are ready rather than wait for all the documents to 
be in place. IT policies need to be responsive to a changing 
environment and in many cases changes to a policy can be 
referenced in other policies retrospectively. 

It is agreed that not all the policies went to Council. We need to 
make clear distinctions between policies that are created as 
guidance for end users which will go through the Council 
process. In addition there will be internal IT Services policies 
which will be used be qualified staff with a detailed 
understanding of the Council’s systems. These relate to the 
type and level of access that users have and are supplemented 
by exception policies. There would be little value in these types 
of policies going through the Council’s process. We will refer to 
these as protocols but they may contain the word policy 
because they will include technical interventions which are 
called policies by the IT community and are used to block or 
restrict access. 

Information Security Acceptable Use of Information Assets 

We will review the wording in sections 2.2, 3.6 3.7 of the 
Information Security Acceptable Use of Information Assets 

I will review whether this should have been part of the ISMS 
but as previously stated these policies were developed in line 
with the advice of third party provider. Their views are likely to 
be different to the third party providers that were engaged to 
undertake this audit. 

Information Security Incident Reporting and Management 
Policy 

Agreed that this policy is out of date and will be reviewed as 
part of the on-going process. 

BBC Template for System Information Security 
Requirements 

We will review where this should sit as part of this process. 

Information Security Policy Annex - Exceptions to Desktop 
Policy 

Agreed that this policy is out of date and will be reviewed as 
part of the on-going process. 

Tablet Acceptable Usage Policy for Councillors 

Agreed IT Services are reviewing the provision of mobile 
devices for Officers and Members as part of an infrastructure 
project and this will be considered. 

Page 186

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1



 

11 

Response 
(continued) 

IT Services Version Control Guidelines 

Agreed that this policy is out of date and will be reviewed as 
part of the on-going process. 

Information Technology Change Control 

Agreed this will be reviewed as part of the on-going process 
and the comments will be considered. It should be noted that 
this policy is internal to IT and will be used be qualified staff 
with a detailed understanding of the Council’s systems 

IT Infrastructure Standards 

Agreed this will be reviewed as part of the on-going process 
and the comments will be considered.  

Data Backup Overview 

Agreed this will be reviewed as part of the on-going process 
and the comments will be considered. It should be noted that 
this policy is internal to IT and will be used be qualified staff 
with a detailed understanding of the Council’s systems. 

 

 

 

Page 187

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1



 

12 

3. REJECTED RECOMMENDATIONS  

 

3.1 PRIORITY ONE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

There have been no rejected Priority One recommendations during the reporting 
period. 

 

3.2 PRIORITY TWO RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

There have been no rejected Priority Two recommendations during the reporting 
period. 

 

 

Page 188

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1



 

13 

4. INTERNAL AUDIT COVERAGE: 

APRIL – JULY 2021 

Report 
Number 

Audit Assignment 

System 
Significance 

Band 
Status Assurance 

 ANNUAL AUDITS    

21-01 Income Collection 1   

21-02 Housing Benefits 1   

21-03 Council Tax & Council Tax Support 1 Commenced  

21-04 Business Rates (NNDR) 1 Commenced  

21-05 Risk Management 1   

21-06 Cash Floats/Receipting Controls -   

21-08 Fraud and Corruption Survey 2   

21-09 Performance Management 2   

21-10 Budgetary Control 2   

21-11 Treasury Management 2   

21-12 Car Park Meter Income 2   

21-13 Payroll (incl Expenses) 2 Draft Final Substantial 

21-14 Accounts Receivable 2   

21-16 
Main Accounting System and 
Periodic Controls 

2   

21-17 Procurement (inc. Ordering) 2 Commenced  

21-18 Accounts Payable 2   

21-19 Housing Rents 2   

21-20 
Standing Orders/Financial 
Regs/Council Plans & Policies 

2   

21-21 
Housing Maintenance (Day to day 
repairs) 

2   

21-22 NFI responsibilities - Ongoing N/a 

21-24 Benefit Certification -  N/a 

21-25 Business Grant Review - In Progress N/a 

21-26 Substantive Expenditure Testing - In Progress N/a 

21-27 Recruitment - Review - Draft Restricted 

 21-28 Arts Council Grant - Complete N/a 

21-29 
Covid Grants Post Assurance 
Work - In Progress N/a 

Page 189

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1



 

14 

 

 

Report 
Number 

Audit Assignment 

System 
Significance 

Band 
Status Assurance 

 
COMMUNITY ORGANISATIONS 
AND MAYOR’S ACCOUNT 

   

- Hawcoat - In Progress N/a 

- Abbotsvale -  N/a 

- Dalton Community Association  -  N/a 

21-23 Mayor’s Account -  N/a 

     

 IT ENVIRONMENT AUDITS    

     

     

     

     

21-07 IMPLEMENTATION REVIEW    

 Markets    

 Kennels    

     

     

 

 

 

Fraud Hotline Calls 

 Revenues/ 

Benefit related 
Staff Related Other Total 

2021/22 

(April – July) 
2 0 12 14 

2020/2021 

(Full year) 
35 1 28 64 

 

 

Page 190

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1



 

15 

5. CONTRACT AUDIT 

Report 
Number 

Audit Assignment Status 
Assurance/ 
Comment 

CR119 Crematorium rebuild Ongoing 

Stages 1-3 findings 
issued. 

Further information 
requested October 

2019 

CR120 Building Cleaning 
Information 

awaited 
- 

CR123 Harding Rise Ongoing 

Stage 1&2 findings 
issued.  

Stages 3&4 complete, 
awaiting Stage 5 

CR132 
Portland Walk Car Park 
Maintenance 

Stage 1-2 findings 
issued 

Stages 2 & 3 findings 
produced. 

CR133 Insurance 
Information 

awaited  
- 

CR134 
Public Conveniences – Cleaning 
contract 

Information 
awaited 

- 

CR135 Future High Street Consultancy 
Information 

awaited 
- 

CR136 Forum catering & cleaning  
Information 

awaited 
- 

CR137 Lift servicing & maintenance 
Information 

awaited 
- 

CR138 Electrical Installation Testing  
Information 

awaited 
- 

CR139 Electrical Reactive Maintenance 
Information 

awaited 
- 

    

 

 

Page 191

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1



 

16 

6. CLASSIFICATIONS 

6.1   Classification of Assurance Levels 

At the conclusion of each audit, we give an overall opinion on the level of assurance, 
which we consider is provided by the controls in place within the system audited.  The 
following classification of assurance levels has been adopted: 
 

Level Definition 

1. Unqualified Assurance The controls appear to be consistently applied. 

2. Substantial Assurance Evidence was identified to suggest that the 
level of non-compliance with controls may put 
some of the system objectives at risk. 

3. Restricted Assurance The level of non-compliance identified places 
the system objectives at risk. 

4. None Significant non-compliance with controls was 
identified leaving the system vulnerable to error 
and abuse. 

 

 

 

6.2 Priority of Recommendations 

Our audit recommendations are categorised by three priority levels: - 

Priority 1 Major issues that we consider need to be brought to the attention of senior 
management. 

Priority 2 Important issues which should be addressed by management in their area 
of responsibility. 

Priority 3 Detailed issues of a relatively minor nature. 

 

 

 

Page 192

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1



 

   

 

17 

7. PERFORMANCE 

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAs) require Internal Audit to be 
measured in terms of performance.  The indicators below provide information over the 
arrangements and effectiveness of Internal Audit. 

Indicator 2021/22 

1 Percentage of Draft reports issued within 10 working days 
of completion of audit fieldwork. 

100% 

2 Percentage of Management Responses received within 
20 working days of issue of the Draft report. 100% 

3 Percentage of Final reports issued within 10 working days 
of receipt of management response. 100% 

4 Percentage of Priority 1 and Priority 2 Recommendations 
acceptable to the audit client. 100% 

 

8. Draft Reports issued 

Ref Audit Date issued 

20-25 Covid Risk Assessment – Post Assurance Review 10 June 2021 

21-27 Recruitment – Review  15 June 2021 

21-13 Payroll 13 July 2021 

 

Page 193

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1



 

   

 

18 

 

APPENDIX 1 – RESTRICTED ASSURANCE AUDITS 

 

 
Recommendations Previous 

Recommendations Total Date Issued 

Ref Audit P1 P2 P3 P1 P2 P3 

20-25 
Covid Risk Assessment – Post Assurance 
Review (Draft) 

2 8 1    11 10 June 2021 

21-27 Recruitment – Review (Draft)  1  3 2 1 7 15 June 2021 

 

  

 

 

P
age 194

A
genda Item

 21
A

ppendix 1


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	8 Terms of Reference
	A&G Terms of Reference

	9 Work Plan 2021-2022
	A&G Work Plan 2021-2022 Jul21

	10 Annual Audit Letter 2019-2020
	Barrow-in-Furness BC LG Annual Audit Letter 2019-20_final

	11 Housing Benefit Assurance Process 2019-2020
	HBAP Report Barrow draft revised 070521 final signed and authorised for release 1801

	12 Draft Annual Governance Statement
	Draft Annual Governance Statement 2021

	13 Internal Audit Annual Report
	Internal Audit Annual Report 2020-21

	14 Assurance Arrangements 2020-2021
	GT letter to Chair
	Letter to Audit Committee Chair
	Questions to Audit Committee Chair 2020-21 blank

	Chair letter to GT
	Chair to GT Unsigned 16072021
	Questions to Audit Committee Chair 2020-21


	15 Annual Review of Internal Audit
	16 Complaints and Compliments 2020-2021
	Complaints and Compliments Annual Statistics 2020-21
	compliments (appendix 2) JULY21

	17 Internal Audit Final Report
	IT Procedures Review IT 75 Exec Summary

	18 External Audit Fees
	LG audit 2020-21 - audit scope and additional work - Barrow BC 310321

	19 Closedown Update 2020-2021
	20 Risk Management
	Corporate Risk Register 2021 - 22

	21 Internal Audit Progress Report
	Internal Audit Progress Report


